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PROXY FORM

Skilled Balancing
SLP Resources Berhad is skilled in preserving the balance of 
safety and business progression. Not only do we create a 
safe and healthy working environment by prioritizing safety, 
we'll also be more resilient when faced with difficulties and 
able to achieve growth regardless of the challenges that we 
face. Growing and progressing despite facing challenging 
times will present SLP Resources Berhad as a company that is 
unhindered by any difficulties faced.
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To be an internationally-renowned 
plastic packaging solutions specialist 
through the application of innovative 
research & development and latest 

technology

Our Vision
• Trustworthiness

• Caring
• Innovative

• Commitment
• Flexibility to change

Core Value
To continuously provide innovative, 

high-quality plastic packaging 
solutions to meet our customers’ 

ever-changing needs and to exceed 
users’ expectation

Our Mission

GROUP 
PROFILE

Our group structure as at 31 December 2021:

From a manufacturer of ice-tube plastic packaging for domestic market three decades ago, our Group has grown in size 
and has become a niche manufacturer for wide-range of flexible plastic packaging products and films for domestic and 
international markets. On 12 March 2008, SLP Resources Berhad (“SLP” or “the Company’) was listed on the Main Market of 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The Company is an investment holding company and its four (4) wholly- owned subsidiaries 
are involved in manufacturing and sale of plastic packaging products and plastic related goods, and trading of polymer 
products such as resin. One (1) of the four (4) wholly-owned subsidiaries is in the process of voluntary winding up.

Sinliplas Holding 
Sdn Bhd

Sinliplas 
Sdn Bhd

SLP Green Tech 
Sdn Bhd

SLP Polymers 
Sdn Bhd

100%

About Us
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(under member's 
voluntary winding-up 

on 16 February 
2021)
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Law Cheng Lock 
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Law Cheng Lock 
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Mary Geraldine Phipps 
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Mary Geraldine Phipps 
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Law Cheng Lock 
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Board of
Directors
KHAW KHOON TEE 
(Executive Chairman)

KHAW SEANG CHUAN 
(Group Managing Director)

KHAW CHOON HOONG 
(Executive Director)

KHAW CHOON CHOON
(Executive Director)

MARY GERALDINE PHIPPS 
(Senior Independent 
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LAW CHENG LOCK 
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

31 December 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Key Operating Results:
Revenue (RM’000)  180,131 188,069  166,849 146,993 168,949
Profit before tax (RM’000)  24,399 28,453  25,298 22,485 23,300
Profit after tax (RM’000)  19,212 25,358  21,499 16,469 17,726
Total comprehensive income attributable to equity owners 

of the Company (RM’000)  11,648 27,243  20,452 14,921 20,949

Other Key Financial Data:
Total assets (RM’000)  194,162 209,143  211,589 216,431 216,608
Total liabilities (RM’000)  25,856 27,856  27,283 34,637 31,297
No of ordinary shares in issue (‘000) 316,960 316,960 316,960 316,960 316,960
Equity attributable to owners of the Company (RM’000)  168,306 181,287  184,306 181,794 185,310

Financial ratio:
Revenue growth (%)  6.8  4.4  (11.3) (11.9) 14.9
Profit before tax margin (%)  13.5  15.1  15.2 15.3 13.8
Profit after tax margin (%)  10.7  13.5  12.9 11.2 10.5 
Return on equity (%)  11.4  14.0  11.7 9.1 9.6

Shares Information:
Earnings per share (sen)  6.24  8.00  6.78 5.20 5.59
Net dividend per share (sen)  4.50  4.50  5.50 5.50 5.50
Dividend as % of Net Profit (%) 74.2  56.2  81.1 105.9 98.3
Net assets per share (sen)  53.10  57.20  58.15 57.36 58.46

Net Assets Per Share
(Sen)

Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)
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2017 20192018 2020 2021
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PROFILE
OF DIRECTORS

Mary Geraldine Phipps
Senior Independent 
Non-Executive Director

Khaw Khoon Tee
Executive Chairman

Khaw Choon Choon, 
Jessy
Executive Director

Khaw Choon Hoong,
Jasmine
Executive Director

Khaw Seang Chuan, 
Kelvin
Group Managing 
Director

Law Cheng Lock
Independent 
Non-Executive Director

Chan Wah Chong
Independent 
Non-Executive Director

Notes:

(i) Family Relationships and Substantial Shareholders
 Save for Khaw Khoon Tee who is the father of Khaw Seang Chuan, Khaw Choon Hoong and Khaw Choon Choon, none of the 

Directors of the Company have any relationship with any Director or substantial shareholders of the Company.

(ii) Directors’ Shareholdings
 Details of the Directors’ shareholdings in the Company are provided in the Analysis of Shareholdings Section in this Annual 

Report.

(iii) No Conflict of Interest
 All Directors of the Company do not have any conflict of interest with the Company.

(iv) Non-Conviction of Offences
 All the Directors have not been convicted with any offences other than traffic offences in the past 10 years.

(v) Attendance at Board Meetings
 The number of board meetings attended by the Directors in the financial year ended 31 December 2021 is disclosed in the 

Corporate Governance Overview Statement of this Annual Report.
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PROFILE
OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Past Appointments and Working Experience: 
He was appointed as Treasurer of Malaysian Plastics 
Manufacturers Association (“MPMA”) in 1994 and as the 
Chairman of MPMA for northern region of Malaysia in May 
2000. Upon his retirement as the Chairman of MPMA in May 
2004, he was then appointed as the Adviser to MPMA.

During his involvement in MPMA, he attended annual 
conferences at the Asia Plastics Forum and the ASEAN 
Federation of Plastic Industries in relation to the growth of 
plastic industry in ASEAN. He had also represented MPMA 
in various discussions and meetings with the Malaysian 
government authorities in respect of policies such as import 
duties, legislation framework and new developments within 
the Plastics Industry.

He has over 50 years of experience in the polymer industry, 
gaining his experience through a hands-on management 
style ever since he assisted his late father in their family 
business involved in the manufacture of plastic packaging 
products in 1965.

Past Appointments and Working Experience: 
He has more than 30 years of experience in the polymer 
industry, gaining his experience when he first joined his 
father in their family business involved in the manufacture of 
plastic packaging products way back in 1987.

He pioneered the setting up the Group’s new production lines 
through technology transfer arrangements with Maruzen 
Kako Co Ltd of Japan and Okahata Sangyo Co Ltd of Japan 
in 1998 and Okura Industrial Co Ltd of Japan in 2001. He 
had initiated a few major new products development for the 
Group namely Vertical-Form-Fill-Seal films for packaging 
of edible palm oil in 2005, antibacterial plastic sleeve and 
newspaper wrapping films in 2009, NCPP wrapping films 
in 2010/11 and shrink film for food packaging in 2012. The 
success of the Group in product innovation owes much to 
his commitments and extensive involvement in research and 
development, and management of the Group.

Gender • Male
Date of Appointment • 26 October 2007 

(Founder of SLP Group)
Date of Re-designated
As Executive Chairman 

• 26 August 2009

Length of Service 
(as at 11 April 2022)

• 14 years and 5 months

Date of Last Re-election • 24 June 2021
Board Committees • Nil
Board Meetings Attended
in the Financial Year

• Eight (8) out of 
eight (8) meetings

Academic Qualification(s) • Secondary education
Present Directorship(s) • Listed entity: Nil

Other public company: Nil
Present Appointment(s) • Nil

Gender • Male
Date of Appointment • 26 October 2007 
Date of Re-designated
As Managing Director 

• 26 August 2009

Length of Service 
(as at 11 April 2022)

• 14 years and 5 months

Date of Last Re-election • 24 June 2020
Board Committees • Nil
Board Meetings Attended
in the Financial Year

• Eight (8) out of 
eight (8) meetings

Academic Qualification(s) • Secondary education
Present Directorship(s) • Listed entity: Nil

Other public company: Nil
Present Appointment(s) • Nil

KHAW KHOON 
TEE

KHAW SEANG 
CHUAN, KELVIN

Nationality : Malaysian

Aged : 72

Executive Chairman

Nationality : Malaysian

Aged : 52

Group Managing Director



PROFILE
OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Gender • Female
Date of Appointment • 1 July 2010 
Length of Service 
(as at 11 April 2022)

• 11 years and 9 months

Date of Last Re-election • 24 June 2021
Board Committees • Nil
Board Meetings attended
in the Financial Year

• Eight (8) out of 
eight (8) meetings

Academic Qualification(s) • Secondary education
Present Directorship(s) • Listed entity: Nil

Other public company: Nil
Present Appointment(s) • Nil

Gender • Female
Date of Appointment • 26 October 2007 
Length of Service 
(as at 11 April 2022)

• 14 years and 5 months

Date of Last Re-election • 31 May 2019
Board Committees • Nil
Board Meetings attended
in the Financial Year

• Eight (8) out of 
eight (8) meetings

Academic Qualification(s) • Bachelor Degree in 
Management from the 
University of Lethbridge, 
Canada

Present Directorship(s) • Listed entity: Nil
Other public company: Nil

Present Appointment(s) • Nil

Past Appointments and Working Experience: 
Upon her graduation in 1997, she joined our Group as 
Marketing Director and has since participated in various 
trade exhibitions and promotions locally and internationally. 
She is also the management representative of our Group’s 
quality management system which led to the successful 
achievement of ISO 9002 quality system certification 
awarded by Lloyd’s Register Quality Assurance to the 
Group in 1998 and ISO 22000 for Food Safety Management 
System in 2013.

KHAW CHOON 
HOONG, JASMINE

KHAW CHOON 
CHOON, JESSY

Nationality : Malaysian

Aged : 50

Executive Director

Nationality : Malaysian

Aged : 48

Executive Director

Past Appointments and Working Experience: 
She has more than 30 years of experience in the polymer 
industry, gaining her experience when she joined the Group 
in 1989 as Sales Coordinator. In 2003, she was promoted as 
Assistant Marketing Manager and later in 2008 as Logistic 
Manager of the Group.

7SLP RESOURCES BERHAD |
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PROFILE
OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Gender • Female
Date of Appointment • 26 October 2007
Length of Service 
(as at 11 April 2022)

• 14 years 5 months

Date of Last Re-election • 31 May 2019
Board Committees • Chairman of Audit and Risk 

Management Committee
Member of Remuneration 
Committee and Nomination 
Committee.

Board Meetings Attended
in the Financial Year

• Eight (8) out of 
eight (8) meetings

Academic Qualification(s) • Chartered Accountant 
registered with the Malaysian 
Institute of Accountants 
having qualified as a Certified 
Public Accountant under 
the Malaysian Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants

Professional Associations • Member of the Malaysian 
Institute of Accountants 
(MIA); Fellow of the 
Chartered Tax Institute of 
Malaysia (CTIM)

Present Directorship(s) • Listed entity
1. Oriental Holdings Berhad
2. PBA Holdings Berhad

Past Appointments and Working Experience:
In 1982, she was made a partner of KPMG, specialising in 
taxation. In 1990, she was appointed as Managing Partner 
of KPMG’s Penang practice, a position she held until her 
retirement in December 2004. During this time, she was also 
a Director of KPMG Tax Services Sdn Bhd. Her expertise is in 
taxation and her experience in tax advisory and consultancy 
services covered a diversified range of industries. She was 
the Tax/Client Partner for multinational clients of KPMG’s 
international offices with manufacturing facilities in Penang.

Past Appointments and Working Experience:
He started his career in 1984 in accountancy with Ernst & 
Young, an international accounting firm for 6 years before 
joining a local medium-sized audit firm as a senior staff for 
a year. He then joined a local pharmaceutical manufacturing 
company as Corporate Finance Manager which he left 
after one and a half years to join a start-up medical trading 
company as its Finance Director. He is presently running his 
own corporate advisory company.

Gender • Male
Date of Appointment • 1 July 2009
Length of Service 
(as at 11 April 2022)

• 12 years 9 months

Date of Last Re-election • 31 May 2019
Board Committees • Chairman of Remuneration 

Committee, 
Member of Audit and Risk 
Management Committee and 
Nomination Committee

Board Meetings Attended
in the Financial Year

• Eight (8) out of 
eight (8) meetings

Academic Qualification(s) • Certified Public Accountant
Present Directorship(s) • Listed entity: 

Lii Hen Industries Berhad
Listed entity in Thailand: 
Tropical Canning (Thailand) 
Public Company Limited
Other public company: Nil

MARY GERALDINE 
PHIPPS

CHAN WAH 
CHONG

Nationality : Malaysian

Aged : 73

Senior Independent 
Non-Executive Director

Nationality : Malaysian

Aged : 58

Independent Non-Executive 
Director



PROFILE
OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

Past Appointments and Working Experience:
He is a senior lawyer by profession who holds a Bachelor of 
Laws degree from the University of London and was called 
to the Malaysian Bar in 1996. He started his legal practise in 
Penang and is currently based in a law firm in Kulim, Kedah. 
Having practised law for twenty-five years, he has extensive 
experience as a conveyancer and his scope of practise also 
covers aspects of corporate and banking law. He also acts 
as legal advisor to several charitable organisations and 
societies.  

Gender • Male
Date of Appointment • 7 August 2014
Length of Service 
(as at 11 April 2022)

• 7 years 8 months

Date of Last Re-election • 24 June 2020
Board Committees • Chairman of Nomination 

Committee
Member of Audit and Risk 
Management Committee and 
Remuneration Committee

Board Meetings Attended
in the Financial Year

• Eight (8) out of 
eight (8) meetings

Academic Qualification(s) • LLB (Hons) London CLP
Present Directorship(s) • Listed entity: Nil

Other public company: Nil
Present Appointment(s) • Nil

LAW CHENG 
LOCK

Nationality : Malaysian

Aged : 63

Independent Non-
Executive Director

9SLP RESOURCES BERHAD |
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PROFILE 
OF KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHAN BAN HEI
Malaysian / Aged 52

Group Operations General Manager

Gender • Male

Date of Appointment • 30 May 2018
Academic Qualification(s) • Bachelor of Engineering 

and Diploma in 
Management

SAW SUE NING
Malaysian / Aged 34

Group Accountant

Gender • Female

Date of Appointment • 25 June 2018
Academic Qualification(s) •

•
Bachelor of Accounting 
Chartered Associations 
of Certified Accountants, 
United Kingdom

Past Appointment and Working Experience:
In year 2011, she was attached with an audit firm 
involved with external audit. Then, she left the audit firm 
and started working in manufacturing industry. In year 
2018, she joined SLP as Account Manager overseeing 
the accounting and financial reporting of the Group. In 
year 2021, she was promoted as Group Accountant.

She is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

Past Appointments and Working Experience:
He started his career as an Engineer in 1995 after 
graduated from University of Science, Malaysia. He 
worked in various manufacturing companies for 23 years 
as Production/Industrial Engineer, Production Manager, 
Plant Manager before joining SLP.

He joined SLP as a Planning and Technical Manager in 
year 2018. Subsequently, he was promoted as Operations 
General Manager in year 2019 to oversee Group’s 
operations until Mar 2021. He was further promoted as 
Group Operations General Manager in Apr 2021.
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CHAIRMAN’S
MESSAGE

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For FY2021, the Group recorded higher revenue of RM169.0 
million, an increase of RM22 million or 14.9% from RM147.0 
million recorded in FY2020. In tandem with higher revenue 
achieved in FY2021, the Group’s profit before tax (“PBT”) 
increased by RM0.8 million from RM22.5 to RM23.3 million. 
Hence, the Group’s profit after tax recorded in FY2021 was 
RM17.7 million, an increase of RM1.2 million or 7.3% from 
RM16.5 million in FY2020. Export sales contributed RM71.9 
million which represented 42.5% of group revenue in FY2021 
when compared to RM68.7 million or 46.7% of group revenue 
in FY2020.

A detailed review of the Group’s performance in the year 
is provided in the Group Managing Director’s Message and 
Management Discussion and Analysis of this Annual Report.

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), I am 
honoured to present SLP Resources Berhad’s (“SLP”) 
Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 December 
2021 (“FY2021”). 

Dear
Shareholders,

DIVIDEND

The Company has consistently declared and paid out annual 
dividend of above 40.0% of the Group’s net profit over the past 
ten (10) years. For FY2021, the Company has declared four 
(4) single tier interim dividends totalling to 5.5 sen with total 
payout amount of RM17.4 million which was approximately 
98.3% of the Group’s net profit. The dividends declared have 
exceeded the Group’s commitment to pay out at least 40.0% 
of its annual net profit to reward our shareholders for the 
trust and faith they have placed with the Company.

The Company will continue to maintain an appropriate level 
of dividend payout ratio based on the performance of the 
Group so as to ensure a satisfactory return on investment 
to shareholders while enabling the Group to retain sufficient 
funds for capital requirement, thus offering long-term 
sustainable benefits to all shareholders.



| Annual Report 202112

CHAIRMAN’S
MESSAGE (CONT’D)

GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board always complies with corporate governance best practices as a crucial step towards achieving continuous growth. 
We are committed to implementing value-accretive business strategies that correspond with the Group’s vision to protect 
and maximise shareholders’ value. Our measures to uphold and improve the corporate governance on a group-wide basis are 
emphasised in the Corporate Governance Overview Statement of this Annual Report.

SUSTAINABILITY AND ESG INITIATIVES

The Group strives to provide customers with the best value proposition for long-lasting loyal relationships. We believe that our 
people, our employees, suppliers, customers, shareholders or other stakeholders are our core strength. Their involvement and 
satisfaction drive the Group’s success in achieving sustainability across all aspects of business operations, right from sourcing 
of raw materials to production process efficiencies, final delivery and usage of our products. 

The Board acknowledges the importance of integrating sustainability into the organisation to achieve excellence and value 
creation for its business operations. The Group continually strives to satisfy its stakeholders in fulfilling its social responsibilities 
as a good corporate citizen. A detailed report on our sustainability-related initiatives is available in the Sustainability Statement 
in this Annual Report.

We continuously educate our management team and board members on new and revamped statutory, regulatory and 
reporting requirements from Bursa Malaysia, Securities Commission, Companies Commission of Malaysia, Inland Revenue 
Board, Malaysian Accounting Standards Board, and Bank Negara. We also allocate resources and time to educate, train, 
document, and implement new or revamped ESG-initiatives to strengthen our management team and ensure responsible, 
ethical and ongoing success for our Group and improve the wellbeing of our employees and our stakeholders.

In year 2021, the threat of the infectious Delta variant prompted the government to limit the number of employees present 
at the production floor to 60% of the Company’s headcount. From June to September 2021, the Group had to scale down its 
production to comply with the health authorities’ directive. During this period, the Group is putting more effort to safeguard 
employees’ health yet without compromising its performance.

We adopted a host of strategies that allowed us to find a balance between health and livelihood. In year 2021, we spent over 
RM65,000 to vaccinate all our employees and provided them with personal protective equipment. The other measures include 
investing over RM500,000 in digitalisation and automation to improve manufacturing processes.

To curb the spread of Covid-19, we allocated complete resources to ensure that our employees could work from home. We 
also practised daily sanitisation, provided free face masks to all workers, and implemented social distancing measures at the 
plant and workers’ hostels.

The Group also through a non-governmental organisation donated more than one million pieces of three-ply face masks to 
schools, old folks’ homes, flood victims in Selangor, and other underprivileged groups.

Moving forward, we will continue maintaining such practices. 

PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

Malaysia’s Economic Outlook

The Asian Development Bank (ADB) projects growth in South-East Asia of 7% in 2021 and 5.3% in 2022 due to the lingering 
threats of Covid-19. Malaysia’s Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) is expected to surge 3.8% in 2021 and 5.9% in 2022. Private 
consumption, public expenditure, and public investments are expected to spearhead Malaysia’s domestic growth in 2022.

Financial Year 2021 was challenging, engaging us with lockdowns, movement controls, operation restrictions, and many 
others. Issues on supply-chain disruptions, logistics difficulties and workforce shortages are still challenging the business 
environment. In spite of that, oversea demand for plastic products is in the recovery path. This is proven by the data disclosed 
in Economic Outlook released by Ministry of Finance Malaysia on 29 October 2021. Export of plastic products increased by 
21% from RM8.6 billion in first eight months in year 2020 compared with the RM10.3 billion in the corresponding period 
in year 2021. With this positive momentum coupled with re-opening of national border from 01 April 2022, the Group is 
optimistic on the Group’s growth in year 2022. 

For SLP, we will always concentrate on our core business to produce innovative and cost-effective flexible plastic packaging 
products to our customers with the aim to sustain the Group’s performance and returns to shareholders over the long term.
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CHAIRMAN’S
MESSAGE (CONT’D)

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I sincerely thank the Group’s management and employees for their dedication, team spirit and hard 
work in achieving sustainable financial results in FY2021. 

Last but not least, my utmost gratitude to our stakeholders, including customers, shareholders, suppliers and other business 
associates, for your long-standing support, cooperation and assistance.

Thank you.

Khaw Khoon Tee
Executive Chairman



GROUP MANAGING DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE
AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DEAR VALUED SHAREHOLDERS,

As the threat of the global pandemic ebbs and countries 
across the globe gradually opening their economies, 
another catastrophe has surfaced to pose new challenges 
to consumers and manufacturers worldwide. The Russia-
Ukraine conflict, disrupting the supply of oil and gas from 
Russia, has spiked up the prices of oil and gas and essential 
commodities. Coupled with the lingering threat of the 
pandemic and interest rate hike in the US, the World Bank 
expects global growth to slow to 4.1% in 2022 and 3.2% 
in 2023 as more nations start planning to initiate monetary 
policies to curb inflation.

Growth in China will be at a moderate 5.1% this year, partly 
due to the lingering effects of the pandemic and additional 
regulatory tightening from Beijing. The Group always 
monitors closely the control measures and development in 
China as they may pose potential influences and impacts to 
the Group’s supply chain of goods and services. 

Growth in South-East Asia is projected to decelerate to 5.1% in 
2022 from 7.1% in 2021, reflecting a slowdown in China. 

We also expect the Asian banks to raise rates to curb inflation 
in the region, a move that will make borrowing to start new 
businesses costly and limit employment opportunities during 
times of uncertainty. To navigate the choppy seas, the group 
will need to manage its cash flow prudently and undertake 
cautious business plans. 

However, there are signs of comforting prospects. According 
to MIDF Research, Malaysia’s gross domestic product (“GDP”) 
will increase to 6% in 2022, rising from the 2021 figure of 3.1%. 

Malaysia’s gross domestic product (“GDP”) growth is 
projected at 5.5% to 6.5% in 2022, buoyed by its vaccination 
accomplishments, sustained external demand, and a pick-up in 
domestic demand, according to Standard Chartered’s ASEAN 
and South Asia chief economist, Edward Lee. Hence, the 
Group is expecting revenue growth in local market in FY2022.

For the Group’s main overseas market, the Japanese 
government upgraded its growth forecast for the domestic 
economy in fiscal 2022 to 3.2% from the previously estimated 
2.2%, expecting the pace of recovery from the coronavirus 
pandemic-caused slump to pick up following a weaker-than-
anticipated improvement in the current year. We can expect 
these economies to increase their spending on flexible 
packaging materials from the ASEAN region. Therefore, we 
expect Japan to generate about 35% of the group’s revenue 
in FY2022.

The healthy demand for consumer goods and the rising income 
of the masses are growth drivers in the region. Countries such 
as China, India, and Japan, among others, have witnessed a 
significant rise in consumption in the past decade, which has 
impacted the regional market positively.

OVERVIEW OF THE GROUP’S BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS

SLP Resources Berhad (“SLP” or “the Company”) and its three (3) active subsidiaries (herein collectively referred to as “the 
Group”) manufacture and sell flexible plastic packaging and its related products. SLP’s three active wholly-owned subsidiaries 
are Sinliplas Holding Sdn Bhd, SLP Green Tech Sdn Bhd and SLP Polymers Sdn Bhd. Employing 261 employees in Kulim, SLP 
operates in production facilities measuring 387,000 square feet.

The Group is known for its quality thin-gauged flexible plastic packaging products sold to customers in Malaysia and other 
parts of the world. The essential products of the Group include kitchen bags, garbage bags, VFFS films, fashion bags, patch 
handle bags, industrial bags, cooking oil VFFS films and quality films for health care packaging.

For FY2022, through organic growth business plans, the Group will continue to invest, grow, and enhance its core business’s 
competitive edge of its flexible plastic packaging products. The Group collaborates with customers to provide innovative 
ideas, expertise and support solutions for their specific requirements. 

The Group’s strategy has successfully widened its high value-added packaging products for use beyond the food and beverage 
industries. SLP also supplies the personal care, home care, health care and industrial sectors. 

KHAW SEANG 
CHUAN, KELVIN
Group Managing Director
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GROUP MANAGING DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE
AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT’D)

OVERVIEW OF THE GROUP’S BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS (CONT’D)

The Group’s high-quality plastic packaging products cater to personal and medical care products. These high value-added 
packaging products have high entry barriers and strong market potential. SLP will continue to add fresh, flexible plastic 
packaging products to broaden the choice of personal and health care products for consumers to grow its revenue.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Revenue

For the FY2021, the Group recorded revenue of RM169 million, an increase of RM22 million or 14.9% from RM147.0 million 
recorded in FY2020, which was due to increase in sales for flexible plastic packaging products and resins. 

The Group’s revenue analysis by geographical markets is illustrated in the table below:

FY2021
RM’000

FY2020
RM’000

Increase/(Decrease)
RM’000 %

Countries
Malaysia 97,067 57.5% 78,313 53.3% 18,754 23.9

Japan 57,787 34.2% 54,664 37.2% 3,123 5.7

Australia 7,808 4.6% 7,771 5.3% 37 0.5

European countries - - 133 0.1% (133) (100.0)

Other countries 6,287 3.7% 6,112 4.1% 175 2.9

Total 168,949 100.0% 146,993 100% 21,956 14.9

In FY2021, domestic sales contributed 57.5% of the total revenue, a 23.9% increase compared to FY2020’s performance. 
The Group’s essential products sold to domestic markets comprise plastic resins for other plastic converters, flexible plastic 
packaging bags, films for packaging food, medical, and industrial products.

For export market, Japan is still the primary market for the Group. Sales to Japan contributed RM57.8 million or 34.2% to 
the Group total revenue. Flexible plastic packaging products sold to Japan are kitchen bags and garbage bags which are for 
industrial and household use. 

Australia, another key customer of the Group’s fashion and carrier bags, contributed 4.6% or RM7.8 million in total sales in 
FY2021. Australia imposed strict controls to combat the pandemic. Their national border almost closed since the outbreak of 
Covid-19. Hence, demand from Australia on our products was stagnant in FY2021. 

In FY2021, SLP also exported to other countries such as New Zealand and Singapore plastic packaging bags and films 
for household, industrial and retail use. New Zealand and Singapore markets contributed 3.3% to the FY2021 revenue as 
compared to 3.6% in FY2020.

Gross Profit

FY2021 FY2020 Increase/ (Decrease)

Gross Profit (RM’000) 30,074 28,479 1,595

Gross Profit margin 17.8% 19.4% (1.6%)

In tandem with higher revenue recorded in FY2021, the Group recorded a higher gross profit of RM30.1 million, an increase 
from RM28.5 million recorded in FY2020. However, the gross margin in FY2021, which was 17.8%, was lower as compared 
with FY2020, attributable to higher average purchase prices of raw materials, particularly the cost of plastic resins.



| Annual Report 202116

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW (CONT’D)

Profit Before Tax

FY2021 FY2020 Increase/ (Decrease)

Profit Before Tax (RM’000) 23,300 22,485 815

Profit Before Tax margin 13.8% 15.3% (1.5%)

In tandem with higher revenue recorded in FY2021, the Group posted a marginal improvement in profit before tax of RM0.8 
million from RM22.5 million to RM23.3 million. Despite the Group’s higher PBT in FY2021, the PBT margin dropped from 
15.3% to 13.8%. Apart for higher average purchase prices of raw materials, the Group incurred additional cost related to 
Covid-19 prevention such as provision of personal protective equipment, Covid-19 testing and vaccination cost. Increasing 
cost in the logistics was also one of the factors that narrowed the PBT margin in FY2021.

FY2021 FY2020 Increase/(Decrease)

Other operating income (RM’000) 2,597 2,325 272

Other operating expenses (RM’000) 9,371 8,320 1,051

For FY2021, the Group’s other operating income improved by RM0.3 million while other operating expenses increased by 
RM1.1 million to RM9.4 million from RM8.3 million in FY2020.

The increase in other operating income was mainly due to the Group recorded gain in foreign exchange amounting to RM0.2 
million in FY2021 (included herein as explained in Note 18 – Profit before tax of the Audited Financial Statements).

The Group’s other operating expenses comprised mainly administrative, selling and marketing expenses. Spike in logistic and 
freight costs caused the operating cost related to sales increase in FY2021.

Profit After Tax

FY2021 FY2020 Increase/(Decrease)

Profit After Tax (RM’000) 17,726 16,469 1,257

Profit After Tax margin 10.5% 11.2% (0.7%)

With higher profit before tax, the Group recorded RM17.7 million after-tax profit in FY2021, an increase of RM1.2 million 
from RM16.5 million in FY2020. The Group’s profit after tax margin of 10.5% in FY2021 was lower when compared to 11.2% 
in FY2020.

FINANCIAL POSITION

An analysis of the financial position is presented below:

Total Assets

As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s total assets stood at RM216.6 million, compared with RM216.4 million as at 31 
December 2020.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group reported property, plant and equipment (“PPE”) and right-of-use assets (“ROU”) of 
RM71.3 million compared to RM75.4 million as at 31 December 2020. 

In FY2021, the Group has reclassified RM0.9 million from ROU to asset held of sales. Please refer to Note 10 – asset classified 
as held for sale of the Audited Financial Statements for further details on this item.

As part of the Group’s continuing expansion programme, the Group invested approximately RM0.9 million in FY2021, mainly 
to install new production machinery, funded by cash generated from operations. Please refer to Note 3 – Property, Plant and 
Equipment of the Audited Financial Statements for further details on this item. 

As of 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s inventories stood at RM35.5 million and RM36.4 million, respectively, 
representing 16.4% and 16.8% of total assets. 

GROUP MANAGING DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE
AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT’D)
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GROUP MANAGING DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE
AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT’D)

FINANCIAL POSITION (CONT’D)

Total Assets (Cont’d)

As of 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group reported cash and cash equivalents of RM77.2 million and RM74.4 million 
respectively, representing 35.6% and 34.4% of total assets.

As of 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s receivables stood at RM31.3 million and RM29.7 million, respectively, 
representing 14.4% and 13.7% of total assets. 

Total Liabilities

As of 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group total liabilities stood at RM31.3 million and RM34.6 million respectively. Trade 
and other payables were the significant total liabilities accounting for 68.6% as of 31 December 2021 and 72.8% for the 
previous year. 

A decrease in trades payable was due to the management’s care to not maintain excessive inventory namely plastic resins 
because of price fluctuations. 

Shareholders’ equity

As of 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group shareholders’ equity stood at RM185.3 million and RM181.8 million. The 
increase in shareholders’ equity was attributed to the gain in foreign currency translation reserve differences in FY2021. Please 
refer to “Consolidated Statement of Changes of Equity” in the Audited Financial Statements for more details on this item.

Liquidity

The Group generated RM19.5 million from operating activities in FY2021 as compared to RM17.7 million in FY2020. This was 
attributed to increase in Group’s profit in FY2021.

The last component in the cash flow statement is cash flows used in financing activities mainly used to pay dividends to the 
Company’s shareholders, which amounted to RM17.4 million.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s net changes in cash and cash equivalents stood at RM2.0 million. After adding RM74.4 
million of cash and cash equivalents brought forward from FY2020, the Group’s liquidity at 31 December 2021 stood at 
RM77.0 million. 

This healthy monetary position provides the Group with a solid financial base to expand in the future.

OUTLOOK, RISKS AND STRATEGIES

The business environment is undoubtedly is always full of challenges. The challenges have intensified since the outbreak 
of Covid-19. Issues such as supply chain disruptions, hike in freight costs, shortages in manpower emerged undoubtfully. 
In Malaysia, flash floods occurred in late 2021 and at the beginning of 2022 which caused disruption and damaged in 
infrastructure, houses, motor vehicles and other properties to the extent of approximately RM6 billion. 

In spite of the above, the global economy is projected to expand by 4.9% in year 2022 while Malaysia’s GDP growth is 
expected to be between 5.5% to 6.5% in year 2022 according to the Economic Outlook released by Ministry of Finance 
Malaysia on 29 October 2021. Domestic growth in manufacturing sector is anticipated at 4.7%. 

The global flexible plastic packaging market attained a value of about US$154.7 billion in 2020. Analysts expect the market 
to expand in the forecast period of 2022-2027 at a 4.2% compounded annual growth rate to reach nearly US$198 billion by 
2026. They also expect the Asia Pacific region to maintain its significance in the global market for flexible plastic packaging 
during the forecast period.

With the rapid rollout in vaccination and the gradual opening of economies around the world including Malaysia, the Group 
is cautiously optimistic to achieve improvement in various aspects. Recently, the Group commercialized our new product, 
New Polyethylene (“NPE”). Apart from launching new products, the Group always interacts closely with customers to explore 
further enhancement on existing products.
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OUTLOOK, RISKS AND STRATEGIES (CONT’D)

Shortage of manpower will remain unsolved until the government allows manufacturing sectors to bring in foreign workers. 
On 19 March 2022, the Malaysian government announced an increase to the minimum wage from RM1,200 to RM1,500 
per month w.e.f. 01 May 2022. The upward adjustment in the minimum wage inevitably increases the Group’s labour cost 
including the statutory contribution.  In order to mitigate the effects from manpower shortage and the increasing labour cost, 
the Group continues to implement several mitigating strategies to convert manual operations into automated processes to 
reduce dependence on labour. The Group always reviews its workflow processes in order to improve efficiencies. In year 2021, 
significant improvement was achieved in terms of output per headcount as compared to a year ago. The Group will continue 
its efforts and render training programmes to upskill our employees. Furthermore, the Group is planning to build a dormitory 
near the Kulim plant this year. Cost for the investment in this staff accommodation is estimated at RM5 million.

Although the Ukraine-Russia conflict will not directly impact Malaysia’s trade, prolonged disruption in the global supply chain, 
rising commodity prices, and higher import costs are all threats to growth. Besides, the Russia-Ukraine war may push resin 
price upwards, and manufacturers are buying more raw materials to stock up lest the price surges further. This has prompted 
SLP to revise the selling price of its flexible plastic packaging products upwards. Subsequent to the foreseen increase in 
account receivables, the Group will exercise stringent credit control measures to reduce our exposure to trade receivable 
risks. 

Stringent environmental regulations present another critical challenge to the Group’s flexible plastic packaging business. 
Strict legislation to mitigate the threat to the environment has increased consumer demand for bioplastics and other 
environmentally-friendly packaging solutions. There are numerous eco-friendly labels in the market to meet the demand. 
Since 2020, SLP has also introduced its brand of eco-friendly flexible packaging solutions to compete in the market. So far, 
our eco-friendly products have performed well in the market. We will continue producing flexible plastic packaging products 
that are recyclable and sustainable for the environment.

Besides stringent environmental regulations, the Group has identified foreign exchange fluctuations as a significant risk. Since 
a significant amount of the Group’s revenue is transacted in USD, there is a risk that the fluctuations of exchange rates in 
the RM to USD will affect the revenues, earnings, and liquidity. We hedge some of our USD sales proceeds through foreign 
currency forward contracts to minimise exposure of the foreign currency exchange risk. Hedging is done whenever we see 
forward contracts with potential benefits to the Group.

DIVIDEND PAYOUT

In FY2021, the Company declared four (4) interim single-tier dividends totalling 5.5 sen per share, amounting to RM17.4 
million, giving a dividend payout ratio of 98.3% of the Company’s net profit in FY2021.

The payment has exceeded the Group’s dividend payout ratio policy of 40% based on the net profit attributable to shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Management of SLP, I would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all our valued customers, business 
associates, vendors, relevant authorities, bankers, financiers and investors who have supported us throughout the financial 
year under review.

I also take this opportunity to acknowledge the contributions of our dedicated management team who worked tirelessly to 
help the Group attain its goals and, finally, our Board of Directors for their invaluable counsel and guidance.

Thank you.
Khaw Seang Chuan
Group Managing Director

GROUP MANAGING DIRECTOR’S MESSAGE
AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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This Corporate Governance Overview Statement (“CGOS”) sets out the principal features of SLP Resources Berhad (“SLP” 
or “the Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) corporate governance approach, summary of 
corporate governance practices during the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (“FYE2021”) as well as key focus areas 
and future priorities in relation to corporate governance, by setting three (3) key corporate governance principles in:

•	 Board leadership and effectiveness;
•	 Effective audit and risk management; and
•	 Integrity in corporate reporting and meaningful relationship with stakeholders.

The Board of Directors (“Board”) acknowledges the importance in upholding high corporate governance standards, and has 
applied a balanced approach towards conformance and delivering accountability through effective governance.

This CGOS is made pursuant to Paragraph 15.25(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements (“Listing Requirements”) of 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa”) and guidance drawn from Practice Note 9 of the Listing Requirements and the 
Corporate Governance Guide (4th edition) issued by Bursa.

This CGOS is augmented with a Corporate Governance Report (“CG Report”) based on a prescribed format as enumerated 
in Paragraph 15.25(2) of the Listing Requirements so as to provide a detailed articulation on the application of the Group’s 
corporate governance practices vis-à-vis the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (MCCG 2021). The CG Report 
provides the details on how the Company has applied each Practice as set out in the MCCG 2021 during the financial year 
ended 31 December 2021. The CG Report FYE2021 of the Company is available on the Company’s website at www.sinliplas.
com.my as well as via an announcement on Bursa’s website.

Apart from the CG Report FYE2021, this CGOS should also be read in tandem with the other statements in the FYE2021’s 
Annual Report (e.g. Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control, Audit and Risk Management Committee Report 
and Sustainability Statement).

PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS

Board and Board practices

The Board is ultimately responsible and accountable for the Company’s performance and affairs. The Board sets short and long-
term objectives and performs oversight over the Company’s achievement over the objectives set. Strategies and initiatives 
which support the objectives set incorporates elements which enables long-term sustainability of the Company, considering 
aspects in relation to economic, environmental, social and governance.

The Board has formalised a Board Charter which sets out and demarcates roles and responsibilities of the Board, Board 
Committees (established to assist the Board in discharging its duties) and the fiduciary duties of individual Directors. Similarly, 
each Board Committee has a formalised Terms of Reference which highlights the obligations of each Board Committee in 
assisting the Board in fulfilling its stewardship responsibilities. The Board Charter and the Terms of References of the Board 
Committees serve as the primary reference and literature that guides the governance and conduct of the Board and Board 
Committees, are reviewed on a periodic basis, and may be amended by the Board or the Board Committee from time to time 
to ensure it reflects and adapt to changing circumstances.

To govern the Group and the Company, the Board has set up policies, which include the Diversity Policy (with the aim to 
provide fair and equitable opportunities, inclusivity and developing diversity without discrimination), Remuneration Policy 
(to provide fair and competitive remuneration packages), Corporate Disclosure Policy (the Company’s approach towards the 
determination and dissemination of material information), Group Whistleblowing Policy (to encourage reporting of concerns 
or wrongdoings to the attention of the Management and/ or Board), and the Code of Conduct and Ethic (to set out the 
Company’s ethical standards/ guidelines, including honesty, integrity, and professionalism, for the Directors and Employees 
of the Group).

The Board consists of seven (7) Directors, four (4) of which are Executive Directors and the remaining three (3) are Independent 
Non-Executive Directors (“INED”). Out of the seven (7) Directors, three (3) of which are female, accounting to 43% of the 
female Directors on the Board. The Board is chaired by Khaw Khoon Tee, an Executive Director (i.e. Executive Chairman), who 
is primarily responsible for the orderly conduct and effective function of the Board, including ensuring that all Directors receive 
sufficient information on financial and non-financial matters to enable them to participate actively in Board deliberations and 
decisions. The responsibility for the day-to-day management of the business as well as implementation of the Board’s policies 
and decisions falls to the Group Managing Director (Khaw Seang Chuan). To ensure check and balance as well as objective 
review by the Board on deliberations emanating from the Board Committees, the Board Chairman is not a member in any of 
the Board Committees.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
OVERVIEW STATEMENT

http://www.sinliplas.com.my
http://www.sinliplas.com.my
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

Board and Board practices (Cont’d)

To preserve the value an INED brings to the Company, i.e. objectivity to the oversight function of the Board through 
independence in mind and independence in appearance, the Board has limited the tenure of an INED to a cumulative term 
of nine (9) years. Nevertheless, should the Company choose to retain an INED beyond the nine (9) years limit, the INED will 
be subjected to annual assessment regarding his/ her independence and contributions, and annual shareholders’ approval 
through a two-tier voting process in the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).

The Company’s Constitution provides that all Directors of the Company shall retire from office at least once every three (3) 
years but shall be eligible for re- election. At least one third (1/3) of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not 
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third (1/3), shall retire from office at each AGM. A retiring Director shall 
be eligible for re-election. This provides an opportunity for shareholders to renew their mandates.

The Board is supported by three (3) Board Committees, namely the Audit and Risk Management Committee (“ARMC”), the 
Nomination Committee (“NC”) and the Remuneration Committee (“RC”). The ARMC assists the Board in providing oversight 
on the Company’s financial reporting, disclosure, regulatory compliance and monitoring of internal control processes and risk 
management (including sustainability related risks and opportunities) within the Company. The NC oversees matters relating 
to the nomination of new Directors, annually reviews the required mix of skills, experience, and other requisite qualities of 
Directors as well as the assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, its Committees and the contribution of 
each individual Director. The RC is primarily responsible for examining and making recommendation to the Board as to the 
remuneration packages for Directors and Senior Management, which reflects the performances of these personnel.

Nomination Committee

The NC comprised wholly of INED and is chaired by Law Cheng Lock. The NC facilitates annual assessment of the Board, 
Board Committees, and individual Directors through various key criteria, including skills, knowledge, experience, diversity, 
time commitment, character, and integrity. Based on the assessment carried out for FYE2021, the Nomination Committee 
is satisfied with the performances of the Board, all the Board Committees and all the Directors. The Board evaluation for 
the next financial year (i.e. FYE2022) has been revised to include sustainability considerations (i.e. Environmental, Social and 
Governance aspect).

Apart from annual assessment, the NC is also responsible for the appointment of new Directors and Senior Management, the 
re-election of Directors, and re-appointment of Non-Executive Directors. To avoid “groupthink”, the NC considers diversity 
in the form of skills, experience, age, cultural background, and gender, apart from criteria such as competency and capability, 
personal qualities (such as honesty, integrity, diligence, independence of mind and fairness) and time-commitment of a 
Director and Senior Management. To appoint the right person to the leadership team with the right skills, experience, and 
credibility (including Board mix), the NC is authorised to utilise independent sources such as the directors’ register, industry 
and professional associations, open advertisements, and independent search firms to source for potential candidates.

Remuneration Committee

The RC comprised wholly of INED and is chaired by Chan Wah Chong. The RC supervises remuneration-related matters, 
including annual review of the remuneration policy and procedures, and review and recommend to the Board and 
subsequently to the shareholder’s approval at the AGM, the fees of the Directors and any benefits payable to the Directors. 
The remuneration packages for Executive Directors are linked to the Company’s and individual’s performances (measured 
against key performance indicators (“KPI”)). Remuneration packages of Senior Management will be reviewed annually by the 
immediate superior/ Executive Director, based on achievement of the individual KPI.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
OVERVIEW STATEMENT (CONT’D)
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

Board and Board practices (Cont’d)

Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

The remuneration paid to Directors of the Group and the Company for FYE2021 are as follows:

Company

Director’s 
Fees

RM’000

Salary and 
Bonus

RM’000

Meeting 
Allowance

RM’000

Benefits 
in kind

RM’000

EPF & 
SOCSO
RM’000

Total
RM’000

Executive Directors

Khaw Khoon Tee - - 5 - - 5

Khaw Seang Chuan - - - - - -

Khaw Choon Hoong - - - - - -

Khaw Choon Choon - - - - - -

Non-Executive Directors

Mary Geraldine Phipps 40 - 5 - - 45

Law Cheng Lock 32 - 5 - - 37

Chan Wah Chong 32 - 5 - - 37

Leow Chan Khiang1 5 - 1 - - 6

Group

Executive Directors

Khaw Khoon Tee 43 382 5 - 17 447

Khaw Seang Chuan - 381 - - 49 430

Khaw Choon Hoong - 313 - - 41 354

Khaw Choon Choon - 295 - - 38 333

Non-Executive Directors

Mary Geraldine Phipps 40 - 5 - - 45

Law Cheng Lock 32 - 5 - - 37

Chan Wah Chong 32 - 5 - - 37

Leow Chan Khiang1 5 - 1 - - 6

Note1: Leow Chan Khiang resigned from the Board effective 1 March 2021

The aggregated remuneration paid to the Senior Management team in the range of RM50,000 for FYE2021 on an unnamed 
basis are as follows:

Range of remuneration (RM) Number of Senior Management Executive
150,001 to 200,000 1

250,001 to 300,000 1

300,001 to 350,000 1

350,001 to 400,000 1

400,001 to 450,000 2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
OVERVIEW STATEMENT (CONT’D)
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

Board and Board practices (Cont’d)

Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

The Board decides to disclose Senior Management team’s remuneration on an unnamed and aggregated basis in the range 
of RM50,000 as it considers disclosure of such information on a named and detailed basis to be detrimental to the Company 
and the individual, in view of the competitive nature of the human resource market and sensitivity of such information.

Company Secretary

The Board is supported by a suitably qualified and competent Company Secretary (has the requisite credentials and is qualified 
under the Companies Act 2016), responsible to provide sound governance advice, ensure adherence to rules and procedures, 
and advocate adoption of corporate governance best practices. The Board as a whole, is responsible and has the authority 
to appoint and remove the Company Secretary. Criteria considered include amongst others, performance, competency, and 
capability of the Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary, together with the Board Chairman, sets the agenda for each meeting. The Board and Board 
Committees members are provided with Board Papers and agenda items at least seven (7) business days prior to the meetings. 
Furthermore, Directors are provided with the authority to request for additional information necessary from the Management 
team to support informed decision making.
 
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Board and all Board Committees. The Company Secretary minutes 
discussions, comments, deliberations, and decisions made, and upon conclusion of the meetings, timely circulate the minutes 
to the respective Directors for confirmation.

Board and Board Committee meeting attendance

For effective functioning of the Board, Directors are required to allocate sufficient time to prepare and attend Board and 
Board Committee meetings.

The meetings of the Board and Board Committees attended by the Directors for FYE2021 are as follows:

Board ARMC NC RC
Khaw Khoon Tee
(Executive Chairman)

8/8 - - -

Khaw Seang Chuan
(Group Managing Director)

8/8 - - -

Khaw Choon Hoong
(Executive Director)

8/8 - - -

Khaw Choon Choon
(Executive Director)

8/8 - - -

Mary Geraldine Phipps
(Senior Independent Non-Executive Director)

8/8 6/6 3/3 4/4

Law Cheng Lock
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

8/8 6/6 3/3 4/4

Chan Wah Chong
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

8/8 6/6 3/3 4/4

Leow Chan Khiang1

(Independent Non-Executive Director)
2/2 2/2 1/2 -

Note1: Leow Chan Khiang resigned from the Board effective 1 March 2021

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
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PRINCIPLE A: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (CONT’D)

Board and Board practices (Cont’d) 

Board Training

All existing Directors have attended the Mandatory Accreditation Programme (“MAP”) as required by the Listing Requirements. 
During the course of the year, they have also attended other training programmes for Directors and seminars on areas such 
as sustainability, governance, and tax that include the following:

Course Title Date

Khaw Khoon Tee Internal briefing on ABC policy
Webinar - Setting standards in film orientation
Webinar - Driving consistency in ESG disclosures

9 April 2021
15 Jul 2021
9 Sep 2021

Khaw Seang Chuan Internal briefing on ABC policy
Webinar - Enhancements to Climate Change assessment within 
 ESG Ratings and FTSE4Good indexes
Webinar - Setting standards in film orientation
Webinar - Driving consistency in ESG disclosures

9 April 2021
6 Jul 2021

15 Jul 2021
9 Sep 2021

Khaw Choon Hoong Internal briefing on ABC policy
Webinar - Setting standards in film orientation
Webinar - Driving consistency in ESG disclosures

9 April 2021
15 Jul 2021
9 Sep 2021

Khaw Choon Choon Internal briefing on ABC policy
Webinar - Setting standards in film orientation
Webinar - Driving consistency in ESG disclosures

9 April 2021
15 Jul 2021
9 Sep 2021

Mary Geraldine Phipps Managing Human Rights: Why is it important to corporations
SVDP Tax Audits & Investigations: What you need to know. 
 A dialogue with the CEO of IRB
Internal briefing on ABC policy
Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance
Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance (Updated 2021)
Conflict of Interest & Related Party Transactions
US Forced Labour Legislation: Impact on Corporate Malaysia
OECD/G20 Inclusive Framework – BEPs 2.0 Implementation Plan

11 Mar 2021
8 Apr 2021

9 April 2021
28 May 2021

26 Jul 2021
30 Jul 2021

17 Sep 2021
19 Oct 2021

Law Cheng Lock Internal briefing on ABC policy 9 April 2021

Chan Wah Chong Webinar - MBRS For Preparers - Financial Statements
Future Fit Professionals Digital Revolution: What does the future hold?
Internal briefing on ABC policy
Malaysian Transfer Pricing Developments
MICPA-KPMG Complimentary Webinar - How Digitalisation and Data 
 Analytics Can Help You Do Wonders in Your Business 
Toward A comprehensive system of corporate reporting – 
 Communication of long-term value creation
Bursa Sustainability Reporting Workshop: Scope & Materiality in 
 Sustainability Reporting for Practitioners
SSM National Conference 2021 – Governing under new normal
KPMG Board Leadership Center Exclusive – US Forced Labor 
 Legislation: Impact on Malaysia
KPMG Asia Pacific Board Leadership & Assurance Summit 2021
Bursa Malaysia CG Guide Edition 4 - Focus Group discussion
Value Creation Strategies

17 & 18 Feb 2021
8 Apr 2021

9 April 2021
12 Apr 2021
25 May 2021

22 Jun 2021

27 Jul 2021

24 Aug 2021
17 Sept 2021

16-18 Nov 2021
25 Nov 2021

3 Dec 2021

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
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PRINCIPAL B: EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The ARMC comprises solely of INED and is chaired by Mary Geraldine Phipps, a Senior INED. The Company recognises the 
need for objectivity is particularly imperative for the Chairman of the Audit Committee, as the committee has a specific role 
in providing objective oversight in the areas of financial reporting, related party transactions and conflicts of interest, internal 
control environment, internal audit, and external audit processes. Hence, the Chairman of the ARMC is not the Chairman of 
the Board.

Two (2) of the three (3) ARMC members are members of professional accountancy bodies, which is in accordance with 
Paragraph 15.09(1)(c) of Bursa’s Listing Requirements, and all three (3) members are financially literate, able to understand 
matters under the purview of the ARMC and possess the necessary skills to discharge their duties effectively.

To avoid the ability to significantly influence the audit and preparation of the Company’s financial statements, the ARMC 
has revised the ARMC’s Terms of Reference to formalise a policy which requires a former partner of the external audit firm 
(including those providing advisory services, tax consulting, and other similar services) to observe a cooling-off period of at 
least three (3) years before being able to be appointed to the ARMC.

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and 
internal control framework. The ARMC is tasked to assists the Board on the Group’s risk management matters, including 
overseeing the overall effectiveness of the risk management framework, the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls, 
and reviewing the Group’s risks including in the areas of cybersecurity, anti-corruption, and business contingency planning 
matters.

The Group’s risk management practices are guided by an Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) process which was developed 
by Management with the help of an independent professional accounting and consulting firm. The ERM process includes the 
identification, assessment, monitoring, reporting, and mitigation of risks affecting the Company’s business and supporting 
activities.

The Board reviews the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control framework 
on an annual basis, based on, amongst others, the audit activities overseen by the ARMC, the assurance from the Group 
Managing Director and the Group Accountant responsible for the Company’s financial affairs, and input from other parties 
and processes. Details of the features of the Group’s risk management and internal control framework and the Board’s 
commentary on its adequacy and effectiveness are disclosed in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control, 
whereas the summary of activities carried out during the financial year under review are disclosed in the ARMC Report 
included in this Annual Report FYE2021.

External auditor

The external auditor for the Company and the Group is KPMG PLT. Their primary role is to form an opinion on the financial 
statements of the Company, including accounting and other records relating to those financial statements and thereafter report 
to the shareholders in AGMs. To ensure effectiveness of the external auditors, ARMC will assess the suitability, objectivity, and 
independence of the external auditor. The ARMC has performed the assessment and will recommend the re-appointment of 
KPMG PLT to the shareholders in the upcoming AGM (17th).

In assessing the independence of the external auditor, the ARMC has also considered the nature and fees of any non-audit 
services provided by the external auditors and/or their affiliates, which for FYE2021, amounting to as follows:

Company (RM’000) Group (RM’000)
Statutory audit fees 30,000 126,000

Non-audit fees 4,000 4,000

Internal auditor

The Company’s internal audit function is outsourced to Messrs. JWC Consulting Sdn Bhd, an independent professional 
accounting and consulting firm. The firm is tasked to provide reasonable assurance regarding the effectiveness, adequacy, 
and integrity of the Company’s internal control systems. The internal auditors have full and direct access to the ARMC, and the 
ARMC receives reports on all internal audits conducted, including significant results and recommendations for improvement. 
The ARMC, through its internal auditors, monitors action plans and the status thereof on a regular basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
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PRINCIPAL B: EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

Internal auditor (Cont’d)

The ARMC has during the financial year, reviewed, and assessed the performance of its outsourced internal auditors and is 
satisfied with its performance.

Further details on the internal audit function are available in the ARMC Report, CG Report and the Statement on Risk 
Management and Internal Control of the Annual Report FYE2021.

PRINCIPAL C: INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP WITH 
STAKEHOLDERS

Engagement with Stakeholders

The Board understands the importance and need for communication with its stakeholders, such as the shareholders, 
employees, customers, business partners, and the general public. Various communication channels were established, including 
announcements on Bursa’s website, the Company’s corporate website, as well as annual reports, press releases, quarterly 
results, and other information which are also available on the corporate website.

Through these channels, relevant information such as the Company’s commercial activities and financial performances, the 
Group’s background and products, policies regarding how the Group’s businesses are run, sustainability information including 
economic, environmental, social, and governance matters are communicated to the stakeholders. Furthermore, engagement 
channels which facilitate two-way communications are in place, such as through AGM, employee appraisal processes, and 
business meeting forums. These engagement/ communication strategies and channels are reviewed annually by the Board, 
considering amongst others, their adequacy and effectiveness.

Conduct of General Meetings

General meetings serve as a principal forum through which shareholder dialogue is carried out, allowing shareholders to 
review the Group’s performance, understand the Group’s long-term strategic direction, as well as financial and non-financial 
information. The Company has served notice of AGM, together with the Annual Report and Corporate Governance Report to 
shareholders more than 28 days before the AGM to provide shareholders sufficient time to read and understand the Annual 
Report, resolutions to be tabled and make the required attendance and voting arrangements.

The Company has leveraged on technology to host the last AGM remotely, facilitate voting and remote Shareholder’s 
participation. Prior to the AGM, Management has assessed and considered cyber hygiene practices including data privacy 
and security to prevent cyber threats of the Remote Participation and Voting (“RPV”) facility. 

All Board members were present at the last AGM, to provide Shareholders with the opportunity to seek pertinent clarifications 
from the Directors. Shareholders were provided with the opportunity to submit questions prior to and during the AGM, in 
addition to speaking (in the form of real time submission of typed texts) and voting remotely through the RPV facility.

Questions raised were answered mainly by the Group Managing Director supported by the Senior Management (apart from 
questions raised directly to individual Director), and any unanswered questions (e.g. due to time constraint) were answered 
through email subsequent to the meeting.

Further to the above, the Board endeavours to publish the minutes of the upcoming AGM (17th) on our corporate website on 
or before 30 business days after the meeting.

This Corporate Governance Overview Statement was approved by the Board on 11 April 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
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The Board of Directors (“Board”) of SLP Resources Berhad (“SLP” or the “Company”) is pleased to present this Sustainability 
Statement (“Statement”) which covers the sustainability performance of SLP and its subsidiaries (“SLP Group” or the “Group”) 
from 1 January to 31 December 2021 (“FY2021”), unless otherwise stated. This Statement provides an overview of our 
approach, performance, targets, and achievements on the Group’s long-term economic, environmental, and social impacts 
(collectively known as “Material Sustainability Maters” or “MSMs”), including how the MSMs are managed to achieve our 
objectives and ensuring our business is carried out in a responsible and sustainable manner. 

SCOPE 

This Statement covers the Group’s sustainability matters across all operations and entities, which are located in Kulim, Kedah. 
This includes all four (4) wholly-owned subsidiaries of SLP, namely Sinliplas Holding Sdn Bhd, SLP Green Tech Sdn Bhd, SLP 
Polymers Sdn Bhd and Sinliplas Sdn Bhd (in the process of voluntary winding up), which employ 261 employees in total.

This Statement has been prepared in accordance with Paragraph 29, Part A of Appendix 9C and Practice Note 9 of the Main 
Market Listing Requirements (“Listing Requirements”) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa”) and has considered the 
Sustainability Reporting Guide 2nd Edition and its accompanying Toolkits published by Bursa.

The SLP Group also supports and recognises the United Nations’ (“UN”) 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development and the 
Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”) towards achieving the agenda. In our sustainability efforts, we also consider how 
our efforts can be aligned with or contribute towards the SDGs.

This Statement has been reviewed by the Audit and Risk Management Committee (“ARMC”) to increase the accuracy and 
integrity of our disclosures. 

SUSTAINABILITY 
STATEMENT
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SUSTAINABILITY HIGHLIGHTS 

The highlights of our Group’s sustainability efforts and performance during the financial year FY2021 are summarised as 
follows: 

All our products are fully recyclable 

Safe and high-quality products 
•	 Average customer evaluation score of 4.05 against a target of 3.50 and above, out of 5
•	 All suppliers are assessed via our due diligence process 

Optimising manufacturing efficiency 
•	 Wastage rate of 10.6% against a target of 10.0% and below
•	 10% of our materials used in manufacturing are recycled materials
•	 On an ongoing basis, we invest in process automation and digitisation to reduce the use of resources, increase productivity, 

and minimise human error
Enhancing energy efficiency and pursuing emission reduction 
•	 Renewable energy generated from solar panel system contributed to an estimated 1,142 tonnes of CO2e avoidance and 

an estimated RM584,643 in savings 
•	 Renewable energy generated represented approximately 13% of the Group’s total electricity consumption
•	 Ongoing energy-saving practices 
•	 3R (Reduce, Reuse, Recycle) Programme

Taking care of our employees
•	 Safety and Health Policy safeguarding our employees in the way we operate 
•	 14 minor accidents against a target of 0 accidents, amounting to 25 loss days 
•	 Recorded 9.5 training hours per employee

Complying with environmental and social laws and regulations 
•	 Compliance with scheduled waste management regulations and standards 
•	 Environmental Policy guiding the way we do business and protect the environment 

Upholding business ethics and integrity 
•	 Code of Conduct and Ethics and Whistle Blowing Policy 
•	 Adequate procedures to prevent bribery and having Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy 

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE FOR MANAGING THE GROUP’S SUSTAINABILITY

The Board acknowledges its roles and responsibilities in ensuring sustainability is considered in the Company’s long-term 
business strategy. In its stewardship of the Company, the Board oversees the development and achievement of sustainability-
related strategies. The Board is assisted by the Audit and Risk Management Committee whose responsibilities include ensuring 
an effective process is in place to identify, assess, manage, and report the Group’s Material Sustainability Matters (“MSMs”). 

The Board also acknowledges the need to understand and address the overall interest of the Group’s stakeholders, including 
communicating relevant information pertaining to the Group’s strategies, priorities, and targets on sustainability matters to 
stakeholders. Stakeholders are communicated via the various engagement channels established by the Group, which do 
not only serve as communication channels but also enable the Company to understand the needs, views, and concerns of 
stakeholders. 

To ensure that the Board is kept abreast of the sustainability issues relevant to the Group’s business, the Group Managing 
Director and the Executive Directors, who are regularly updated on sustainability matters of the Group’s business, brief the 
Board from time to time on sustainability matters of the industry and the business, including environmental issues faced by the 
industry or industry peers, as well as emerging issues. The Board, through the Nomination Committee, considers sustainability 
when assessing Directors’ training needs. Directors also attend relevant sustainability training by regulators, professionals, as 
well as sustainability updates by the Company Secretary.

Moving forward, in order to enhance accountability over the management of the Group’s sustainability matters, the Board and 
the Nomination Committee will incorporate considerations relating to progress and achievement of the annual sustainability 
strategies and targets in the annual assessment of the Board, Board Committees, and individual Directors. 

An overview of the governance structure of the Group’s oversight and management of sustainability matters is as follows: 

SUSTAINABILITY 
STATEMENT (CONT’D)
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SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

SUSTAINABILITY 
STATEMENT (CONT’D)

The Board is ultimately responsible for SLP’s sustainability practices and performances. The 
Board oversees sustainability matters by ensuring sustainability is integrated into the strategic 
direction of the Group.

Board of Directors

The ARMC, a Board Committee comprising a majority of Independent Directors, is responsible 
for assisting the Board with:
t� NPOJUPSJOH�BOE�PWFSTFFJOH�BMM�TVTUBJOBCMF�TUSBUFHJFT�BOE�JOJUJBUJWFT�PG�UIF�(SPVQ
�JODMVEJOH�UIF�

incorporation of sustainability considerations into the Group’s businesses;
t� PWFSTFFJOH�UIF�NBOBHFNFOU�PG�FDPOPNJD
�FOWJSPONFOUBM�BOE�TPDJBM�SJTLT�BOE�PQQPSUVOJUJFT�
t� SFWJFXJOH�UIF�QSPHSFTT�PG�TVTUBJOBCJMJUZ�JOJUJBUJWFT��BOE
t� FOTVSJOH�UIF�FGGFDUJWFOFTT�PG� UIF�QSPDFTT� JO� JEFOUJGZJOH
�BTTFTTJOH
�NBOBHJOH�BOE�SFQPSUJOH�

MSMs.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Group’s Risk Management and Sustainability Working Committee (“RMSWC”), a committee 
led by our Group Managing Director and comprises the Executive Directors and the Heads of 
Departments (“HOD”), meets at least twice a year. The RMSWC is tasked with:
t� DPOEVDUJOH�BOOVBM�TUBLFIPMEFS�FOHBHFNFOU�SFWJFX�BOE�NBUFSJBMJUZ�BTTFTTNFOU�UP�JEFOUJGZ�

key stakeholders and MSMs;
t� PWFSTFFJOH�PWFSBMM�FOHBHFNFOU�XJUI�TUBLFIPMEFST�
t� EJTDVTTJOH
�SFWJFXJOH�BOE�NPOJUPSJOH�UIF�.4.T��BOE
t� PWFSTFFJOH�UIF�JNQMFNFOUBUJPO�PG�UIF�TVTUBJOBCJMJUZ�JOJUJBUJWFT�CZ�SFTQFDUJWF�)0%T
�JO�

addressing sustainability strategies, priorities, and targets of the Group.

Risk Management and Sustainability Working Committee

The respective HODs, under the direction of the RMSWC, are responsible for the implementation 
of the sustainability initiatives. They are tasked to undertake actions as and when necessary to 
address sustainability concerns and report accordingly to the RMSWC.

Head of Departments/ Business Unit
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 

SLP believes that a responsible corporate citizen looks after the overall interest of its stakeholders and carries out necessary 
efforts to understand what matters to stakeholders, as well as communicating relevant information to stakeholders to enable 
their informed decisions. In SLP, we conduct regular engagement with stakeholders to develop a deeper understanding of 
their interests and concerns which are considered in business decisions towards shared value creation between the Company 
and its stakeholders. 

During the financial year, the RMSWC reviewed the Group’s stakeholder assessment and overall stakeholder engagement 
activities, considering if the existing engagement channels are effective and adequate, as well as the sustainability matters 
relevant to the stakeholders, amongst others. The table below provides an overview of our engagement channels, frequency 
of engagement as well as the key areas of interest for different stakeholder groups. 

 Stakeholders Areas of Concern Methods of Engagement
Frequency of 
Engagement 

Employees •	 Operational sustainability during 
COVID-19 pandemic 

•	 Business performance and direction 
•	 Career development 
•	 Learning and development 
•	 Employee welfare and benefits
•	 Employee wellness 
•	 Health and safety 

•	 Video conferencing 
•	 Meetings and communications via 

email circulations 
•	 Performance appraisals
•	 Forums, training and workshops
•	 Employee events including festive 

celebrations and gathering

•	 Ad-hoc
•	 Regular 

•	 Annual 
•	 Ad-hoc 
•	 Ad-hoc

Customers •	 Product quality and safety 
•	 Product innovation 
•	 Customers’ privacy 
•	 Production capacity 
•	 Customer service 

•	 Customer satisfaction surveys and 
feedbacks 

•	 Customer service platform including 
phone calls and emails

•	 Face-to-face meetings 
•	 Free product samples and site visits 

•	 Annual 

•	 Ad-hoc

•	 Regular 
•	 Ad-hoc

Shareholders/ 
Investors 

•	 Profitability 
•	 Dividend 
•	 Shareholders’ value 
•	 Corporate governance 

•	 Annual General Meeting 
•	 Company website 
•	 Announcements to Bursa Securities  

•	 Annual report, circulars, notices and 
press releases 

•	 Meetings and briefings 
•	 Engagement surveys 

•	 Annual 
•	 Ad-hoc
•	 Ad-hoc/ 
 Quarterly 
•	 Annual/ Ad-hoc

•	 Quarterly 
•	 Annual 

Regulations and 
Government 
Authorities 

•	 Adherence to law and regulations 
•	 Certifications/Awards 
•	 Industry best practices and updates 

•	 Compliance and certification 
exercises such as ISO, BRC, etc.

•	 Periodic site visits and audits 
•	 Company representation at 

briefings and training

•	 Ad-hoc

•	 Regular 
•	 Ad-hoc

Suppliers, service 
providers and 
sub-contractors 

•	 Product and service quality 
•	 Timely delivery of products/ services 
•	 Payment terms and timeliness 
•	 Technical training 

•	 Meetings with the management 
•	 Evaluations and performance 

reviews 
•	 Supplier selection through 

prequalification 
•	 Site visits 

•	 Regular 
•	 Ad-hoc/ Annual
 
•	 Ad-hoc

•	 Ad-hoc

Local Community, 
Industry Associa-
tions, Academia 
and Non-Govern-
mental Organisa-
tions (“NGOs”)

•	 Company reputation and branding 
•	 Corporate social responsibility 
•	 Best management practices and indus-

try-related research 

•	 Participation in technical working 
groups or associations such as 
Malaysian Plastics Manufacturers 
Association 

•	 Community outreach and social 
programmes 

•	 Educational site visits 

•	 Ad-hoc

•	 Ad-hoc

•	 Ad-hoc

SUSTAINABILITY 
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (CONT’D)

In FY2021, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, we carried out preventive measures to reduce face-to-face meetings and 
leveraged virtual meeting platforms, where possible, when engaging stakeholders. We also ensured our stakeholders are 
informed with regard to changes in our business to deal with the pandemic situation and various stages of movement control 
orders (“MCOs”) imposed by the state and federal governments. The Group Managing Director addressed all employees 
through a video conference to keep employees updated on the Group’s direction in managing the pandemic and its impact 
on our business, as well as sharing knowledge and awareness on relevant COVID-19 preventive measures. 

MATERIAL SUSTAINABILITY MATTERS 

The RMSWC conducted a review of the Group’s materiality assessment to assess and determine the Group’s economic, 
environmental and social (“EES”) risks and opportunities. The materiality assessment approach undertaken is summarised as 
below:

Identification 
Identify sustainability issues across 
our Group considering internal 
input by Senior Management

Prioritisation
Considering the following:
t� 1FSTQFDUJWFT�BOE�JOUFSFTUT�PG�

internal & external stakeholders;
t� 'BDUPST�UIBU�NBZ�BGGFDU�PVS�

financial stability & economic 
growth; and

t� 4JHOJmDBODF�PG�UIF�&&4�
impactMaterial

Material Sustainability 
Matters

Identification 
Identify sustainability issues 
through the constant and ongoing 
engagement with our external 
stakeholders

Identification 
Sustainability issues observed 
and raised by stakeholders in the 
course of business conduct

In FY2021, we included another MSM, Supply Chain, on top of the 10 identified in FY2020. The Group’s FY2021 materiality 
matrix illustrating the 11 MSMs is as follows:

SUSTAINABILITY 
STATEMENT (CONT’D)

Level of the Group’s EES impacts
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PRODUCT QUALITY AND TIMELY DELIVERY, AND CUSTOMER SERVICE 

It is the Group’s mission to continuously provide high-quality and innovative plastic packaging solutions to meet our customers’ 
ever-changing needs and to exceed users’ expectations. We are not merely a supplier of products but also a solutions provider 
which helps our customers to incorporate elements such as design, safety and quality, in our products, in addition to cost and 
pricing considerations. 

Quality and safety are something we do not compromise in our products. We communicate regularly with all our customers 
to understand their requirements in order to provide the right type of polybags and polyfilms. Our relevant operations are 
certified with ISO 22000 - Food Safety Management System and the BRC/IoP Global Standard for Packaging and Packaging 
Materials, allowing us to serve a range of customers with different needs such as for food, non-food, pharmaceutical, health 
care and household purposes. 

The Group has a quality control (“QC”) department which plays a crucial role in safeguarding product quality and safety. 
Amongst others, the QC department carries out quality inspections on incoming raw materials and our manufactured products 
to ensure consistent quality before delivery to customers is meet. The QC department follows a set of stringent criteria on 
raw materials and products quality, failing which raw materials will be rejected and returned to suppliers, or products to be 
reworked or scrapped. Each month, QC is required to submit the Product Quality Summary Report for Management’s review. 
Management also carries out regular on-field inspections.

The Group operations also undergo regular internal production line audits and external audits by independent auditors, as 
well as ongoing customer audits to ensure product quality meets expectations and complies with all relevant requirements. 

We systematically monitor the quality of our products and quality through our internal reports and various indicators. Amongst 
others, we monitor customers’ satisfaction, customers’ complaints, and timeliness of delivery. 

Our Customers’ Satisfaction Survey, which is conducted annually for all our customers, considers two (2) major aspects namely 
‘Product Quality’ that focuses on quality and safety and ‘Customer Service’ that focuses on delivery, technical support, and 
cost management. We target to have scores of 3.5 or more out of 5.0 for the ‘Product Quality’ and ‘Customer Service’ aspects, 
as well as the overall Customers’ Satisfaction Survey score.  

During the financial year under review, due to the impacts of the COVID pandemic and the relevant preventive measures, the 
Group faced the challenges of the restricted workforce as well as delays in incoming materials like many of the businesses 
around the world. During the financial year under review, especially the MCO periods, our Management regularly monitored 
and reviewed business operations to optimise productivity within the capacity allowed by local regulations. This included 
having employees take up additional responsibilities. 

Our overall Customers’ Satisfaction Survey score in FY2021 was recorded at 4.05, down from 4.15 in FY2020 due to the 
abovementioned challenges while still meeting our target of 3.5. Through the survey, we obtained valuable input and 
comments from customers which we take seriously and reported them in the monthly Management Review meetings to be 
considered in our process improvement. 

An overview of our Customer’s Satisfaction Survey scores is as follows:

Customer Evaluation on Target FY2019 FY2020 FY2021
Product Quality ≥ 3.5 4.00 4.24 (  6%) 4.12 (  3%)
Customer Service ≥ 3.5 3.91 4.09 (  5%) 4.01 (  2%)
Average score ≥ 3.5 3.96 4.15 (  5%) 4.05 (  2%)

On the other hand, the percentage of product quality-related complaints improved to 1.7% from 1.9% in FY2020. Average 
monthly complaints have also improved to 11.9 from 12.4 in FY2020, bringing us closer to our target of keeping average 
monthly complaints on product quality matters below 10. Overall, customers complaints were attended to within less than 7 
working days on average. 

The Group has processes to investigate complaints received, outcomes of which were reported to Management to ensure 
necessary corrective actions are carried out and to avoid any similar issues from recurring in the future. 

SUSTAINABILITY 
STATEMENT (CONT’D)
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PRODUCT QUALITY AND TIMELY DELIVERY, AND CUSTOMER SERVICE (CONT’D)

The following table summarises the statistics of complaints received in relation to product quality: 

Target FY2019 FY2020 FY2021
% of complaints received out of total delivery 
 (product quality-related)

- 2.1% 1.9% 1.7%

Average monthly complaints received on 
 product quality

≤ 10 14.8 12.4 11.9

Average response time Less than 7 
working days

Less than 7 
working days

Less than 7 
working days

Less than 7 
working days

FY2021 has seen disruptions in supply chains at global level in many industries. The Group was also impacted as we faced 
delays in incoming raw materials as well as shortages. Intensified efforts have been carried out to monitor supply situations 
and minimise the impacts on operations. 

During the financial year under review, the Group recorded 1.48% of late delivery cases over total delivery against a target of 
1% and below. The increase in late delivery percentages was also due to limited manpower available for delivery activities as 
a result of COVID-19 preventive measures and MCOs.  

Target FY2019 FY2020 FY2021
% of late delivery cases over total delivery ≤ 1% 1.01% 0.59% 1.48%

Our processes to facilitate timely product delivery includes the following:

Using a resource planning
system to perform budgeting

and planning for materials,
taking into consideration our

suppliers’ lead time, to reduce
the risks of human error and

material shortage

Holding production meetings
weekly to update the production

schedule incorporating
customer feedback and revised

requirement, if any

Regularly updating
manufacturing and logistics

status to customers to ensure
customers’ expectations are

well-managed

PRODUCT INNOVATION 

The Group is committed to producing recyclable products, and this guides our corporate direction in our businesses as well 
as research and development activities. Operational efficiency is considered incorporating the concepts of minimising waste, 
reducing material use, and enhancing recyclability. We continue to carry out our initiatives and find ways to minimise the 
environmental impact of our products, from production to consumption. Through collaboration with our customers, we seek 
to understand and meet their requirements including environmental requirements to produce sustainable products.

The focus of the Group is in line with Target 12.5 of the SDG – Responsible Consumption and Production, and we aim to 
reduce the waste generation and business’ environmental impact by introducing more environmentally friendly products to 
consumers. Our environmentally friendly products have also helped to retain and attract existing and potential customers, 
especially our overseas customer base, many of which have adopted international standards of environmental management 
systems to safeguard the environment and its future.

One of the most distinctive changes in the market in recent years is the increasing choices and availability of goods and 
services available to customers. In order to ensure our relevance and competitive edge in the market, we continue to closely 
engage and understand customers’ needs and expectations, and research and develop the right products or services to meet 
their demands. Our manufacturing facilities are equipped with capabilities from Flexo Printing Press, Blown Film Lines, Slitting 
Rewinder and other Converting Lines, enabling us to co-develop new products with our customers, as well as expanding our 
clientele to a broader range of industries. Newly developed resins, enhanced machinery technologies coupled with polymer 
precise processing parameters enabled down-gauging of our plastic packaging products, using less materials and producing 
lighter products without compromising versatility and durability and therefore contributing to energy and resource savings in 
strategic sectors like retails and health care. 

SUSTAINABILITY 
STATEMENT (CONT’D)
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PRODUCT INNOVATION (CONT’D)

During the financial year under review, the Group continued to innovate and develop new products. We introduced the 
Pre-Opened Perforated Bags-on-Roll which was designed by us. It enables more efficient filling activities by semi-auto or 
automated packing machines used in various industries such as in the electronic, medical and food product industries. We 
have also introduced enhancement to our existing product, enabling our garbage bag product to be packed into smaller 
sizes, using less space for storage. 

Contributing to the Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”)

Target 12.5
By 2030, substantially reduce waste generation through prevention, reduction, recycling and reuse

Reference: www.sdgs.un.org/goals/goal12 

MANUFACTURING EFFICIENCY AND AUTOMATION 

In line with our goals towards minimising waste and reducing material use, the Group looks into the wastage produced 
in its manufacturing processes, including waste that can be recycled as well as waste that cannot be recycled. Wastage is 
segregated into recyclable and non-recyclable waste to facilitate the subsequent recycling process, through which recyclable 
wastage is converted into recycled materials by subcontractors for our own use. 

A wastage reduction team is formed and assigned to undertake the task to monitor and analyse wastage produced, focusing 
on production processes with higher wastage. Having lower waste production does not only contribute to reduced waste in 
the environment but also lower production cost per unit output. 

Target FY2019 FY2020 FY2021
Wastage rate ≤ 10% 12.8% 12.2% 10.6%

In FY2021, we managed to record a lower wastage rate at 10.6%, compared to 12.2% in FY2020. Amongst others, wastage 
may be created from disruption in the production process such as machinery breakdown and changing of production output. 
In order to enable greater manufacturing efficiency, these disruptions need to be minimised and it requires coordinated 
efforts between the production function and other functions such as maintenance and production planning. The Group will 
undertake continuous efforts to work towards our wastage rate target of 10% or below. 

Wastage produced are used as recycled materials in some of our products such as shopping bags and fashion bags which use 
up to 80% recycled materials. No recycled materials are used in the flexible plastic packaging bags or films for hygiene and 
food and beverage-related products due to safety concerns. 

FY2019 FY2020 FY2021
Amount of recyclable materials used in manufacturing 8% 9% 10%

10% of materials used in overall manufacturing activities during the year were composed of recycled materials, a slight increase 
compared to FY2020. In FY2019 and FY2020, all our recyclable materials used were generated from our manufacturing 
operations while in FY2021, some of the recyclable materials used were purchased externally due to reduced wastage rate in 
our operations arising from greater manufacturing efficiency.  

Contributing to the Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”)

Target 12.5
By 2030, substantially reduce waste generation through prevention, reduction, recycling and reuse

Reference: www.sdgs.un.org/goals/goal12 

SUSTAINABILITY 
STATEMENT (CONT’D)

http://www.sdgs.un.org/goals/goal12
http://www.sdgs.un.org/goals/goal12
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MANUFACTURING EFFICIENCY AND AUTOMATION (CONT’D)

In order to achieve high manufacturing efficiency, it is important for our facilities and equipment to be well-maintained, as well 
as ongoing consideration for process automation, where appropriate. We also have integrated systems to monitor certain 
processes in our manufacturing workflow such as recording of incoming raw materials and inventory, raw material usage, and 
production progress to enable better decision making and prompt corrective actions where required. 

Starting from FY2022, we have also launched a few initiatives to digitise our processes such as for purposes of documentation 
and stock count. 

Our investments in manufacturing capabilities (e.g. machinery), manufacturing efficiency, and automation in FY2021 amounted 
to RM503,000 which were mainly incurred for the replacement of parts and machinery in our production lines. There were no 
major investments in acquisition of new manufacturing capabilities.

FY2019 FY2020 FY2021
Total investment in manufacturing capability, manufacturing efficiency, 
and automation (RM’000)

8,753 127 503

The Group’s investment in technologies, automation, and product innovation is in line with Target 9.5 of the SDG, as we 
continue to seek out opportunities to enhance and upgrade technological capabilities towards producing environmentally 
friendly products as well as enhancing manufacturing efficiency.

Contributing to the Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”)
Target 9.5

Enhance scientific research, upgrade the technological capabilities of industrial sectors in all countries, 
in particular developing countries, including, by 2030, encouraging innovation and substantially 
increasing the number of research and development workers per 1 million people and public and 
private research and development spending

Reference: www.sdgs.un.org/goals/goal9

SUPPLY CHAIN 

In the past two years, the COVID-19 pandemic has challenged the security and reliability of the global supply chain. Supply 
chain risks including high logistics costs and shortage of materials have escalated especially in the past year. In this regard, we 
have also included the supply chain as a sustainability risk which we shall put increased emphasis and attention. 

Our business operations and manufacturing operations are supported by our supply chain management which contributes to 
our processes from inventory planning, material procurement, production, to delivery of finished goods. 

Our supply chain management entails assessing suppliers to ensure we work with suppliers who consistently provide us with 
quality and reliable products and services as well as with integrity. All suppliers are required to be assessed via due diligence 
process and registered in the Group’s approved vendor list before we can do business with them. Existing suppliers are also 
assessed annually to ensure consistency, quality, and reliability in their delivery of products and services. We also ensure 
suppliers uphold business ethics and adhere to anti-bribery policies in their conduct of business with the Group or on behalf 
of the Group.

In FY2021, we continued to carry out close reviews of our supply chain and maintain sufficient stock levels while planning for a 
longer lead time to accommodate uncertainties in the supply of our raw materials. The Group also assessed its supply chain to 
review its integrity and reliability and has identified and undertaken measures to enhance the supply chain to mitigate relevant 
risks, considering uncertainties such as economic, geopolitical, as well as environmental risks, amongst others. The Group 
also continuously assesses new and existing suppliers to enhance the robustness as well as the resilience of its supply chain. 

SUSTAINABILITY 
STATEMENT (CONT’D)

http://www.sdgs.un.org/goals/goal9
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EMISSIONS AND RENEWABLE ENERGY 

Failure to mitigate climate change continued to be one of the top risks faced by the world, according to the Global Risks 
Report 2021 of the World Economic Forum. Being a responsible corporate citizen also means playing a part in climate change 
mitigation in protecting our environment and managing global temperature. 

Renewable Energy

Electricity usage is one of the key contributors to carbon emissions in the Group’s operations. SLP Group actively monitors 
electricity usage to explore more sustainable energy sources, achieve cost-efficiency or cost-savings, and reduce carbon 
emissions. 

In 2018, the Group has invested RM6 million to install a solar photovoltaic (“PV”) system on top of its factory building to 
provide an estimated 2,074MWh of renewable energy every year, translating to a reduction of 1,439 tonnes of carbon dioxide 
(“CO2”) emission per year (equivalent to the absorption of CO2 by 7,196* trees per year).

* Trees offset calculation is based on trees planted in the humid tropics absorbing an average of 22kg (50 pounds) of CO2 
annually over 40 years. Each tree will absorb 1 tonne of CO2 over its lifetime. 

In FY2021, the total energy yield from our PV system amounted to 1,647 MWh, which is approximately 13% of the Group’s 
total electricity consumed, i.e. 12,744 MWh, and has helped us save approximately RM 584,643 in electricity cost and 1,142 
tonnes in CO2 avoidance. 

FY2019 FY2020 FY2021
Total energy yield (MWh) 1,868 1,850 1,647
Energy yield over total consumption 12% 13% 13%
Estimated electricity cost-saving (RM) 663,274 656,736 584,643
Estimated CO2 Avoidance (tonnes) 1,297 1,284 1,142

Our investment in renewable energy helps the Group contribute to Target 7.2 of the SDG – Affordable and Clean Energy. 

Contributing to the Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”)

Target 7.2
By 2030, increase substantially the share of renewable energy in the global energy mix

Reference: www.sdgs.un.org/goals/goal7

Other energy-saving initiatives undertaken by the Group include the following: 

Installation of Light Emitting
Diodes (“LED”) lighting

Constant reminder to 
switch off the lighting of 

unoccupied spaces

Increasing the temperature
setting of the air-

conditioning when the 
weather gets cold

Prioritising energy efficiency
when considering 

procurement of equipment

In FY2021, the Group recorded 12,744MWh in electricity consumed, a reduction of 12% compared to FY2020 due to lower 
production activities and lower sales volume, in addition to restrictive workforce capacity due to MCOs. The lower sales volume 
resulted in reduced economies of scale, at an energy intensity of 0.95kWh per kilogram of production output, compared to 
0.92kWh/kg in FY2020.  

SUSTAINABILITY 
STATEMENT (CONT’D)
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EMISSIONS AND RENEWABLE ENERGY (CONT’D)

The following table summarises the Group’s total electricity consumption and the Group’s energy intensity per kilogram of 
production output:

FY2019 FY2020 FY2021
Electricity consumed per output (kWh/kg) 0.92 0.92 0.95

Total electricity consumed by the Group (MWh) 15,720 14,469 12,744

Other Initiatives to Combat Climate Change

The Group’s other efforts to combat climate change include, amongst others:

t� B�QPMJDZ�SFRVJSJOH�BMM�WFIJDMFT
�JODMVEJOH�USVDLT�BOE�QBTTFOHFS�DBST
�UP�TXJUDI�PGG�UIF�FOHJOF�XIJMF�XBJUJOH�JO�UIF�DPNQPVOE�
of our premise;

t� FOTVSJOH�TUSJDU�DPNQMJBODF�XJUI�UIF�FOWJSPONFOUBM�MBXT�BOE�SFHVMBUJPOT�SFMBUJOH�UP�FOWJSPONFOUBM�TUBOEBSET
�FNJTTJPO�
standards, and noise level management; and

t� BMM�PVS�DPNNFSDJBM�WFIJDMFT�BSF�DFSUJmFE�CZ�1641",0.�BOE�FNJTTJPOT�SFMFBTFE�GSPN�UIFTF�WFIJDMFT�BSF�XJUIJO�SFHVMBUPSZ�
limits.

During the financial year under review, there were no fines or penalties levied by authorities for any non-compliances pertaining 
to regulations in relation to the environment. 

Scheduled waste generated by the Group, such as sludge ink and chemical waste, are monitored and reported to the relevant 
Government authorities (e.g. Department of Environment Malaysia) on a monthly basis. The Group has also implemented 
a treatment process where effluents from production operations are treated and handed over to an outsourced licensed 
hazardous waste management company for disposal. 

As part of the Group’s 3R (Reduce, Reuse, Recycle) Programme, the Group has placed four (4) types of dustbins (i.e. for 
recycling of paper, plastic, cans and bottle) in various locations in the Group’s premises for disposal of recyclable garbage. 
Employees are required to sort the garbage before disposing of them into the respective bins.

Details of our efforts and processes for recycling production wastage and using recyclable materials for production is disclosed 
in the Manufacturing Efficiency and Automation section in this Statement. 

Through the Group’s several initiatives to treat effluent, carry out responsible disposal, and recycle materials, we make effort 
to contribute to Target 12.4 and Target 12.5 of the SDG – Responsible Consumption and Production. 

Contributing to the Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”)

Target 12.4 
By 2020, achieve the environmentally sound management of chemicals and all wastes throughout 
their life cycle, in accordance with agreed international frameworks, and significantly reduce their 
release to air, water and soil in order to minimize their adverse impacts on human health and the 
environment

Contributing to the Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”)

Target 12.5 
By 2030, substantially reduce waste generation through prevention, reduction, recycling and reuse

Reference: www.sdgs.un.org/goals/goal12 

SUSTAINABILITY 
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OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH 

We have established a Safety, Health and Environmental Committee (“SHEC”), which meets on a quarterly basis, to oversee 
the safety of our operations. The SHEC is assisted by the appointed Safety, Health and Environmental team to conduct 
monthly safety audits to ensure safety practices are consistent with the Group’s latest safety management system and controls, 
as well as complying with the relevant rules and regulations, such as the Occupational Safety and Health Act 1994. The SHEC 
prepares monthly reports to report any non-compliance incidents, newly identified risks, as well as accidents that occurred 
during the month. The SHEC reports directly to the respective Executive Directors who provide leadership and direction with 
regard to safety and health practices at operations. 

Safety practices and procedures are incorporated into our Procedures and Work Instructions which guides our employees in 
their daily work. Safety and health inspections are also being conducted regularly to identify and potentially unsafe working 
conditions and monitor health hazards. Safety signages are also placed at designated locations to serve as reminders for 
employees. We also ensure relevant fire safety regulations and standards are complied with and that we have obtained 
the relevant certifications from the Fire and Rescue Department for our manufacturing plants. The Group has a Workplace 
Emergencies and Evacuations and Immediate Action Guideline which guides the Group’s responses to any potential disasters 
such as fires and natural disasters. We also ensure our safety equipment and systems at our manufacturing facilities are well-
maintained and functioning properly.

From time to time, the SHEC organises safety and health-related activities for all employees to instil the values and knowledge 
essential to a safe and healthy workplace. During the financial year under review, safety and health training provided to 
employees covers the following topics, amongst others: 

t� 4UBOEBSE�0QFSBUJOH�1SPDFEVSFT�	i401w
�EVSJOH�$POEJUJPOBM�.$0�
t� 4BGFUZ�USBJOJOH�	PO�NBDIJOFSZ�IBOEMJOH
�IB[BSEPVT�NBUFSJBMT�IBOEMJOH�BOE�HFOFSBM�TBGFUZ�JO�UIF�QSPEVDUJPO�FOWJSPONFOU
��

and 
t� 4BGF�IBOEMJOH�PG�DIFNJDBMT�

An overview of the Group’s safety records for the financial year under review is as follows: 

FY2021 Target FY2019 FY2020 FY2021
Accident cases 0 30 14 14

Loss days ≤18 43 37 25

Average loss days per accident - 1.43 2.64 1.79

None of the accidents recorded during FY2021 was categorised as major accidents nor have they resulted in fatalities or 
serious injuries. All accidents recorded were investigated in accordance with our internal procedures, through which process 
improvements were carried out where applicable, to prevent and avoid the recurrence of such incidents. In line with Target 8.8 
of the SDG – Decent Work and Economic Growth, the Group is committed to providing a safe workplace for our employees. 

Contributing to the Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”)

Target 8.8 
Protect labour rights and promote safe and secure working environments for all workers, including 
migrant workers, in particular women migrants, and those in precarious employment

Reference: www.sdgs.un.org/goals/goal8

COVID-19 response

The COVID-19 pandemic continued to affect economies and livelihoods in FY2021. In Malaysia, the federal and state 
governments continue to impose MCOs to contain and prevent the spread of the virus. In SLP Group, led by the Emergency 
Response Team (“ERT”), we regularly keep ourselves up to date with the current situation as well as any new SOPs imposed by 
the governments. Work-from-home working arrangements continued to be practised and we regularly reviewed our workforce 
scheduling and planning at the manufacturing floor. Our engagements with stakeholders such as customers, suppliers, and 
business partners were taken online where possible. We have also held our 16th Annual General Meeting online on 24 June 
2021. 

SUSTAINABILITY 
STATEMENT (CONT’D)
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OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH (CONT’D)

COVID-19 response (Cont’d)

The Group’s in-house COVID-19 prevention SOPs, which have incorporated the SOPs and recommendations by the 
governments, are summarised as follows:

t� SFRVJSJOH�BMM�TUBGG�UP�XFBS�GBDFNBTL�
t� NPOJUPSJOH�BOE�USBDLJOH�CPEZ�UFNQFSBUVSF�
t� QSBDUJTJOH�QIZTJDBM�EJTUBODJOH�
t� EBJMZ�EJTJOGFDUJPO�XJUIJO�UIF�GBDUPSZ�BOE�PGmDF�DPNQPVOE�
t� SFHVMBS�TBOJUJTBUJPO�PG�DPNNFSDJBM�NPUPS�WFIJDMFT�
t� SFNJOEFST�UP�GSFRVFOUMZ�XBTI�BOE�TBOJUJTF�IBOET�
t� NBOEBUPSZ�CJ�XFFLMZ�UFTUJOH�GPS�FNQMPZFFT�VTJOH�3BQJE�5FTU�,JU�	i35,w
�"OUJHFO�5FTU�
t� 401�USBJOJOH�BOE�CSJFmOH�GPS�FNQMPZFFT�WJB�POMJOF�DPNNVOJDBUJPO�	F�H��8IBUT"QQ
��BOE�
t� DPNQVMTPSZ�SFHJTUSBUJPO�WJB�.Z4FKBIUFSB�GPS�FNQMPZFFT�BOE�WJTJUPST�FOUFSJOH�UIF�(SPVQ�T�QSFNJTFT��

The Directors of the Company, at their personal expense, have also provided oximeters to employees for self-monitoring of 
oxygen levels.

It was unfortunate that there were several COVID-19-positive cases among our employees in FY2021. In responding to the 
increasing positive cases, we voluntarily shut down our factory to contain the spread before the closure notice from the 
Ministry of Health was issued. We also established a quarantine centre for employees who were in close contact with COVID-
19-positive employees. Meals for the quarantine centre were provided at the Group’s cost and the ERT team also monitored 
to ensure adherence to SOPs at the quarantine centre. Operations in our Kulim plant was temporarily halted for almost a week 
for disinfection work to be carried out. 

In order to safeguard our employees as soon as possible, the Group also arranged and paid for the COVID-19 vaccination for 
our employees, including the first and second dose, amounting to approximately RM65,000. 

Upholding labour standards

Further to safety and health practices, we also place emphasis on the living condition of our workers. The Group’s 
accommodation for workers complies with the Workers Minimum Standards of Housing & Amenities Act 1990. Our living 
accommodations for foreign workers were also audited by the authorities in 2020. Our Human Resource function reviews the 
Group’s labour practices from time to time. 

HUMAN CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT AND WORKFORCE DIVERSITY 

Human capital is a key capital and asset to the SLP Group. Employees are the driving forces for us to pursue our long-term 
goals and objectives, as well as our ability to continuously innovate new products. We view both professional and personal 
development of our employees as an important aspect to develop our human capital, as well as contributing to elevating 
livelihoods and society. In addition to employee development, we also ensure we uphold equality in the treatment of all 
our employees, respect and appreciate diversity in our workforce, and do not tolerate discrimination against anyone on 
the basis of race, age, religion, gender, nationality, disability, etc. Our non-discrimination policy is formalised in the Group’s 
Employee Handbook and is made known to all employees to ensure they uphold the same. The Group is committed to 
inculcating diversity and non-discrimination in our workplace as well as promoting fair treatment and equal opportunity to all 
our employees. 

As at 31 December 2021, our workforce composition is as follows: 

By Gender Male Female 
Executive Directors 2 2

Managerial Position 7 5

Other Office Employees 7 26

Other Factory Employees 190 22

SUSTAINABILITY 
STATEMENT (CONT’D)
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HUMAN CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT AND WORKFORCE DIVERSITY (CONT’D)

As at 31 December 2021, our workforce composition is as follows: (Cont’d)

By Age < 30 30 – 50 > 50
Executive Directors 0 2 2

Managerial Position 0 6 6

Other Employees 127 104 14

By Ethnicity  Malay Chinese Indian Others 
Executive Directors 0 4 0 0

Managerial Position 1 11 0 0

Other Employees 66 7 22 150

By Nationality Malaysian Non-Malaysian
Executive Directors 4 0

Managerial Position 12 0

Other Employees 95 150

The majority of our factory workforce is made up of male employees which is generally the case in the manufacturing industry, 
as these positions are often labour intensive. For the same reason, our workforce is also made up of mainly younger workers, 
i.e. 50 years old or below, with more than half being less than 30 years old. We have a fairly distributed gender diversity at 
the managerial levels and above. 

We undertake regular engagements with employees to ensure there are adequate platforms for two-way communication 
between the Group and the employees. We also have employee benefits initiatives such as medical health screening, health 
awareness programmes, recognition of long service, increasing employer’s EPF contribution rate based on job grade, 
hospitalisation insurance coverage, and free medical check-up for the Group’s employees and their legal spouses. 

Employee Development

Every year, the Group invests in employee development to upskill employees, enhancing their skills and capability, preparing 
them to take on additional roles and responsibilities, as well as helping employees to realise their potential abilities. 

Training needs of employees are considered considering the Group as a whole, based on functions, as well as on an individual 
basis. During the annual performance appraisal, employees and their respective supervisors also discuss the potential areas 
of improvement and relevant training, where applicable. Employees’ strengths and weaknesses are identified and considered 
in the individual’s training needs analysis. Every year, The Group’s Human Resource Department (“HR”) will prepare a training 
plan for our employees. 

During the financial year under review, the Group recorded a total of 2,475 hours of training attended by our employees. 
Average training hours per employee increased to 9.5 hours per employee as we carried out more online training for our 
employees during the year, compared to the previous year. 

FY2020 FY2021
Training hours 2,840 2,475

Average training hours per employee 8.5 9.5

We believe that day-to-day work is also an important platform for development as well as a source for experience. In this 
regard, we have a mentoring system where direct managers or supervisors are also tasked with the responsibility to provide 
mentorship, support, coaching, and training to their team members. 

SUSTAINABILITY 
STATEMENT (CONT’D)
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LOCAL COMMUNITIES 

In FY2021, the Group continued to carry out its works as a responsible corporate citizen by supporting causes relating to the 
educational and social needs of the local communities, in line with the Group’s policy. 

This year, together with a customer, we co-sponsored the provision and distribution of face masks for adults and kids to the 
local communities including the underprivileged. We completed the distribution of 600 cartons of adult face masks and 400 
cartons of kids’ face masks to orphanages, old folks’ homes, and schools with the assistance of the charity society, Lion Club. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Board views good governance and business ethics as a crucial element towards long-term sustainability and integrity of 
the Group’s business and its people. 

Code of Conduct and Ethics and Whistle Blowing Policy

The Group has established a Code of Conduct and Ethics (“Code”) to set out the ethical values and standards which is 
expected of the Group’s operations and all Directors and employees. Amongst others, This Code takes into consideration 
elements of social responsibilities and the environment, conflict of interest, non-discrimination, safe workforce, anti-bribery 
and corruption, insider trading, money laundering, etc. The Code is communicated to all Board and employees of the Group 
and is available on the corporate website. 

In ensuring the upholding of ethical standards at all levels, SLP also has a whistleblowing mechanism which is formalised via 
its Whistle Blowing Policy. The reporting mechanism aims to encourage whistle-blowers to raise genuine concerns regarding 
unethical business conducts as well as other malpractices without fear of reprisal. The mechanism provides the whistle-blower 
with protection against reprisal and harassment, and it also provides a reporting channel to an Independent Director. The 
Whistle Blowing Policy is available on the corporate website. 

Anti-Bribery and Corruption

An Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policies (“ABCP”) has been established by the Group. The ABCP is applicable to the Board, 
employees, customers as well as suppliers. The ABCP sets out the Group’s zero corruption policy and covers various types 
of bribery and corruption, including gifts, kickbacks, hospitality, charity contribution, and facilitation payments.  In addition 
to due diligence processes through which we assess employees, suppliers, contractors, and business partners, the Group 
also updates and communicates our zero-tolerance against all forms of bribery and corruption before entering into business 
relationships with them. 

The anti-bribery and corruption initiatives implemented by the Group include:

t� FTUBCMJTINFOU�PG�BO�"#$1�UP�TFU�PVU�UIF�(SPVQ�T�i[FSP�UPMFSBODFw�TUBODF�BHBJOTU�BMM�GPSNT�PG�CSJCFSZ�BOE�DPSSVQUJPO�
practices;

t� DPOEVDU�PG�DPSSVQUJPO�SJTL�BTTFTTNFOU�UP�JEFOUJGZ�BDUJWJUJFT�BOE�QPTJUJPOT�XJUI�IJHIFS�DPSSVQUJPO�SJTL�FYQPTVSFT�
t� BOOVBM�SFGSFTIFS�USBJOJOH�PO�UIF�"#$1�GPS�BMM�FNQMPZFFT�
t� DPNNVOJDBUJPO�PG�UIF�(SPVQ�T�TUBODF�BOE�FYQFDUBUJPO�UP�BMM�OFX�TVQQMJFST�BOE�CVTJOFTT�BTTPDJBUFT�WJB�MFUUFS�SFRVJSJOH�

their acknowledgement;
t� JODMVTJPO�PG�BOUJ�CSJCFSZ�BOE�DPSSVQUJPO�SFMBUFE�UFSNT�JO�UIF�(SPVQ�T�OFX�TVQQMJFS�BQQMJDBUJPO�GPSN��BOE
t� JODMVTJPO�PG�UIF�(SPVQ�T�BOUJ�DPSSVQUJPO�NPUUP
� J�F��i8F�BSF�DPNNJUUFE�UP�;FSP�$PSSVQUJPOw�UISPVHIPVU�UIF�(SPVQ�T�

various communication tools, including in email signature, corporate website and other relevant documents.

SUSTAINABILITY 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONT’D)

Anti-Bribery and Corruption (Cont’d)

During the financial year under review, there was no incidence of corruption or bribery or serious breaches against business 
ethics noted or reported.

Please refer to the Group’s corporate governance practices in the Corporate Governance Overview Statement of this Annual 
Report and the Corporate Governance Report 2021 for detailed information. 

The adoption of adequate procedures and relevant efforts to combat bribery and corruption are aligned with Target 16.5 of 
the SDG – Peace, Justice and Strong Institutions.

Contributing to the Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”)

Target 16.5 
Substantially reduce corruption and bribery in all their forms

Reference: www.sdgs.un.org/goals/goal16

CONCLUSION 

As the global and domestic business environment continues to evolve, the Board is aware of its responsibility to understand 
the interest of stakeholders and incorporate long-term sustainability considerations in the Group’s business decisions. The 
Group will continue to manage and monitor the Group’s MSMs, continuously engage with stakeholders and communicate the 
Group’s relevant sustainability directions, priorities, and performance, as appropriate. 

SUSTAINABILITY 
STATEMENT (CONT’D)
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DIRECTORS’ 
RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Board of Directors is required under paragraph 15.26(a) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia to 
issue a statement explaining its responsibility for preparing the annual audited financial statements.

The Directors are required by law to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at the financial year end and of their results and cash flows for the 
financial year then ended.

The Directors consider that, in preparing the financial statements of SLP for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 the 
Group has used appropriate accounting policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgment 
and estimates. The Directors also consider that all applicable Financial Reporting Standards in Malaysia have been complied 
with and confirm that the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company keeps accounting records which disclose with reasonable 
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements 
comply with the provisions of the Companies Act 2016.

This Statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 11 April 2022.
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT 
AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance requires the Board of Directors (‘Board’) to establish a sound risk management 
framework and internal controls system to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the assets of the Group. Pursuant to 
paragraph 15.26 (b) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (‘Bursa Malaysia’), the Board 
of listed issuers is required to include in its Annual Report, a statement on the Group’s state of internal control. The Board 
recognises its responsibilities and the importance of a sound system of Risk Management and Internal Controls.

The Board of Directors (‘Board’) continues with its commitment to maintain sound systems of risk management and internal 
control throughout SLP Resources Berhad and its subsidiaries (‘Group’) and in compliance with the Main Listing Requirements 
and the Statement of Risk Management and Internal Control (Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers) (‘Internal Control 
Guidelines’), the Board is pleased to provide the following statement which outlines the nature and scope of risk management 
and internal control of the Group during the financial year in review.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITY

The Board acknowledges the importance of sound risk management and internal control being embedded into the culture, 
processes and structures of the Group. The systems of internal control cover risk management and financial, organizational, 
operational, project and compliance controls. The Board affirms its overall responsibility for the Group’s systems of internal 
control and for reviewing the effectiveness and efficiency of those systems to ensure its viability and robustness. It should 
be noted, however, that such systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, risks of failure to achieve corporate 
objectives. Inherently, it can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE’S ROLE

The Audit and Risk Management Committee (‘ARMC’) is accountable to the Board for the implementation of the ongoing 
processes in identifying, evaluating, monitoring and reporting of risks and internal control. The Group Managing Director and 
Group Accountant have provided the Board the assurance that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are 
operating adequately and effectively, in all material aspects, to ensure achievement of corporate objectives and strategies, 
during the financial year under review and up to date of this statement.

CONTROL STRUCTURE AND ENVIRONMENT

In furtherance to the Board’s commitment to maintain sound systems of risk management and internal control, the Board 
continues to maintain and implement a structure and environment for the proper conduct of the Group’s business operations 
as follows:

t� 5IF�#PBSE�NFFUT�BU�MFBTU�RVBSUFSMZ�BOE�IBT�TFU�B�TDIFEVMF�PG�NBUUFST�XIJDI�JT�SFRVJSFE�UP�CF�CSPVHIU�UP�JUT�BUUFOUJPO�GPS�
discussion, thus ensuring that it maintains full and effective supervision over appropriate controls. The Group Managing 
Director leads the presentation of board papers and provides explanation of pertinent issues. In addition, the   Board is 
kept updated on the Group’s activities and its operations on a regular basis;

t� "O�PSHBOJ[BUJPO�TUSVDUVSF�XJUI�XFMM�EFmOFE�TDPQFT�PG�SFTQPOTJCJMJUZ
�DMFBS�MJOFT�PG�BDDPVOUBCJMJUZ
�BOE�MFWFMT�PG�EFMFHBUFE�
authority;

t� "�QSPDFTT�PG�IJFSBSDIJDBM�SFQPSUJOH�XIJDI�QSPWJEFT�GPS�B�EPDVNFOUFE�BOE�BVEJUBCMF�USBJM�PG�BDDPVOUBCJMJUZ�

t� "�TFU�PG�EPDVNFOUFE�JOUFSOBM�QPMJDJFT�BOE�QSPDFEVSFT�GPS�PQFSBUJPOBM�BOE�IVNBO�SFTPVSDF�NBOBHFNFOU
�XIJDI�JT�TVCKFDU�
to review and improvement. A documented delegation of authority with clear lines of accountability and responsibility 
serves as a tool of reference in identifying the approving authority for various transactions including matters that  require 
Board’s approval;

t� 3FHVMBS�BOE�SFMFWBOU�JOGPSNBUJPO�QSPWJEFE�CZ�NBOBHFNFOU
�DPWFSJOH�mOBODJBM�BOE�PQFSBUJPOBM�QFSGPSNBODF�BOE�LFZ�
business indicators, for effective monitoring and decision making;

t� 3FHVMBS�WJTJUT�UP�PQFSBUJOH�VOJUT�CZ�NFNCFST�PG�UIF�#PBSE�BOE�TFOJPS�NBOBHFNFOU�
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT 
AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONT’D)

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established risk management practices to safeguard the Group’s business interest from risk events that may 
impede the achievement of business strategy and provide assurance to the Groups’ stakeholders.

The Group, with the support of an independent professional accounting and consulting firm, has implemented the Enterprise 
Risk Management (‘ERM’) processes to identify, assess, monitor, report and mitigate risks impacting the Group’s business and 
supporting activities.

The main components of the Group’s risk governance and structure consists of the Board and the ARMC. The structure allows 
for strategic risk discussions to take place between the Board and the ARMC on a periodical basis. The summary of the 
accountabilities for the Board and the ARMC under the risk governance structure are as follows:

a. Board of Directors
t� 0WFSBMM�SJTL�PWFSTJHIU�SFTQPOTJCJMJUZ�
t� %FUFSNJOFT�UIBU�UIF�QSJODJQBM�SJTLT�BSF�JEFOUJmFE
�BOE�BQQSPQSJBUF�BT�XFMM�BT�SPCVTU�TZTUFNT�BSF�JNQMFNFOUFE�UP�

manage these risks;
t� 3FWJFXT�UIF�BEFRVBDZ�BOE�UIF�JOUFHSJUZ�PG�UIF�(SPVQ�T�JOUFSOBM�DPOUSPM�TZTUFNT�BOE�JOGPSNBUJPO�TZTUFNT
�JODMVEJOH�

systems for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines.

b. Audit and Risk Management Committee
t� 3FWJFXT�BOE�FOEPSTFT�QPMJDJFT�BOE�GSBNFXPSLT�BOE�PUIFS�LFZ�DPNQPOFOUT�PG�SJTL�NBOBHFNFOU�GPS�JNQMFNFOUBUJPO�

within the Group;
t� 3FWJFXT�BOE�FOEPSTFT�UIF�DPSQPSBUF�SJTL�QSPmMF�GPS�UIF�(SPVQ
�BOE�UIF�QSPHSFTT�PG�POHPJOH�SJTL�NBOBHFNFOU�

activities to identify, evaluate, monitor and manage critical risks;
t� 0WFSTFFT�UIF�FGGFDUJWF�JNQMFNFOUBUJPO�PG�SJTL�QPMJDJFT�BOE�HVJEFMJOFT
�&3.�BOE�DVMUJWBUJPO�PG�SJTL�NBOBHFNFOU�

culture within the organization;
t� 3FWJFXT�BOE�NPOJUPST�QFSJPEJDBMMZ�UIF�TUBUVT�PG�UIF�(SPVQ�T�QSJODJQBM�SJTLT�BOE�UIFJS�NJUJHBUJPO�BDUJPOT�BOE�VQEBUF�

the Board and ARMC accordingly.

During the year, the Group has identified new risks, reviewed and updated the risk register. The likelihood and impact of the 
risks have been assessed and appropriate mitigation actions have been taken for the risks identified.

Risk awareness sessions have been incorporated in the monthly management meetings attended by the Group’s senior and 
middle management and key employees. This is part of the ongoing initiative to sustain risk awareness and risk management 
capabilities.

In essence, Risk Management is conducted through an ongoing process between the Board, the Management and employees 
in the Group. The Group believes that the risk management framework and guidelines adopted and implemented have 
strengthened the risk ownership and risk management culture amongst the employees.
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Board acknowledges the importance of the internal audit function and has engaged the services of an independent 
professional accounting and consulting firm, Messrs. JWC Consulting Sdn Bhd, to provide much of the assurance it requires 
regarding the effectiveness as well as the adequacy and integrity of the Group’s systems of internal control.

The internal audit adopts a risk-based approach in developing its audit plan which addresses the core business processes of 
the Group based on their risk profile. Scheduled internal audits are carried out by the internal auditors based on the audit plan 
presented to and approved by the ARMC.

The ARMC has full and direct access to the internal auditors and the ARMC receives reports on all internal audits performed 
(including a review on the Adequate Procedures of the Group). This is to establish an internal audit function which is independent 
of activities it audits. Significant findings and recommendations for improvement are highlighted to Management and the 
ARMC, with periodic follow-up of the implementation of action plans. The Management is responsible for ensuring that 
corrective actions were implemented accordingly.

Based on the internal auditors’ reports for the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has reasonable assurance 
that the Group’s systems of internal control are generally adequate and appear to be working satisfactorily. A number of 
minor internal control weaknesses were identified during the financial year, all of which have been, or are being, addressed. 
None of the weaknesses have resulted in any material losses, contingencies or uncertainties that would require disclosure in 
the Group’s annual report.

The Board continues to review and implement measures to strengthen the internal control environment of the Group.

This statement is issued in accordance with a resolution of the Directors dated 11 April 2022.

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT 
AND INTERNAL CONTROL (CONT’D)
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE REPORT

1.  MEMBERS

The Audit and Risk Management Committee (“ARMC”) currently comprises entirely Non-Executive Directors with all of 
the members being independent as follows:

Name Position

Mary Geraldine Phipps Chairman, Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Chan Wah Chong Member, Independent Non-Executive Director

Law Cheng Lock Member, Independent Non-Executive Director

Leow Chan Khiang (1) Member, Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Note : 1. Resigned as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director and member of ARMC on 1 March 2021.

Mary Geraldine Phipps is a Chartered Accountant registered with Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA) having 
qualified as a certified Public Accountant, and a Fellow of the Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia (CTIM). The ARMC, 
therefore, meets the requirements of Paragraph 15.09(1) of the MMLR of Bursa Securities.

2.  ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, a total of six (6) ARMC meetings were held. The details of attendance 
of each member of the Committee were as follows:

Directors Attendance

Mary Geraldine Phipps 6/6

Chan Wah Chong 6/6

Law Cheng Lock 6/6

Leow Chan Khiang 2/2

3.  TERMS OF REFERENCE

As provided for in Bursa’s Main Market Listing Requirements, the Committee’s Terms of Reference are available on the 
Company’s website www.sinliplas.com.my.

4.  SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the activities undertaken by the Committee included the following:

Financial reporting

(i)  Reviewed the quarterly unaudited financial results and the annual audited financial statements for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2021 of the Group and of the Company prior to recommending them for approval by the 
Board of Directors;

(ii)  Management had reported to the ARMC that except for the transactions as disclosed under Note 26 of the 
Audited Financial Statements, there is no other related party transaction entered into by the Group and the 
Company during the year; and

(iii)  Monitored the compliance requirements in line with new updates of Bursa Securities, Securities Commission, 
MASB and other legal and regulatory bodies.

http://www.sinliplas.com.my
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4.  SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (CONT’D)

Annual report

Reviewed the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control for inclusion in the Annual Report.

Risk management and assessment

Reviewed and discussed with management the outcome of the exercise to identify, evaluate and manage significant 
strategic, operational and financial risks faced by the Group.

External audit

(i)  Reviewed with external auditors, the draft Audited Financial Statements of the Group and of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2021; 

(ii)  Reviewed the external auditors’ scope of work and the audit plan for the financial year ended 31 December 2021;
(iii)  Reviewed with the external auditors the results of the annual audit and management letter together with 

Management’s response to the findings of the external auditors for the financial year ended 31 December 2021; 
and

(iv)  Evaluated the performance and independence of the external auditors and made recommendations to the Board 
of Directors on their re-appointment and remuneration.

Internal audit

(i)  Reviewed the annual audit plan for FY2021 to ensure adequate scope, coverage of the activities of the Group and 
of the Company; and

(ii)  Reviewed the Internal Auditors reports, audit recommendations and Management’s responses to these 
recommendations.

Other duties

(i)  Reviewed the Audit and Risk Management Committee Report, Statement on Risk Management and Internal 
Control, Corporate Governance Overview Statement and Sustainability Statement before submission to the Board 
of Directors for consideration and approval for inclusion in the Company’s Annual Report for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2021.

5.  TRAINING

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the ARMC Chairman and the members attended the following 
training programmes, seminars, forums and discussions relating to business, corporate governance, law, accounting, 
finance, taxation and economy to enhance their knowledge to enable them to discharge their duties more effectively:

t� .#34�GPS�QSFQBSFST��'JOBODJBM�4UBUFNFOU
t� .BOBHJOH�)VNBO�3JHIUT��8IZ�JT�JU�JNQPSUBOU�UP�DPSQPSBUJPOT
t� 47%1�5BY�"VEJUT���*OWFTUJHBUJPOT��8IBU�ZPV�OFFE�UP�LOPX��"�EJBMPHVF�XJUI�UIF�$&0�PG�*3#
t� 'VUVSF�'JU�1SPGFTTJPOBMT�%JHJUBM�3FWPMVUJPO��8IBU�EPFT�UIF�GVUVSF�IPME 
t� *OUFSOBM�CSJFmOH�PO�"#$�QPMJDZ
t� .BMBZTJBO�5SBOTGFS�1SJDJOH�%FWFMPQNFOUT
t� .*$1"�,1.(�$PNQMJNFOUBSZ�8FCJOBS���)PX�%JHJUBMJTBUJPO�BOE�%BUB�"OBMZUJDT�$BO�)FMQ�:PV�%P�8POEFST�JO�:PVS�

Business
t� .BMBZTJBO�$PEF�PG�$PSQPSBUF�(PWFSOBODF
t� 5PXBSE�B�DPNQSFIFOTJWF�TZTUFN�PG�DPSQPSBUF�SFQPSUJOH�o�$PNNVOJDBUJPO�PG�MPOH�UFSN�WBMVF�DSFBUJPO
t� 8FCJOBS���&OIBODFNFOUT�UP�$MJNBUF�$IBOHF�BTTFTTNFOU�XJUIJO�&4(�3BUJOHT�BOE�'54&�(PPE�JOEFYFT
t� 8FCJOBS���4FUUJOH�TUBOEBSET�JO�mMN�PSJFOUBUJPO
t� ,1.(�#PBSE�-FBEFSTIJQ�$FOUFS�&YDMVTJWF�o�64�'PSDFE�-BCPS�-FHJTMBUJPO��*NQBDU�PO�.BMBZTJB
t� .BMBZTJBO�$PEF�PG�$PSQPSBUF�(PWFSOBODF�	6QEBUFE�����

t� #VSTB�4VTUBJOBCJMJUZ�3FQPSUJOH�8PSLTIPQ��4DPQF���.BUFSJBMJUZ�JO�4VTUBJOBCJMJUZ�3FQPSUJOH�GPS�1SBDUJUJPOFST
t� $POnJDU�PG�*OUFSFTU���3FMBUFE�1BSUZ�5SBOTBDUJPOT
t� 44.�/BUJPOBM�$POGFSFODF������o�(PWFSOJOH�VOEFS�OFX�OPSNBM

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE REPORT (CONT’D)
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5.  TRAINING (CONT’D)

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the ARMC Chairman and the members attended the following 
training programmes, seminars, forums and discussions relating to business, corporate governance, law, accounting, 
finance, taxation and economy to enhance their knowledge to enable them to discharge their duties more effectively: 
(Cont’d)

t� 8FCJOBS���%SJWJOH�DPOTJTUFODZ�JO�&4(�EJTDMPTVSFT
t� 64�'PSDFE�-BCPVS�-FHJTMBUJPO��*NQBDU�PO�$PSQPSBUF�.BMBZTJB
t� 0&$%�(���*ODMVTJWF�'SBNFXPSL�o�#&1T�����*NQMFNFOUBUJPO�1MBO
t� ,1.(�"TJB�1BDJmD�#PBSE�-FBEFSTIJQ���"TTVSBODF�4VNNJU�����
t� #VSTB�.BMBZTJB�$(�(VJEF�&EJUJPO�����'PDVT�(SPVQ�EJTDVTTJPO
t� 7BMVF�$SFBUJPO�4USBUFHJFT

6.  INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Group has outsourced its internal audit function to an independent professional accounting and consulting firm, 
Messrs JWC Consulting Sdn Bhd whose primary responsibility is to independently assess and report to the Board of 
Directors, through the ARMC, the system of internal control of the Group. The internal audit functions are as set out in 
the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control on pages 43 to 45 of the Annual Report.

Messrs JWC Consulting Sdn. Bhd. is a member of the Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia. Details of the lead Internal 
Auditors from Messrs JWC Consulting Sdn Bhd that carried out the internal audit work for the financial year ended 31 
December 2021 are as follows:

Name Qualifications

Joyce Wong Director-In-Charge Member of Malaysian Institute of Accountants and Certified Practising 
Accountants, Australia

During the financial year, the Internal Auditors carried out internal audit reviews based on an annual audit plan approved 
by the ARMC to assess the adequacy and integrity of the system of internal control as established by the Management, 
so as to provide reasonable assurance that:

t� UIF�TZTUFN�PG�JOUFSOBM�DPOUSPM�DPOUJOVFT�UP�PQFSBUF�TBUJTGBDUPSJMZ�BOE�FGGFDUJWFMZ�
t� BTTFUT�BOE�SFTPVSDFT�BSF�TBGFHVBSEFE�
t� JOUFHSJUZ�PG�SFDPSET�BOE�JOGPSNBUJPO�JT�QSPUFDUFE�
t� JOUFSOBM�QPMJDJFT
�QSPDFEVSFT�BOE�TUBOEBSET�BSF�BEIFSFE�UP��BOE
t� BQQMJDBCMF�SVMFT�BOE�SFHVMBUJPOT�BSF�DPNQMJFE�XJUI�

The scope of work, as approved by the ARMC, was essentially based on the risk profiles of companies in the Group, 
where areas of higher risk were included for internal audit. The internal audit covered key operational, financial and 
compliance controls, including the risk management process deployed by Management. Audit findings and areas of 
concern that need improvements were highlighted in the Internal Auditors reports and reviewed at the ARMC meetings.

The relevant Management members were made responsible for ensuring that corrective actions on reported weaknesses 
were taken within the required time frames. The Internal Auditors conducted follow-up audits on key controls to ensure 
that the corrective actions were implemented appropriately. During the Board of Directors meetings, the Chairman of 
the ARMC briefed the Board on audit matters and the minutes of the ARMC meetings were duly noted by the Board.

The cost incurred in outsourcing the internal audit function to an independent professional firm during the financial year 
amounted to approximately RM26,296.

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 11 April 2022.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE REPORT (CONT’D)
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The information disclosed below is in compliance with the Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”).

1. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The Company and its subsidiaries do not have any material contracts involving Directors and major shareholders.

2. AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT SERVICES

During the financial year, the audit fees and non-audit fees paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors by the 
Company and by the Group incurred for services rendered for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 are as 
follows:-

Type of Fees Company (RM) Group (RM)

Audit Fees 30,000 126,000

Non-Audit Fees

- KPMG PLT 4,000 4,000

- Local affiliate of KPMG PLT 3,600 27,600

3. EMPLOYEES SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The Group did not offer any share scheme for employees during the financial year under review.

4. INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The internal audit function was outsourced and the cost incurred for the internal audit function in respect of the financial 
year under review was RM26,296.

5. RECURRENT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS OF REVENUE OR TRADING NATURE

Details of the recurrent related party transactions of revenue nature have been duly disclosed in Note 26 of the Notes 
to the Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company is proposing to seek a renewal shareholders’ mandate at its forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
pursuant to paragraph 10.09 of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad’s Main Market Listing Requirements for recurrent 
related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature. Details of the proposals are being disclosed in the Circular to 
Shareholders dated 28 April 2022.

ADDITIONAL 
COMPLIANCE INFORMATION
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DIRECTORS’ 
REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding activities, whilst the principal activities of the subsidiaries are as 
stated in Note 6 to the financial statements. 

There has been no significant change in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

SUBSIDIARIES 

The details of the Company’s subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS

Group
RM

Company
RM

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 17,726,467 17,214,742

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year under review except as disclosed 
in the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

Since the end of the previous financial year, the amount of dividends paid by the Company were as follows :

i) in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2020 as reported in the Directors’ Report of that year :

t� B�UIJSE�JOUFSJN�EJWJEFOE�PG�����TFO�QFS�PSEJOBSZ�TIBSF�UPUBMMJOH�3.�
���
����EFDMBSFE�PO���/PWFNCFS������BOE�
paid on 6 January 2021; and

t� B�GPVSUI�JOUFSJN�EJWJEFOE�PG�����TFO�QFS�PSEJOBSZ�TIBSF�UPUBMMJOH�3.�
���
����EFDMBSFE�PO����'FCSVBSZ������BOE�
paid on 13 April 2021.

ii)  in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2021 :

t� B�mSTU�JOUFSJN�EJWJEFOE�PG�����TFO�QFS�PSEJOBSZ�TIBSF�UPUBMMJOH�3.�
���
����EFDMBSFE�PO���.BZ������BOE�QBJE�PO���
July 2021; 

t� B�TFDPOE�JOUFSJN�EJWJEFOE�PG�����TFO�QFS�PSEJOBSZ�TIBSF�UPUBMMJOH�3.�
���
����EFDMBSFE�PO���"VHVTU������BOE�QBJE�
on 7 October 2021; and

t� B�UIJSE�JOUFSJN�EJWJEFOE�PG�����TFO�QFS�PSEJOBSZ�TIBSF�UPUBMMJOH�3.�
���
����EFDMBSFE�PO���/PWFNCFS������BOE�
paid on 6 January 2022.

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the Company declared a fourth interim dividend of 1.5 sen per ordinary share 
totalling RM4,754,399 in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2021 on 25 February 2022 and payable on 13 April 
2022.

The Directors do not recommend any final dividend to be paid for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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DIRECTORS’ 
REPORT (CONT’D)

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Directors who served during the financial year until the date of this report are:

Chan Wah Chong 
Khaw Khoon Tee
Khaw Choon Choon
Khaw Choon Hoong  
Khaw Seang Chuan 
Law Cheng Lock   
Mary Geraldine Phipps 
Leow Chan Khiang (Resigned on 1 March 2021) 

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES 

Directors of the subsidiaries who served during the financial year until the date of this report are : 

Khaw Choon Choon 
Khaw Choon Hoong
Khaw Khoon Tee
Khaw Seang Chuan

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

The interests and deemed interests in the shares of the Company of those who were Directors at financial year end (including 
the interests of the spouses or children of the Directors who themselves are not Directors of the Company) as recorded in the 
Register of Directors’ Shareholdings are as follows :

Number of ordinary shares

At 
1.1.2021 Bought (Sold) Transfer 

At 
31.12.2021

Khaw Khoon Tee

Interest in the Company:

 - own 31,404,478 - - - 31,404,478

 - others # 2,757,998 - - - 2,757,998

Deemed interest in the Company:

 - own 128,652,059   - - - 128,652,059

Khaw Seang Chuan

Interest in the Company:

 - own 49,376,284 425,000 - (2,312,199) 47,489,085

 - others # 232,799 100,000 - 2,312,199 2,644,998

Deemed interest in the Company:

 - own 128,652,059 - - - 128,652,059

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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DIRECTORS’ 
REPORT (CONT’D)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (CONT’D)

The interests and deemed interests in the shares of the Company of those who were Directors at financial year end (including 
the interests of the spouses or children of the Directors who themselves are not Directors of the Company) as recorded in the 
Register of Directors’ Shareholdings are as follows : (Cont’d)

Number of ordinary shares

At 
1.1.2021 Bought (Sold) Transfer 

At 
31.12.2021

Khaw Choon Hoong

Interest in the Company:

 - own 3,929,499 - - - 3,929,499

Deemed interest in the Company:

 - own 128,652,059 - - - 128,652,059

Khaw Choon Choon

Interest in the Company:

 - own 1,853,199 - - - 1,853,199

 - others # 50,000 50,000 - - 100,000

Mary Geraldine Phipps

Interest in the Company:

 - own 55,999 - - - 55,999

# These are shares held in the name of the spouse and children (who themselves are not Directors of the Company) and 
are regarded as interests of the Director in accordance with Section 59(11)(c) of the Companies Act 2016.

By virtue of their interests in the shares of the Company, Mr. Khaw Khoon Tee, Mr. Khaw Seang Chuan and Ms. Khaw Choon 
Hoong are also deemed interested in the shares of the subsidiaries during the financial year to the extent that the Company 
has an interest.

None of the other Directors holding office at 31 December 2021 had any interest in the ordinary shares of the Company 
during the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS 

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received nor become entitled to receive any 
benefit (other than those fees and other benefits included in the aggregate amount of remuneration received or due and 
receivable by Directors as shown in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related 
company with the Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a 
substantial financial interest other than as disclosed in Note 26 to the financial statements.

There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year which had the object of enabling Directors of the 
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body 
corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ 
REPORT (CONT’D)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

There were no changes in the issued and paid-up capital of the Company and no debentures were issued during the financial 
year.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE COSTS

During the financial year, the total amount of premium paid for insurance effected for Directors and officers of the Group and 
of the Company was RM8,119.

There was no indemnity given to or insurance effected for the auditors of the Company.

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES 

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial year.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION 

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps to 
ascertain that :

i) all known bad debts have been written off and adequate provision made for doubtful debts,  and 

ii) any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business have been written down to an 
amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances :

i) that would render the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts in the Group 
and in the Company inadequate to any substantial extent, or 

ii) that would render the value attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
misleading, or 

iii) which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and 
of the Company misleading or inappropriate, or  

iv) not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements that would render any amount stated in the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company misleading. 

At the date of this report, there does not exist :

i) any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year and which 
secures the liabilities of any other person, or  

ii) any contingent liability in respect of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial 
year.  

No contingent liability or other liability of any company in the Group has become enforceable, or is likely to become 
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will 
or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial performance of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 
December 2021 have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature nor 
has any such item, transaction or event occurred in the interval between the end of that financial year and the date of this 
report.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENT 

The details of such event are disclosed in Note 29 to the financial statements. 

AUDITORS

The auditors, KPMG PLT, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.

The auditors’ remuneration is disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors :

…………………………………..

Khaw Khoon Tee

Director 

…………………………………..

Khaw Seang Chuan

Director 

Penang,

Date : 11 April 2022 

DIRECTORS’ 
REPORT (CONT’D)
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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Group Company

Note
 2021

RM
2020

RM
 2021

RM
2020

RM

Assets

 Property, plant and equipment 3 61,944,037 65,363,751 - -

 Right-of-use assets 4 9,382,392 10,024,396     -     -

 Intangible assets 5 8,580 19,910     -     -

 Investments in subsidiaries 6 - - 79,836,032 90,226,082

Total non-current assets 71,335,009 75,408,057 79,836,032 90,226,082

 Inventories 7 35,547,671 36,377,014   -     -

 Trade and other receivables 8 31,334,340 29,718,753 3,853,000 3,003,000

 Current tax assets 373,663 557,935 8,638 8,564

 Derivative financial assets 15 3,791     -         -         -

 Cash and cash equivalents 9 77,152,544 74,368,900 35,286,619 25,961,798

144,412,009 141,022,602 39,148,257 28,973,362

 Asset classified as held for sale 10 860,639     -         -         -

Total current assets 145,272,648 141,022,602 39,148,257 28,973,362

Total assets 216,607,657 216,430,659 118,984,289 119,199,444

Equity

Share capital 11 113,680,000 113,680,000 113,680,000 113,680,000

Reserves 12 71,630,185 68,114,107 465,100 683,155

Total equity attributable to 
 owners of the Company 185,310,185 181,794,107 114,145,100 114,363,155

STATEMENTS OF 
FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2021
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Group Company 

Note
2021

RM
2020

RM
2021

RM
2020

RM

Liabilities

 Deferred tax liabilities 13 9,388,000 8,222,000 - -

Total non-current liability 9,388,000 8,222,000 - -

 Trade and other payables 14 21,482,470 25,179,472 4,839,189 4,836,289

 Derivative financial liabilities 15 - 80,744 - -

 Current tax liabilities 427,002 1,154,336 - -

Total current liabilities 21,909,472 26,414,552 4,839,189 4,836,289

Total liabilities 31,297,472 34,636,552 4,839,189 4,836,289

Total equity and liabilities 216,607,657 216,430,659 118,984,289 119,199,444

The notes on pages 67 to 117 are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF 
FINANCIAL POSITION (CONT’D)
As at 31 December 2021
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Group Company 

Note
2021

RM
2020

RM
2021

RM
2020

RM

Revenue 16 168,948,889 146,992,774 17,100,000 16,925,000

 

Changes in work-in-progress 
 and manufactured inventories 2,052,329 1,495,698 - -

Raw materials and consumables used (120,656,299) (96,821,826) - -

Employee benefits expenses 17 (11,672,726) (12,762,017) (5,000) (4,000)

Depreciation of property, 
 plant and equipment  3 (6,130,684) (6,693,326) - -

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 4 (149,992) (153,189) - -

Net loss on impairment 
 of financial instruments 18 (75,182) (25,307)  -  -

Other expenses (11,613,227) (11,873,882) (352,402) (1,364,025)

Other income 1,869,525 1,391,213 -    -

Results from operating activities 22,572,633 21,550,138 16,742,598 15,556,975

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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Group Company 

Note
2021

RM
2020

RM
2021

RM
2020

RM

Finance income 18 727,504 934,739 476,225 431,836

Profit before tax 18 23,300,137 22,484,877 17,218,823 15,988,811

Tax expense 20 (5,573,670) (6,015,488) (4,081) (1,225)

Profit for the year attributable 
 to owners of the Company 17,726,467 16,469,389 17,214,742 15,987,586

Other comprehensive 
 income/(expense), net of tax

Item that will not be 
 reclassified subsequently
 to profit or loss

 - Net change in fair value of 
 equity instruments designated 
 at fair value through 
 other comprehensive income - 4,567 - -

21 - 4,567 - -

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONT’D)
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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Group Company 

Note
2021

RM
2020

RM
2021

RM
2020

RM

Item that is or may be reclassified 
 subsequently to profit or loss

- Foreign currency 
 translation differences 3,222,408 (1,553,058) - -

21 3,222,408 (1,553,058) - -

Total other comprehensive income/
 (expense) for the year, net of tax 21 3,222,408 (1,548,491) - -

Total comprehensive income 
 for the year attributable to 
 owners of the Company 20,948,875 14,920,898 17,214,742 15,987,586

Basic/Diluted earnings per 
 ordinary share (sen) 22 5.59 5.20 - -

The notes on pages 67 to 117 are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONT’D)
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONT’D)
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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STATEMENT OF 
CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Note

Share
capital

RM

Distributable
Retained 
earnings

RM

Total
equity

RM

Company

At 1 January 2020 113,680,000 2,128,366 115,808,366

Profit for the year representing total 
 comprehensive income for the year - 15,987,586 15,987,586

Distributions to and transactions with 
 owners of the Company

- Dividends to owners of the Company 23 - (17,432,797) (17,432,797)

At 31 December 2020/ 1 January 2021 113,680,000 683,155 114,363,155

Profit for the year representing total 
 comprehensive income for the year - 17,214,742 17,214,742

Distributions to and transactions with 
 owners of the Company

 - Dividends to owners of the Company 23  - (17,432,797) (17,432,797)

At 31 December 2021 113,680,000 465,100 114,145,100

Note 11 Note 12

The notes on pages 67 to 117 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Group Company

Note
2021

RM
2020

RM
2021

RM
2020

RM

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax 23,300,137 22,484,877 17,218,823 15,988,811

 Adjustments for :

 Depreciation of property, plant 
 and equipment 3 6,130,684 6,693,326 - -

 Depreciation of right-of-use assets 4 149,992 153,189 - -

 Gain on disposal of plant
 and equipment 18 (122,109) (71,216) - -

 Impairment loss on investment in 
 a subsidiary 18 - - - 1,024,335

 Impairment loss 
 on trade receivables 18 75,182 25,307 - -

 Impairment loss on intangible assets 18 11,330 - - -

 Plant and equipment written off 18 51 1 - -

 Dividend income 18 - (2,400) (17,100,000) (16,925,000)

 Finance income 18 (727,504) (934,739) (476,225) (431,836)

Operating profit/(loss) before changes 
 in working capital 28,817,763 28,348,345 (357,402) (343,690)

STATEMENTS OF 
CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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Group Company

Note
2021

RM
2020

RM
2021

RM
2020

RM

 Changes in working capital :

 Inventories 1,386,778 (7,239,922) - -

 Trade and other receivables (1,307,315) (5,632,480) - -

 Trade and other payables (4,479,699) 5,815,058 2,900 2,218

 Cash generated from/(used in) 
 operations 24,417,527 21,291,001 (354,502) (341,472)

 Dividends received - - 16,250,000 18,375,000

 Tax paid (4,950,732) (3,592,609) (4,155) (4,411)

 Net cash from operating activities 19,466,795 17,698,392 15,891,343 18,029,117

Cash flows from investing activities

 Acquisition of property, plant
  and equipment 3 (882,789) (1,159,798) - -

 Capital distribution from a subsidiary - - 10,390,050 -

 Proceeds from disposal of 
 other investments - 151,567 - -

 Proceeds from disposal of plant 
 and equipment 130,000 78,300 - -

 Dividend received - 2,400 - -

 Interest received 727,504 934,739 476,225 431,836

Net cash (used in)/
 from investing activities (25,285) 7,208 10,866,275 431,836

STATEMENTS OF 
CASH FLOWS (CONT’D)
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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Group Company

Note
2021

RM
2020

RM
2021

RM
2020

RM

Cash flows from financing activity

 Dividends paid to owners of 
 the Company (17,432,797) (17,432,797) (17,432,797) (17,432,797)

 Net cash used in financing activity (17,432,797) (17,432,797) (17,432,797) (17,432,797)

Net increase in 
 cash and cash equivalents 2,008,713 272,803 9,324,821 1,028,156

Effect of foreign exchange rate 
 fluctuations on cash held 613,373 (79,799)   -    -

Cash and cash equivalents 
 at 1 January 74,368,900 74,175,896 25,961,798 24,933,642

Cash and cash equivalents at 
31 December 9 76,990,986 74,368,900 35,286,619 25,961,798

Cash outflows for leases as a lessee 

Included in net cash from 
 operating activities

Payment relating to short-term leases 18 118,930 115,080 - -

Payment relating to leases of 
 low-value assets 18 7,704 7,153 - -

Total cash outflows for leases 126,634 122,233 - -

The notes on pages 67 to 117 are an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF 
CASH FLOWS (CONT’D)
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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SLP Resources Berhad is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and is listed on the Main 
Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The addresses of the principal place of business and registered office of the 
Company are as follows :

Principal place of business

Plot 1, Lot 57-A
Lorong Perusahaan 5
Kulim Industrial Estate
09000 Kulim
Kedah

Registered office

Suite 12-A, Level 12 Menara Northam
No. 55, Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah
10050 George Town
Penang

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 comprise the 
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group” and individually referred to as “Group entities”).

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding activities, whilst the principal activities of the subsidiaries are as 
stated in Note 6 to the financial statements.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 11 April 2022. 

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian 
Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the 
Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. 

The following are accounting standards, interpretations and amendments of the MFRSs that have been issued 
by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) but have not been adopted by the Group and the 
Company :

MFRSs, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

•	 Amendment to MFRS 16, Leases – Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

MFRSs, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

•	 Amendments to MFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (Annual 
Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018-2020) 

•	 Amendments to MFRS 3, Business Combinations - Reference to the Conceptual Framework
•	 Amendments to MFRS 9, Financial Instruments (Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018-2020)
•	 Amendments to Illustrative Examples accompanying MFRS 16, Leases (Annual Improvements to MFRS 

Standards 2018-2020) 
•	 Amendments to MFRS 116, Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use
•	 Amendments to MFRS 137, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Onerous Contracts - 

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
•	 Amendments to MFRS 141, Agriculture (Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018-2020)

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2021
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)

(a) Statement of compliance (Cont’d)

MFRSs, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

•	 MFRS 17, Insurance Contracts
•	 Amendments to MFRS 17, Insurance Contracts – Initial application of MFRS 17 and MFRS 9 – Comparative 

Information
•	 Amendments to MFRS 101, Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification of Liabilities as Current or 

Non-current and Disclosures of Accounting Policies
•	 Amendments to MFRS 108, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors – Definition 

of Accounting Estimates
•	 Amendments to MFRS 112, Income Taxes – Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a 

Single Transaction

MFRSs, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date yet to 
be confirmed

•	 Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and MFRS 128, Investments in Associates and 
Joint Ventures – Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The Group and the Company plan to apply the abovementioned amendments, where applicable in the respective 
financial years when the abovementioned amendments become effective.

The Group and the Company do not plan to apply MFRS 17 and amendments to MFRS 17 that are effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 as it is not applicable to the Group and the Company.

The initial application of the amendments is not expected to have any material financial impacts to the current 
period and prior period financial statements of the Group and of the Company. 

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis other than as disclosed in Note 2 to the 
financial statements.

(c) Functional and presentation currencies

These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the Company’s functional currency. 

The functional currency of a subsidiary, Sinliplas Holding Sdn. Bhd. (“SHSB”) is United States Dollar (“USD”), being 
the currency that most faithfully reflects the economic substance of the underlying events of the subsidiary. The 
financial statements of SHSB are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), being the currency of the country in which 
the subsidiary is incorporated and domiciled.

All financial information is presented in RM, unless otherwise stated.

(d)  Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with MFRSs requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies 
that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements other than those disclosed in 
the following notes :

t� /PUF���o�JOWFOUPSJFT��BOE
t� /PUF������o�NFBTVSFNFOU�PG�FYQFDUFE�DSFEJU�MPTT

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these financial 
statements and have been applied consistently by Group entities, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation 

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities, including structure entities, controlled by the Company. The financial statements 
of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences 
until the date that control ceases.  

The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with 
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Potential voting rights 
are considered when assessing control only when such rights are substantive. The Group also considers it 
has de facto power over an investee when, despite not having the majority of voting rights, it has the current 
ability to direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect the investee’s return.

Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less any 
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of investment 
includes transaction costs. 

(ii) Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method from the acquisition date, which is the 
date on which control is transferred to the Group.

For new acquisitions, the Group measures the cost of goodwill at the acquisition date as:

t� UIF�GBJS�WBMVF�PG�UIF�DPOTJEFSBUJPO�USBOTGFSSFE��QMVT
t� UIF�SFDPHOJTFE�BNPVOU�PG�BOZ�OPO�DPOUSPMMJOH�JOUFSFTUT�JO�UIF�BDRVJSFF��QMVT
t� JG�UIF�CVTJOFTT�DPNCJOBUJPO�JT�BDIJFWFE�JO�TUBHFT
�UIF�GBJS�WBMVF�PG�UIF�FYJTUJOH�FRVJUZ�JOUFSFTU�JO�UIF�

acquiree; less
t� UIF� OFU� SFDPHOJTFE� BNPVOU� 	HFOFSBMMZ� GBJS� WBMVF
� PG� UIF� JEFOUJmBCMF� BTTFUT� BDRVJSFE� BOE� MJBCJMJUJFT�

assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

For each business combination, the Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling interests in the 
acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the 
acquisition date.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group 
incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

(iii) Loss of control

Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the former 
subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the former subsidiary 
from the consolidated statement of financial position. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is 
recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the former subsidiary, then such interest is 
measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity accounted 
investee or as a financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.  
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

(iv) Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period, being the equity in a subsidiary not attributable 
directly or indirectly to the equity holders of the Company, are presented in the consolidated statement 
of financial position and statement of changes in equity within equity, separately from equity attributable 
to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group is presented in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the profit or loss 
and the comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests and owners of the Company.

Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests 
even if doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance. 

(v) Transactions eliminated on consolidation 
 

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group 
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. 

(b) Foreign currency 

(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at 
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period are 
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.  

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are not retranslated at the end of the 
reporting period, except for those that are measured at fair value which are retranslated to the functional 
currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss, except for differences 
arising on the retranslation of equity instruments where they are measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income or a financial instrument designated as a cash flow hedge, which are recognised in 
other comprehensive income.

In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to 
a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains 
and losses arising from such a monetary item are considered to form part of a net investment in a foreign 
operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income, and are presented in the foreign currency 
translation reserve (“FCTR”) in equity.

(ii) Operations denominated in functional currencies other than Ringgit Malaysia

The assets and liabilities of operations denominated in functional currencies other than RM, including 
goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to RM at exchange rates at the end 
of the reporting period, except for goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from business combinations 
before 1 January 2011 (the date where the Group first adopted MFRS) which are treated as assets and 
liabilities of the Company. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to RM at exchange 
rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the FCTR in 
equity. However, if the operation is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary, then the relevant proportionate share of 
the translation difference is allocated to the non-controlling interests. When a foreign operation is disposed 
of such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the FCTR related to 
that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the 
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(c) Financial instruments

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the statements of financial position when, and only 
when, the Group or the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without significant financing component) or a financial liability 
is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issuance.  A trade receivable without a significant 
financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

An embedded derivative is recognised separately from the host contract where the host contract is not 
a financial asset, and accounted for separately if, and only if, the derivative is not closely related to the 
economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and the host contract is not measured at fair value 
through profit or loss.  The host contract, in the event an embedded derivative is recognised separately, is 
accounted for in accordance with policy applicable to the nature of the host contract.

(ii) Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

Categories of financial assets are determined on initial recognition and are not reclassified subsequent to 
their initial recognition unless the Group or the Company changes its business model for managing financial 
assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period 
following the change of the business model.

(a) Amortised cost

Amortised cost category comprises financial assets that are held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. The financial assets are not designated as fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent 
to initial recognition, these financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange 
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

Interest income is recognised by applying effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount except 
for credit impaired financial assets (see Note 2(i)(i)) where the effective interest rate is applied to the 
amortised cost.

(b) Fair value through other comprehensive income

Equity investments

This category comprises investment in equity that is not held for trading, and the Group and the 
Company irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in other 
comprehensive income. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. Dividends are 
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the 
cost of investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. On 
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are not reclassified to 
profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(c) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(ii) Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

(c) Fair value through profit or loss 

All financial assets not measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income 
as described above are measured at fair value through profit or loss. This includes derivative financial 
assets (except for a derivative that is a designated and effective hedging instrument). On initial 
recognition, the Group or the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise 
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 
income as at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting 
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at their fair 
value. Net gains or losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

All financial assets, except for those measured at fair value through profit or loss and equity investments 
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, are subject to impairment assessment (see 
Note 2(i)(i)).

Financial liabilities

The categories of financial liabilities at initial recognition are as follows:

(a) Fair value through profit or loss

Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are derivatives (except for 
a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging instrument), 
contingent consideration in a business combination and financial liabilities that are specifically 
designated into this category upon initial recognition.

On initial recognition, the Group or the Company may irrevocably designate a financial liability that 
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost as at fair value through profit or 
loss:

(a) if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise; 

(b) a group of financial liabilities or assets and financial liabilities is managed and its performance is 
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment 
strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on that basis to the Group’s key 
management personnel; or

(c) if a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives and the host is not a financial asset in 
the scope of MFRS 9, where the embedded derivative significantly modifies the cash flows and 
separation is not prohibited.

Financial liabilities categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at their 
fair value with gains or losses, including any interest expense are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial liabilities where it is designated as fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition, 
the Group and the Company recognise the amount of change in fair value of the financial liability that 
is attributable to change in credit risk in the other comprehensive income and remaining amount of the 
change in fair value in profit or loss, unless the treatment of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit 
risk would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch.

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)



73SLP RESOURCES BERHAD |

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(c) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(ii) Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities (Cont’d)

(b) Amortised cost

Other financial liabilities not categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gains or 
losses on derecognition are also recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse 
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with 
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are measured at higher of:

t� UIF�BNPVOU�PG�UIF�MPTT�BMMPXBODF��BOE

t� UIF�BNPVOU�JOJUJBMMZ�SFDPHOJTFE�MFTT
�XIFO�BQQSPQSJBUF
�UIF�DVNVMBUJWF�BNPVOU�PG�JODPNF�SFDPHOJTFE�JO�
accordance to the principles of MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

Liabilities arising from financial guarantees are presented together with other provisions.

(iv) Derecognition

A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the financial asset expire or transferred, or control of the asset is not retained or substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred to another party.  On derecognition of a 
financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the sum of consideration 
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified in the 
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.  A financial liability is also derecognised when its terms are 
modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case, a new financial 
liability based on modified terms is recognised at fair value. On derecognition of a financial liability, the 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party 
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in 
profit or loss.

(v) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statements of financial 
position when, and only when, the Group or the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to 
set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and liability 
simultaneously.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(d)  Property, plant and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and any other 
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use, and the costs 
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. The cost of self-
constructed assets also includes the cost of materials and direct labour. For qualifying assets, borrowing costs 
are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs.  Cost also may include transfers 
from equity of any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, 
plant and equipment.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that 
equipment.

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the 
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and is recognised net 
within “other income” and “other expenses” respectively in profit or loss. 

(ii) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying 
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the component 
will flow to the Group or the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the 
replaced component is derecognised to profit or loss. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant 
and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of individual 
assets are assessed, and if a component has a useful life that is different from the remainder of that asset, 
then that component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each 
component of an item of property, plant and equipment from the date that they are available for use. 
Freehold land is not depreciated. Property, plant and equipment under construction are not depreciated 
until the assets are ready for their intended use.

The estimated useful lives of the assets for the current and comparative periods are as follows :

Years

Factory buildings 44 - 50

Renovation 4

Plant, machinery and factory equipment 5 - 13

Office furniture and equipment 2 - 10

Motor vehicles 5 - 7

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at end of the reporting period, and 
adjusted as appropriate.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(e) Leases 

(i) Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the 
use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

t� UIF�DPOUSBDU�JOWPMWFT�UIF�VTF�PG�BO�JEFOUJmFE�BTTFU���UIJT�NBZ�CF�TQFDJmFE�FYQMJDJUMZ�PS�JNQMJDJUMZ
�BOE�
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If 
the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified; 

t� UIF�DVTUPNFS�IBT�UIF�SJHIU�UP�PCUBJO�TVCTUBOUJBMMZ�BMM�PG�UIF�FDPOPNJD�CFOFmUT�GSPN�VTF�PG�UIF�BTTFU�
throughout the period of use; and

t� UIF�DVTUPNFS�IBT�UIF�SJHIU�UP�EJSFDU�UIF�VTF�PG�UIF�BTTFU��5IF�DVTUPNFS�IBT�UIJT�SJHIU�XIFO�JU�IBT�UIF�
decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. 
In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, 
the customer has the right to direct the use of the asset if either the customer has the right to operate 
the asset; or the customer designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose 
it will be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the 
consideration in the contract to each lease and non-lease component on the basis of their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of properties in which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate 
non-lease components and will instead account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease 
component.

(ii) Recognition and initial measurement

(a) As a lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The 
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct 
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the 
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at 
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot 
be readily determined, the respective Group entities’ incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group 
entities use their incremental borrowing rates as the discount rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following :

t� mYFE�QBZNFOUT
�JODMVEJOH�JO�TVCTUBODF�mYFE�QBZNFOUT�MFTT�BOZ�JODFOUJWFT�SFDFJWBCMF��
t� WBSJBCMF�MFBTF�QBZNFOUT�UIBU�EFQFOE�PO�BO�JOEFY�PS�B�SBUF
�JOJUJBMMZ�NFBTVSFE�VTJOH�UIF�JOEFY�PS�

rate as at the commencement date;
t� BNPVOUT�FYQFDUFE�UP�CF�QBZBCMF�VOEFS�B�SFTJEVBM�WBMVF�HVBSBOUFF�
t� UIF�FYFSDJTF�QSJDF�VOEFS�B�QVSDIBTF�PQUJPO�UIBU�UIF�(SPVQ�JT�SFBTPOBCMZ�DFSUBJO�UP�FYFSDJTF��BOE�
t� QFOBMUJFT�GPS�FBSMZ�UFSNJOBUJPO�PG�B�MFBTF�VOMFTT�UIF�(SPVQ�JT�SFBTPOBCMZ�DFSUBJO�OPU�UP�UFSNJOBUF�

early.

The Group excludes variable lease payments that linked to future performance or usage of the 
underlying asset from the lease liability. Instead, these payments are recognised in profit or loss in the 
period in which the performance or use occurs.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases 
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the 
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(e) Leases (Cont’d)

(ii) Recognition and initial measurement (Cont’d)

(b) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease 
or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially 
all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the 
lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Group applies MFRS 15 to allocate 
the consideration in the contract based on the stand-alone selling prices.

(iii) Subsequent measurement

(a) As a lessee

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of 
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as 
those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured 
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there 
is a revision of in-substance fixed lease payments, or if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of 
the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its 
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of 
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has 
been reduced to zero.

(b) As a lessor 

The Group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term as part of “other income”.

(f) Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill  

Goodwill arises on business combinations is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

(ii) Research and development 

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical 
knowledge and understanding, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities, whereby the application of research findings is applied to a plan or 
design for the production of new or substantially improved products and processes, is capitalised only if 
development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, 
future economic benefits are probable and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete 
development and to use or sell the asset.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(f) Intangible assets (Cont’d)

(ii) Research and development (Cont’d)

The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and overheads costs that are directly 
attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use. Other development expenditure is recognised 
in profit or loss as incurred. For qualifying assets, borrowing costs are capitalised in accordance with the 
accounting policy on borrowing costs.

Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses.

(iii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in 
the specific asset to which it relates.  All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated 
goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iv) Amortisation

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but are tested for impairment 
annually and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired. 

Other intangible assets are amortised from the date that they are available for use. Amortisation is based on 
the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis 
over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. 

The estimated useful life for capitalised development costs is 3 years.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and 
adjusted, if appropriate.

(g) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

The cost of inventories is calculated using the first-in, first-out method, and includes expenditure incurred in 
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing 
location and condition. In the case of work-in-progress and manufactured inventories, cost includes an appropriate 
share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks and highly liquid investments 
which have an insignificant risk of changes in fair value with original maturities of three months or less, and are 
used by the Group and the Company in the management of their short term commitments. For the purpose of the 
statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts. 
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(i) Impairment 

(i) Financial assets

The Group and the Company recognise loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets 
measured at amortised cost, debt investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, 
contract assets and lease receivables. Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit 
losses. 

The Group and the Company measure loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss, 
except for debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date, cash and bank 
balance and other debt securities for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, 
which are measured at 12-month expected credit loss. Loss allowances for trade receivables, contract assets 
and lease receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss. 

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition and when estimating expected credit loss, the Group and the Company consider reasonable 
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes 
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and 
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information, where available.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events 
over the expected life of the asset, while 12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit 
losses that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The 
maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period 
over which the Group and the Company are exposed to credit risk.

The Group and the Company estimate the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision 
matrix with reference to historical credit loss experience.

An impairment loss in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss 
and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account.

An impairment loss in respect of debt investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income is recognised in profit or loss and the allowance account is recognised in other comprehensive 
income.

At each reporting date, the Group and the Company assess whether financial assets carried at amortised 
cost and debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income are credit-impaired. A financial 
asset is credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future 
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or full) to the extent that there 
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group or the Company determines 
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay 
the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject 
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s or the Company’s procedures for recovery 
amounts due.

(ii) Other assets

The carrying amounts of other assets (except for inventories and assets classified as held for sale) are reviewed 
at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that 
have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each 
period at the same time.  
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(i) Impairment (Cont’d)

(ii) Other assets (Cont’d)

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that 
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or 
cash-generating units. Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for the purpose of goodwill impairment 
testing, cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at 
which impairment testing is performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal 
reporting purposes. The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, 
is allocated to a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from 
the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair 
value less costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit 
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating 
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit 
(group of cash-generating units) and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the cash-
generating unit (groups of cash-generating units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses 
recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting period for any indications that the 
loss has decreased or no longer exists.  An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. An 
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had 
been recognised. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the financial year in which 
the reversals are recognised.

(j) Equity instruments

Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost on initial recognition and are not remeasured subsequently.

(i) Issue expenses

Costs directly attributable to the issue of instruments classified as equity are recognised as a deduction from 
equity.

(ii) Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

(k) Employee benefits 

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and sick 
leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing 
plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service 
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(k) Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(ii) State plans

The Group’s contributions to statutory pension funds are charged to profit or loss in the financial year to 
which they relate. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a 
reduction in future payments is available.

(l) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation 
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the 
discount is recognised as finance cost.

(m) Revenue and other income

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer in exchange for 
transferring goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The 
Group or the Company recognises revenue when (or as) it transfers control over a product or service to 
customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of the asset.

The Group or the Company transfers control of a good or service at a point in time unless one of the 
following over time criteria is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided as the Group or the 
Company performs;

(b) the Group’s or the Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as 
the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s or the Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use and the 
Group or the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. 

(ii) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Group’s or the Company’s right to receive 
payment is established, which in the case of quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.

(iii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method in profit or loss except for 
interest income arising from temporary investment of borrowings taken specifically for the purpose of 
obtaining a qualifying asset which is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing 
costs.

(iv) Rental income

Rental income is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease 
incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over the term of the lease. 
Rental income from sub-leased property is recognised as “other income”. 

(v) Government grants

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss as other income on 
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are recognised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(n) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or 
loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity or other 
comprehensive income. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect 
of previous financial years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities in the statements of financial position and their tax bases. Deferred tax is not 
recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of 
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor 
taxable profit or loss.  Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary 
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 
the reporting period.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of 
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and 
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different 
tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities 
will be realised simultaneously. 

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be 
realised.

Unutilised reinvestment allowance and investment tax allowance, being tax incentives that is not a tax base of an 
asset, is recognised as a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be 
available against which the unutilised tax incentive can be utilised.

(o) Earnings per ordinary share

The Group presents basic earnings per share data for its ordinary shares (“EPS”). 

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held. 

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential 
ordinary shares, which comprise convertible notes and share options granted to employees.

(p) Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn 
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s 
other components. Operating segment results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker, which 
in this case is the Managing Director of the Group, to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the 
segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

(q) Contingencies 

(i)  Contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be 
estimated reliably, the obligation is not recognised in the statements of financial position and is disclosed as 
a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, 
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(ii) Contingent assets

When an inflow of economic benefit of an asset is probable where it arises from past events and where 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the entity, the asset is not recognised in the statements of financial position 
but is being disclosed as a contingent asset. When the inflow of economic benefit is virtually certain, then 
the related asset is recognised. 

(r) Fair value measurements

Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for lease transactions, is determined as the price that would be received to 
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date. The measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in 
the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market.

For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use.
 
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. 
Fair value is categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the input used in the valuation 
technique as follows:

Level 1  : quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access 
at the measurement date.

Level 2  : inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3  : unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

 
The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the date of the event or change in 
circumstances that caused the transfers. 
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4. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS - GROUP

Land
RM

At 1 January 2020 10,363,169

Depreciation (153,189)

Effect of movements in exchange rates (185,584)

At 31 December 2020/1 January 2021 10,024,396

Depreciation (149,992)

Transfer to asset classified as held for sale (Note 10) (860,639)

Effect of movements in exchange rates 368,627

At 31 December 2021 9,382,392

The Group leases land for a period ranging from 75 to 78 years.

4.1 Operating lease payments receivable 

The operating lease payments to be received are as follows :

2021
RM

2020
RM

Group

Less than one year 48,000 36,000
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5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP (CONT’D)

Goodwill
RM

Development 
costs

RM
Total

RM

Cost

At 1 January 2020/31 December 2020/1 January 
 2021/31 December 2021 19,910 988,302 1,008,212

Amortisation and impairment loss

At 1 January 2020/31 December 2020/1 January 2021 - (988,302) (988,302)

Impairment loss (11,330) - (11,330)

At 31 December 2021 (11,330) (988,302) (999,632)

Goodwill
RM

Development 
costs

RM
Total

RM

Carrying amounts

At 1 January 2020 19,910 - 19,910

At 31 December 2020/1 January 2021 19,910 - 19,910

At 31 December 2021 8,580 - 8,580

Development costs

Development costs comprised mainly past expenditure incurred on new products at development phase.

6. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 

Company

Note
2021

RM
2020

RM

Cost of investments 85,595,323 95,985,373

Less : Impairment loss 6.1 (5,759,291) (5,759,291)

79,836,032 90,226,082
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6. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows :

Name of subsidiaries 

Effective ownership 
interest and voting interest

Principal activities
2021

%
2020

%

Sinliplas Holding Sdn. Bhd. 
 (“SHSB”)

100 100 Manufacture and sale of plastic packaging and its 
 related products

Sinliplas Sdn. Bhd. (“SSB”) 100 100 Manufacture and sale of plastic packaging 
 products and plastic related goods. SSB ceased 

its operations during the financial year ended 31 
December 2019 and commenced the voluntary 
winding-up on 16 February 2021. 

SLP Green Tech Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Manufacture and sale of specialised plastic film 
 and packaging products

SLP Polymers Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Trading of polymer products such as resin

All the subsidiaries are incorporated in Malaysia with same principal place of business.

6.1 Impairment loss

The impairment loss was in relation to Sinliplas Sdn. Bhd. that commenced its voluntary winding-up after the 
financial year ended 31 December 2020 where its recoverable amount of RM10,586,393 was determined based 
on fair value less cost to sell. 

7. INVENTORIES - GROUP

2021
RM

2020
RM

Raw materials 22,251,934 25,133,606

Work-in-progress 8,973,585 5,314,289

Manufactured inventories 4,322,152 5,929,119

35,547,671 36,377,014

7.1 Significant judgements and assumptions 

In determining the amount of inventories to be written down, the Directors took into consideration the age of the 
inventories and the likelihood of future consumption. 

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)



89SLP RESOURCES BERHAD |

8. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Note
2021

RM
2020

RM

Group

Trade 

 Amount due from a company controlled by a Director 8.1 205,198 649,661

 Third parties 27,863,931 27,865,705

 Trade receivables from contracts with customers 28,069,129 28,515,366

Non-trade

 Other receivables 8.2 2,376,529 867,501

 Deposits 62,828 60,059

 Prepayments 8.3 825,854 275,827

3,265,211 1,203,387

31,334,340 29,718,753

Company

Non-trade

 Deposits 3,000 3,000

 Dividends receivable from subsidiaries 3,850,000 3,000,000

3,853,000 3,003,000

8.1 Amount due from a company controlled by a Director

The trade amount due from a company controlled by a Director is unsecured, interest-free and with credit terms 
of 60 days.

8.2 Other receivables

Include in other receivables of the Group is import duties claimable of RM2,358,498 (2020: RM863,782). 

8.3 Prepayments

Included in prepayments of the Group are advance payments of RM351,650 (2020: RM Nil) and RM175,242 (2020: 
RM Nil) for the purchase of machinery and raw materials respectively.
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9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Note
2021

RM
2020

RM

Group

Short term funds 9.1 37,435,463 29,846,177

Short term deposits with licensed banks 14,376,000 8,399,528

Cash and bank balances 25,341,081 36,123,195

77,152,544 74,368,900

Company

Short term funds 9.1 30,213,021 20,251,157

Short term deposits with a licensed bank 5,063,000 3,600,000

Cash and bank balances 10,598 2,110,641

35,286,619 25,961,798

9.1 Short term funds

Short term funds represent investments in money market funds which can be redeemed within a period of less 
than 30 days.

10. ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE - GROUP

On 15 December 2021, the Group entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) for disposal of a piece of land at 
RM6,500,000, for which a net deposit of RM448,645 has been received (see Note 14.1). The remaining consideration is 
expected to be received within 12 months. The completion of the SPA is subject to the consent from the State authority 
(see Note 29). Details of the asset classified as held for sale are as follows :

2021
RM

At 1 January     -

Transfer from right-of-use assets (Note 4) 860,639

At 31 December 860,639

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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11. SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP/COMPANY

2021 2020

Amount
 RM

Number of 
shares

Amount
 RM

Number of 
shares

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares 
 with no par value classified as equity 
 instruments 113,680,000 316,959,999 113,680,000 316,959,999

11.1 Ordinary shares

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to 
one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

12. RESERVES

Note
2021

RM
2020

RM

Group

Non-distributable

 Fair value reserve 12.1 (105,580) (105,580)

 Foreign currency translation reserve 12.2 (1,829,818) (5,052,226)

Distributable

Retained earnings 73,565,583 73,271,913

71,630,185 68,114,107

Company

Distributable

 Retained earnings 465,100 683,155

The movements in reserves are shown in the statements of changes in equity.

12.1 Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity and debt securities designated 
at fair value through other comprehensive income until the assets are derecognised or impaired.

12.2 Foreign currency translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial 
statements of a subsidiary where the functional currency is not Ringgit Malaysia.

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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13. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - GROUP

Deferred tax liabilities are attributable to the following :

2021
RM

2020
RM

Property, plant and equipment 9,905,000 9,483,000

Investment tax allowance carry-forwards     - (1,245,000)

Reinvestment allowance carry-forwards (373,000) (18,000)

Others (144,000) 2,000

9,388,000 8,222,000

Movements in temporary differences during the year are as follows :

At 1 January 
2020

RM

Recognised in 
profit 

or loss
(Note 20)

RM

At 31 
December  

2020/
1 January 2021

RM

Recognised in 
profit 

or loss
(Note 20)

RM

At 31 
December 

2021
RM

Property, plant and 
 equipment 8,921,000 562,000 9,483,000 422,000 9,905,000

Investment tax allowance 
 carry-forwards (1,391,000) 146,000 (1,245,000) 1,245,000 -

Reinvestment allowance 
 carry-forwards   - (18,000) (18,000) (355,000) (373,000)

Others (163,000) 165,000 2,000 (146,000) (144,000)

7,367,000 855,000 8,222,000 1,166,000 9,388,000

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)



93SLP RESOURCES BERHAD |

14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

Note
2021

RM
2020

RM

Group

Trade

 Trade payables 13,979,270 18,331,934

Non-trade

 Other payables 1,484,736 1,232,124

 Accrued expenses 815,420 861,015

 Deposit received 14.1 448,645     -

 Dividend payable 4,754,399 4,754,399

7,503,200 6,847,538

21,482,470 25,179,472

Company

Non-trade

 Accrued expenses 84,790 81,890

 Dividend payable 4,754,399 4,754,399

4,839,189 4,836,289

14.1 Deposit received

The deposit received of the Group represents 10% deposit collected for the disposal of leases over a piece of land 
net of the real property gains tax held by the solicitors (see Note 29).

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)



| Annual Report 202194

15. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) - GROUP

2021 2020

Nominal 
value

RM
Assets

RM
Liabilities

RM

Nominal 
value

RM
Assets

RM
Liabilities

RM

Derivatives held for trading at 
 fair value through 
 profit or loss

 -  Forward exchange 
 contracts 1,249,500 3,791 - 19,104,000 - (80,744)

Forward exchange contracts are used to manage the foreign currency exposures arising from the Group’s payables 
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of Group entities. All of the forward exchange contracts 
have maturities of less than one year after the end of the reporting period. Where necessary, the forward contracts are 
rolled over at maturity.

16. REVENUE

2021
RM

2020
RM

Group 

Revenue from contracts with customers 168,948,889 146,992,774

Company

Revenue represents dividend income received from subsidiaries.

16.1 Disaggregation of revenue 
 

2021
RM

2020
RM

Major products 

Manufacturing and sale of plastic packaging and its related products 110,654,884 107,979,173

Trading of polymer products 58,294,005 39,013,601

168,948,889 146,992,774

Timing and recognition 

At a point in time 168,948,889 146,992,774

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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16. REVENUE (CONT’D)

16.2 Nature of goods 

The following information reflects the typical transactions of the Group:

Nature of goods or services
Timing of recognition or method used 
to recognise revenue

Significant 
payment terms

Manufacturing and sale of plastic 
packaging and its related products and 
trading of polymer products

Revenue is recognised when the control 
over the goods is transferred to the 
customer. 

Credit period of 30 to 90 
days from invoice date.

 
The revenue from contracts with customers of the Group is not subject to variable element in the considerations, 
obligation for returns or refunds and warranty.

16.3 Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations 

The Group applies practical expedient exemption on disclosure of information on remaining performance 
obligations that have original expected durations of one year or less.

The Group does not have contracts that have a duration of more than one year. 

17. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES - GROUP

Employee benefits expenses of the Group include contributions to the Employees’ Provident Fund of RM642,132 (2020 
: RM662,387).

Included in employee benefits expenses of the Group and of the Company is Executive Directors’ remuneration as 
disclosed in Note 19.

18. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging/(crediting) :

Group Company

2021
RM

2020
RM

2021
RM

2020
RM

Auditors’ remuneration 

 - Audit fees by KPMG PLT 126,000 125,000 30,000 29,500

 - non-audit fees

 - KPMG PLT 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000

 - Local affiliate of KPMG PLT 27,600 32,200 3,600 3,600

Directors’ emoluments

 - Directors of the Company

 - fees 152,200 152,000 109,000 108,800

 - remuneration 1,536,881 1,551,502 21,000 20,000

Impairment losson investment 
 in a subsidiary - - - 1,024,335

Gain on disposal of 
 plant and equipment (122,109) (71,216) - -

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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18. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT’D)

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging/(crediting): (Cont’d)

Group Company

2021
RM

2020
RM

2021
RM

2020
RM

Plant and equipment written off 51 1 - -

Impairment loss on 
 intangible assets (Note 5) 11,330 - - -

(Gain)/Loss on foreign exchange, net  (209,257) 177,987 - -

Dividend income from : -

 - Other investments - (2,400) - -

 - Subsidiaries - - (17,100,000) (16,925,000)

Finance income (Note 18.1) (727,504) (934,739) (476,225) (431,836)

Government grants income (Note 18.2) (389,300) (361,800) - -

Net loss on impairment of financial 
 instruments

Financial assets at amortised cost

 - Impairment loss on trade receivables 75,182 25,307 - -

Expenses arising from leases:

Expenses relating to short-term leases 118,930 115,080 - -

Expenses relating to leases of 
 low-value assets 7,704 7,153 - -

Lease income (98,000) (54,000) - -

18.1 Finance income represents interest income of financial assets calculated using the effective interest method that 
are at amortised cost.  

18.2 The Group received wage subsidy and hiring incentive from the local government to retain local employees and 
hire unemployed employees respectively during the approved period of economy uncertainty brought by the 
Covid-19 outbreak.

NOTES TO THE 
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19. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATIONS 

The key management personnel include all Directors of the Group and their compensations are as follows :

Group Company

2021
RM

2020
RM

2021
RM

2020
RM

Directors of the Company

- fees 152,200 152,000 109,000 108,800

- remuneration 1,536,881 1,551,502 21,000 20,000

Total short-term employee benefits 1,689,081 1,703,502 130,000 128,800

The estimated monetary value of Directors’ benefit-in-kind of the Group is Nil (2020 : RM1,650).

20. TAX EXPENSE

Recognised in profit or loss

Group Company

2021
RM

2020
RM

2021
RM

2020
RM

Income tax expense 5,573,670 6,015,488 4,081 1,225

Major components of income tax expense include :

Group Company

2021
RM

2020
RM

2021
RM

2020
RM

Current tax expense

 - Current year 4,315,576 4,797,838 3,416 1,225

 - Prior year 92,094 362,650 665   -

Total current tax recognised in 
 profit or loss 4,407,670 5,160,488 4,081 1,225

NOTES TO THE 
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20. TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)

Major components of income tax expense include : (Cont’d)

Group Company

2021
RM

2020
RM

2021
RM

2020
RM

Deferred tax expense

 - Origination and reversal of 
 temporary differences 1,238,000 844,000 - -

 - (Over)/under provision in prior year (72,000) 11,000 - -

Total deferred tax recognised in 
 profit or loss 1,166,000 855,000 - -

Total tax expense 5,573,670 6,015,488 4,081 1,225

Reconciliation of tax expense

Group Company

2021
RM

2020
RM

2021
RM

2020
RM

Profit for the year 17,726,467 16,469,389 17,214,742 15,987,586

Total income tax expense 5,573,670 6,015,488 4,081 1,225

Profit excluding tax 23,300,137 22,484,877 17,218,823 15,988,811

Income tax calculated using 
 Malaysian tax rate of 24% 5,592,033 5,396,370 4,132,518 3,837,315

Non-deductible expenses 293,036 583,619 85,745 327,647

Tax incentives (71,620) (28,246) - -

Non-taxable income (163,927) (155,324) (4,214,847) (4,163,737)

Other items (95,946) (154,581) - -

Under provision in prior year 20,094 373,650 665     -

Income tax expense 5,573,670 6,015,488 4,081 1,225

NOTES TO THE 
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21. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) - GROUP

Before tax
RM

Tax 
(expense)/ 

benefit
RM

Net of tax
RM

2021

Item that is or may be reclassified subsequently 
 to profit or loss

Foreign currency translation differences 

- Gain during the year 3,222,408 - 3,222,408

3,222,408 - 3,222,408

2020

Item that will not be reclassified subsequently 
 to profit or loss

Net change in fair value of equity instruments at fair value
 through other comprehensive income 4,567 - 4,567

Item that is or may be reclassified subsequently 
 to profit or loss

Foreign currency translation differences 

- Loss during the year (1,553,058) - (1,553,058)

(1,548,491) - (1,548,491)

22. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE - GROUP

Basic earnings per ordinary share

The calculation of basic earnings per ordinary share is based on the profit attributable to the owners of the Company of 
RM17,726,467 (2020 : RM16,469,389) and on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 
financial year of 316,959,999 (2020 : 316,959,999). 

Diluted earnings per ordinary share

The diluted earnings per ordinary share is the same as the basic earnings per ordinary share as there are no dilutive 
potential ordinary shares. 

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

23. DIVIDENDS - GROUP AND COMPANY

Dividends recognised by the Company are :

Sen
per share

Total amount
RM

Date of 
payment

2021

Fourth interim 2020 ordinary 1.50 4,754,399 13 April 2021

First interim 2021 ordinary 1.00 3,169,600  8 July 2021

Second interim 2021 ordinary 1.50 4,754,399 7 October 2021

Third interim 2021 ordinary 1.50 4,754,399 6 January 2022

Total amount 17,432,797

2020

Fourth interim 2019 ordinary 1.50 4,754,399 10 April 2020

First interim 2020 ordinary 1.00 3,169,600  3 July 2020

Second interim 2020 ordinary 1.50 4,754,399 8 October 2020

Third interim 2020 ordinary 1.50 4,754,399 6 January 2021

Total amount 17,432,797

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the Company declared a fourth interim dividend of 1.5 sen per ordinary 
share totalling RM4,754,399 in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2021 on 25 February 2022 and payable 
on 13 April 2022.

24. OPERATING SEGMENTS - GROUP

The business segment is based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure. 

Business segments

The Group’s only reportable segment comprises the manufacturing and sale of plastic packaging and its related products 
and trading of polymer products.

Segment information has not been separately presented because internal reporting uses the Group’s financial statements.
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24. OPERATING SEGMENTS - GROUP (CONT’D)

Geographical segments

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on geographical location 
of customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.  The amounts of non-current assets 
do not include financial instruments.

External 
revenue 

RM

Non-current 
assets

RM

Geographical information

2021

Malaysia 97,066,826 71,335,009

Japan 57,786,767 -

Australia 7,808,044 -

Other countries 6,287,252 -

168,948,889 71,335,009

2020

Malaysia 78,312,704 75,408,057

Japan 54,663,847 -

Australia 7,770,995 -

Europe 132,585 -

Other countries 6,112,643 -

146,992,774 75,408,057

Major customer

There are no major customers with revenue equal to or more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue.  

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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25.  COMMITMENTS - GROUP

2021
RM

2020
RM

Property, plant and equipment

Contracted but not provided for 390,000 38,000

26. RELATED PARTIES 

Identity of related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group or the 
Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or jointly control the party or exercise significant influence over 
the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group or the Company and the party 
are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or indirectly and entity that provides key 
management personnel services to the Group. The key management personnel include all the Directors of the Group.

The Group has related party relationship with a company controlled by a Director, subsidiaries and key management 
personnel.

Significant related party transactions

Related party transactions have been entered into in the normal course of business under negotiated terms. The significant 
related party transactions of the Group and the Company, other than key management personnel compensation as 
disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements are shown below. The balances related to the transactions shown below 
are disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements.

Group

2021
RM

2020
RM

A company controlled by a Director 

Sales 597,935 1,181,692

Company

2021
RM

2020
RM

Subsidiaries

Dividend income 17,100,000 16,925,000

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

27.1 Categories of financial instruments

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as follows:

(a) Amortised cost (“AC”);
(b) Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) - mandatorily required by MFRS 9; and
(c) Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
 - Equity instruments designated upon initial recognition (“EIDUIR”).

Carrying 
amount 

RM
AC
RM

Mandatorily 
at FVTPL

RM

2021

Financial assets

Group

Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments 30,508,486 30,508,486        -

Derivative financial assets 3,791        - 3,791

Cash and cash equivalents 77,152,544 77,152,544      -

107,664,821 107,661,030 3,791

Company

Trade and other receivables 3,853,000 3,853,000 -

Cash and cash equivalents 35,286,619 35,286,619 -

39,139,619 39,139,619 -

Financial liabilities 

Group

Trade and other payables 21,482,470 21,482,470 -

Company 

Trade and other payables 4,839,189 4,839,189 -

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

27.1 Categories of financial instruments (Cont’d)

Carrying 
amount 

RM
AC
RM

Mandatorily 
at FVTPL

RM

2020

Financial assets

Group

Trade and other receivables excluding prepayments 29,442,926 29,442,926 -

Cash and cash equivalents 74,368,900 74,368,900 -

103,811,826 103,811,826 -

Company

Trade and other receivables 3,003,000 3,003,000 -

Cash and cash equivalents 25,961,798 25,961,798 -

28,964,798 28,964,798 -

Financial liabilities 

Group

Trade and other payables 25,179,472 25,179,472      -

Derivative financial liabilities 80,744      - 80,744

25,260,216 25,179,472 80,744

Company 

Trade and other payables 4,836,289 4,836,289      -

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

27.2 Net gains and losses arising from financial instruments

Group Company

2021
RM

2020
RM

2021
RM

2020
RM

Net gains/(losses) on : 

Financial assets at fair value through 
 profit or loss 
 - held for trading 87,100 (80,744) - -

Equity instruments designated at 
 fair value through other 
 comprehensive income

- recognised in profit or loss  - 2,400 - -

- recognised in other 
comprehensive income - 4,567 - -

Financial assets at amortised cost 593,360 742,647 476,225 431,836

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 181,119 69,542 - -

861,579 738,412 476,225 431,836

27.3 Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

t� $SFEJU�SJTL
t� -JRVJEJUZ�SJTL
t� .BSLFU�SJTL

27.4 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from the individual characteristics 
of each customer. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from financial guarantees given to 
banks and suppliers for banking and credit facilities granted to subsidiaries. There are no significant changes as 
compared to prior year.

Trade receivables 

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.  Normally 
credit evaluations are performed on customers requiring credit over a certain amount.

At each reporting date, the Group or the Company assesses whether any of the trade receivables are credit 
impaired. 

The gross carrying amounts of credit impaired trade receivables are written off (either partially or full) when there 
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group or the Company determines that the 
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts 
subject to the write-off. Nevertheless, trade receivables that are written off could still be subject to enforcement 
activities.

There are no significant changes as compared to previous year.

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

27.4 Credit risk (Cont’d)

Trade receivables (Cont’d)

Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral 

As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are 
represented by the carrying amounts in the statements of financial position.

Concentration of credit risk

The exposure of credit risk for trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period by geographical region was:

Group

2021
RM

2020
RM

Domestic 18,914,839 17,733,269

Japan 7,521,918 9,565,595

Australia 1,627,490 881,947

Others 4,882 334,555

28,069,129 28,515,366

Recognition and measurement of impairment losses

In managing credit risk of trade receivables, the Group manages its debtors and takes appropriate actions 
(including but not limited to legal actions) to recover long overdue balances. Generally, trade receivables will pay 
within 180 days. The Group’s debt recovery process is as follows :

a) Above 30 days past due after credit term, the Group will start to initiate a structured debt recovery process 
which is monitored by the sales management team; and

b) Above 180 days past due, the Group will commence a legal proceeding against the customer.

The Group uses the higher of 180 days past due trade receivables, or the expected credit loss rate calculated 
by respective companies using an average of past 5 years’ impairment losses over the outstanding balances, 
to measure the expected credit loss (“ECLs”) of trade receivables. Consistent with the debt recovery process, 
invoices which are past due 180 days will be considered as credit impaired.

Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over the past five years. The Group also considers differences 
between :

(a)  economic conditions during the period over which the historic data has been collected; 
(b)  current conditions; and 
(c)  the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables. 

Nevertheless, the Group believes that these factors are immaterial for the purpose of impairment calculation for 
the year.

NOTES TO THE 
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

27.4 Credit risk (Cont’d)

Trade receivables (Cont’d)

Recognition and measurement of impairment losses (Cont’d)

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables.

Gross carrying 
amount

RM

Loss 
allowances

RM

Net 
balance

RM

Group

2021

Not past due 20,328,991 80,456 20,248,535

Past due 1 - 30 days 6,673,041 23,978 6,649,063

Past due 31 - 120 days 1,171,901 370 1,171,531

28,173,933 104,804 28,069,129

Credit impaired

Individually impaired 92,568 92,568    -

28,266,501 197,372 28,069,129

2020

Not past due 19,259,922 52,945 19,206,977

Past due 1 - 30 days 7,722,649 20,216 7,702,433

Past due 31 - 120 days 1,609,128 3,172 1,605,956

28,591,699 76,333 28,515,366

Credit impaired

Individually impaired 44,660 44,660     -

28,636,359 120,993 28,515,366

NOTES TO THE 
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

27.4 Credit risk (Cont’d)

Trade receivables (Cont’d)

Recognition and measurement of impairment losses (Cont’d)

There are past due trade receivables where the Group has not recognised any loss allowance as the trade receivables 
are supported by collection subsequent to the reporting period and historical payment trend of these customers. 

The movements in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year are shown below.

Trade receivables

Lifetime ECL
RM

Credit impaired
RM

Total
RM

Group

Balance at 1 January 2020 58,300 559,038 617,338

Amounts written off     - (521,017) (521,017)

Net remeasurement of loss allowance 18,668 6,639 25,307

Effect of movements in exchange rates (635)             - (635)

Balance at 31 December 2020 76,333 44,660 120,993

Trade receivables

Lifetime ECL
RM

Credit impaired
RM

Total
RM

Group

Balance at 1 January 2021 76,333 44,660 120,993

Net remeasurement of loss allowance 27,274 47,908 75,182

Effect of movements in exchange rates 1,197 - 1,197

Balance at 31 December 2021 104,804 92,568 197,372

Cash and cash equivalents 

The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks and financial institutions. As at the end of the reporting period, 
the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by their carrying amounts in the statements of financial position. 

These banks and financial institutions have low credit risks. In addition, some of the bank balances are insured by 
government agencies. Consequently, the Group and the Company are of the view that the loss allowance is not 
material and hence, it is not provided for.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

27.4 Credit risk (Cont’d)

Cash and cash equivalents (Cont’d)

Other receivables

The Group does not monitor the other receivables which are mainly in relation to import duties claimable as the 
credit risk is deemed to be low.

As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by their carrying 
amounts in the statements of financial position.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company did not recognise any allowance for impairment 
losses. 

Financial guarantees

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

The Company provides unsecured financial guarantees to banks and suppliers in respect of banking and credit 
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries.

Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

The maximum exposure to credit risk amounts to RM7,222,481 (2020: RM13,631,556) representing the outstanding 
banking and credit facilities of the subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period. The Company monitors the 
ability of the subsidiaries to meet the banking and credit facilities requirements on an individual basis.  

Recognition and measurement of impairment loss

The Company assumes that there is a significant increase in credit risk when a subsidiary’s financial position 
deteriorates significantly. The Company considers a financial guarantee to be credit impaired when:

t� 5IF�TVCTJEJBSZ�JT�VOMJLFMZ�UP�SFQBZ�JUT�DSFEJU�PCMJHBUJPO�UP�UIF�CBOL�PS�TVQQMJFS�JO�GVMM��PS
t� 5IF�TVCTJEJBSZ�JT�DPOUJOVPVTMZ�MPTT�NBLJOH�BOE�JT�IBWJOH�B�EFmDJU�TIBSFIPMEFST��GVOET��ø

The Company determines the probability of default of the guaranteed facilities individually using internal 
information available. 

As at the end of the reporting period the Company did not recognise any loss allowance as it was not material. 

27.5 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s 
exposure to liquidity risk arises principally from its various payables.

The Group maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents and bank facilities deemed adequate by the management 
to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall due.

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at 
significantly different amounts.
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

27.5 Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

Maturity analysis

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities as at the end 
of the reporting period based on undiscounted contractual payments :

Carrying 
amount

RM

Contractual 
interest rate 

per annum
%

Contractual 
cash flows

RM

Under 
1 year

RM

Group

2021

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 21,482,470 - 21,482,470 21,482,470

Derivative financial liabilities

Forward exchange contracts 
 (gross settled) :

Outflow    - - 1,249,500 1,249,500

Inflow (3,791) - (1,253,291) (1,253,291)

21,478,679 21,478,679 21,478,679

2020

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 25,179,472 - 25,179,472 25,179,472

Derivative financial liabilities

Forward exchange contracts 
 (gross settled) :

Outflow 80,744 - 19,184,744 19,184,744

Inflow  - - (19,104,000) (19,104,000)

25,260,216 25,260,216 25,260,216
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

27.5 Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

Maturity analysis (Cont’d)

Carrying 
amount

RM

Contractual 
interest rate 

per annum
%

Contractual 
cash flows

RM

Under 
1 year

RM

Company

2021

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Other payables 4,839,189 - 4,839,189 4,839,189

Financial guarantees - - 7,222,481 7,222,481

4,839,189 12,061,670 12,061,670

2020

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Other payables 4,836,289 - 4,836,289 4,836,289

Financial guarantees - - 13,631,556 13,631,556

4,836,289 18,467,845 18,467,845

27.6 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates that will 
affect the Group’s financial position or cash flows.

27.6.1 Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency other 
than the respective functional currencies of Group entities. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily 
Ringgit Malaysia (RM), U.S. Dollar (USD) and Japanese Yen (JPY).

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk where necessary. Most of the 
forward exchange contracts have maturities of less than one year after the end of the reporting period. Where 
necessary, the forward exchange contracts are rolled over at maturity.

NOTES TO THE 
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

27.6 Market risk (Cont’d)

27.6.1 Currency risk (Cont’d)

Exposure to foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency (a currency which is other than the functional currency of the Group 
entities) risk, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period are as follows :

Denominated in

RM
RM

USD
RM

JPY
RM

Group

2021

Trade and other receivables 1,333,000 1,492,225    -

Cash and cash equivalents 2,429,932 4,781,206 211,283

Forward exchange contracts 3,791    -    -

Trade and other payables (1,645,483) (1,348,835)    -

Net exposure 2,121,240 4,924,596 211,283

2020

Trade and other receivables 689,979 2,495,433     -

Cash and cash equivalents 4,305,112 6,838,956 239,730

Forward exchange contracts (80,744)     -     -

Trade and other payables (1,557,705) (8,649,806)     -

Net exposure 3,356,642 684,583 239,730
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

27.6 Market risk (Cont’d)

27.6.1 Currency risk (Cont’d)

Currency risk sensitivity analysis

A 10% (2020 : 10%) strengthening of the RM against the following currencies at the end of the reporting period 
would have increased/(decreased) post-tax profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on 
foreign currency exchange rate variances that the Group considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the 
reporting period. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remained constant 
and ignores any impact of forecasted sales and purchases. 

Profit or loss

2021
RM

2020
RM

Group

RM (161,214) (255,105)

USD (374,269) (52,028)

JPY (16,058) (18,219)

A 10% (2020 : 10%) weakening of RM against the above currencies at the end of the reporting period would 
have had equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all 
other variables remained constant.

27.6.2 Interest rate risk 

The Group’s and the Company’s investments in fixed rate deposits with licensed banks are exposed to risk of 
change in their fair values due to changes in interest rates. The Group’s and the Company’s variable rate short 
term funds are exposed to a risk of change in cash flows due to changes in interest rates. The Group’s and the 
Company’s short term receivables and payables are not significantly exposed to interest rate risk.

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

The Group is presently enjoying competitive interest rates which are reviewed on a yearly basis.

NOTES TO THE 
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| Annual Report 2021114

27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

27.6 Market risk (Cont’d)

27.6.2 Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Group’s and the Company’s significant interest-earning financial instruments, 
based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period are as follows :

2021
RM

2020
RM

Group

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets 14,376,000 8,399,528

Floating rate instruments

Financial assets 37,435,463 29,846,177

Company

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets 5,063,000 3,600,000

Floating rate instruments

Financial assets 30,213,021 20,251,157

NOTES TO THE 
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

27.6 Market risk (Cont’d)

27.6.2 Interest rate risk  (Cont’d)

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

(a) Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, and the Group does not designate derivatives as hedging instruments under a fair value 
hedged accounting model. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the end of the reporting period 
would not affect profit or loss. 

(b) Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments  

A change of 100 basis points (“bp”) in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would have 
increased/(decreased) post-tax profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all 
other variables, in particular foreign currency rates remain constant. 

2021
RM

2020
RM

Group

Floating rate instruments 284,510 226,831

Company

Floating rate instruments 229,619 153,909

27.7 Fair value information 

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short term receivables and payables reasonably approximate 
their fair values due to the relatively short term nature of these financial instruments.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value and those not carried at fair value for which 
fair value is disclosed, together with their fair values and carrying amounts shown in the statements of financial 
position.

NOTES TO THE 
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27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

27.7 Fair value information (Cont’d)

Level 2 fair value

Derivatives

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated by discounting the difference between the contractual 
forward price and the current forward price for the residual maturity of the contract using a risk-free interest rate 
(based on government bonds).

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future 
principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the end of the reporting period. 

Transfers between fair values

There has been no transfer between levels the fair values during the financial year (2020 : no transfer in either 
directions).

28. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to maintain a strong capital base and safeguard the Group’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business. The Directors monitor and are determined to maintain an optimal debt-to-equity ratio.

The debt-to-equity ratio are as follows:

2021
RM

2020
RM

Group

Total loans and borrowings - -

Lease liabilities - -

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (77,152,544) (74,368,900)

Net cash (77,152,544) (74,368,900)

Total equity 185,310,185 181,794,107

Debt-to-equity ratio Nil Nil

There was no change in the Group’s approach to capital management during the financial year.

29. SIGNIFICANT EVENT

On 15 December 2021, the Group via its wholly-owned subsidiary, Sinliplas Holding Sdn. Bhd. entered into a Sale and 
Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) to dispose of leases over a piece of leasehold land for a total cash consideration of RM6.5 
million. The completion of the SPA is subject to the consent from the state authority.

NOTES TO THE 
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In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 56 to 117 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian 
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 
in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as of 31 December 
2021 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended. 

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors :

…………………………………..

Khaw Khoon Tee

Director 

…………………………………..

Khaw Seang Chuan

Director 

Penang,

Date : 11 April 2022

STATUTORY 
DECLARATION
Pursuant toSection 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016

I, Khaw Khoon Tee, the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of SLP Resources Berhad, do solemnly 
and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 56 to 117 are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, 
correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the declaration to be true, and by virtue of the Statutory 
Declarations Act 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed Khaw Khoon Tee, NRIC : 500322-07-5445, at George Town in the 
State of Penang on 11 April 2022.

……………………………………
Khaw Khoon Tee

Before me :

Goh Suan Bee
(No. P125)
Commissioner For Oaths
Penang

STATEMENT 
BY DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SLP Resources Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial position as at 
31 December 2021 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 56 to 117. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of 
the Company as at 31 December 2021, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements 
of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on 
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our auditors’ report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and 
Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”), 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of inventories

Refer to Note 7 of the financial statements showing the carrying amount of inventories. 

The key audit matter

Plastic resin is one of the major materials used in the Group’s business operations. Consequently, the Group is exposed to 
fluctuation of commodity prices. The Group’s finished products are also not generic since the Group is involved in plastic 
packaging solutions. Raw materials were ordered to cater for current as well as expected future demand for similar goods 
which may not materialise. The Group produces finished products in batches which may go beyond the required quantities 
to fulfill an order. Discontinued orders of similar products may render the raw materials and finished products obsolete unless 
the Group is able to find alternative use for those goods.

Identifying and determining the slow moving and obsolete inventories will require the use of judgment. This is one of the 
areas that our audit focuses on because it requires us to design appropriate procedures to identify such inventories and use 
judgment to evaluate the assessments made by the Group.

INDEPENDENT 
AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To the members of SLP Resources Berhad (Registration No. 200401025355 (663862 - H))(Incorporated in Malaysia)
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Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

In this area, the audit procedures included, amongst others:

t� &WBMVBUFE�UIF�EFTJHO�BOE�JNQMFNFOUBUJPO�PG�LFZ�DPOUSPMT�PWFS�UIF�(SPVQ�T�QSPDFTT�JO�JEFOUJGZJOH�BOE�XSJUJOH�EPXO�TMPX�
moving and obsolete inventories;

t� "UUFOEFE�JOWFOUPSZ�DPVOU�BU�ZFBS�FOE�BOE�PCTFSWFE�XIFUIFS�UIFSF�XFSF�BOZ�TMPX�NPWJOH�PS�PCTPMFUF�JOWFOUPSJFT��
t� %FUFSNJOFE�UIBU�UIF� JOWFOUPSJFT�XFSF�DBSSJFE�BU�UIF� MPXFS�PG�DPTU�BOE�OFU�SFBMJTBCMF�WBMVF�CZ�DPNQBSJOH�UIF�TFMMJOH�

prices subsequent to financial year end with the cost of selected inventories, or checking to the market price of trading 
inventories for those without sales subsequent to the financial year end; and

t� "TTFTTFE
�PO�B�TBNQMF�CBTJT
�XIFUIFS�JUFNT�JO�UIF�JOWFOUPSZ�BHFJOH�SFQPSU�XFSF�DMBTTJmFE�XJUIJO�UIF�BQQSPQSJBUF�BHFJOH�
brackets and identified slow moving and obsolete inventories based on the age of the inventories with consideration of 
consumption as well as latest sales.

We have determined that there is no key audit matter in the audit of the separate financial statements of the Company to 
communicate in our auditors’ report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Company and our 
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the annual report and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to read the 
annual report and, in doing so, consider whether the annual report is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of 
the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the annual report, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements 

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal 
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the 
Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing the ability 
of the Group and of the Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or 
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

INDEPENDENT 
AUDITORS’ REPORT (CONT’D)
To the members of SLP Resources Berhad (Registration No. 200401025355 (663862 - H))(Incorporated in Malaysia)
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing, 
we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

t� *EFOUJGZ�BOE�BTTFTT�UIF�SJTLT�PG�NBUFSJBM�NJTTUBUFNFOU�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�PG�UIF�(SPVQ�BOE�PG�UIF�$PNQBOZ
�
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

t� 0CUBJO�BO�VOEFSTUBOEJOH�PG�JOUFSOBM�DPOUSPM�SFMFWBOU�UP�UIF�BVEJU�JO�PSEFS�UP�EFTJHO�BVEJU�QSPDFEVSFT�UIBU�BSF�BQQSPQSJBUF�
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the 
Group and of the Company. 

t� &WBMVBUF�UIF�BQQSPQSJBUFOFTT�PG�BDDPVOUJOH�QPMJDJFT�VTFE�BOE�UIF�SFBTPOBCMFOFTT�PG�BDDPVOUJOH�FTUJNBUFT�BOE�SFMBUFE�
disclosures made by the Directors.

t� $PODMVEF�PO�UIF�BQQSPQSJBUFOFTT�PG�UIF�%JSFDUPST��VTF�PG�UIF�HPJOH�DPODFSO�CBTJT�PG�BDDPVOUJOH�BOE
�CBTFE�PO�UIF�BVEJU�
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the ability of the Group or of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of 
the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

t� &WBMVBUF�UIF�PWFSBMM�QSFTFOUBUJPO
�TUSVDUVSF�BOE�DPOUFOU�PG�UIF�mOBODJBM�TUBUFNFOUT�PG�UIF�(SPVQ�BOE�PG�UIF�$PNQBOZ
�
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view.

t� 0CUBJO�TVGmDJFOU�BQQSPQSJBUF�BVEJU�FWJEFODF� SFHBSEJOH� UIF�mOBODJBM� JOGPSNBUJPO�PG� UIF�FOUJUJFT�PS�CVTJOFTT�BDUJWJUJFT�
within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued) 

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate treats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. 
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our auditors’ report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.

Other Matter

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies Act 
2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

KPMG PLT        Lim Su Ling 
(LLP0010081-LCA & AF 0758)     Approval Number : 03098/12/2023 J
Chartered Accountants      Chartered Accountant

Penang

Date : 11 April 2022 
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SHAREHOLDINGS 
STATISTIC
As at 4 April 2022

Total Number of Issued Shares : 316,959,999
Class of Shares : Ordinary shares 
Voting Right : One vote per share

LIST OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 

Name Direct
Indirect %Own % Others %

Khoon Tee & Family Sdn Bhd 131,652,059 41.54 - - - -

Khaw Khoon Tee 31,404,478 9.91 2,757,998 (i) 0.87 131,652,059 (ii) 41.54

Khaw Seang Chuan 47,489,085 14.98 2,644,998 (i) 0.83 131,652,059 (ii) 41.54

Khaw Choon Hoong 3,929,499 1.24 - - 131,652,059 (ii) 41.54

Note: -

(i) Shares held in the name of the spouse and children (who themselves are not Directors of the Company) and are regarded 
as interest of the Director in accordance with Section 197(1)(a) of the Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”)

(ii) Deemed interested by virtue of his/her shareholding in Khoon Tee & Family Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 8(4) of the Act

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS IN THE COMPANY 

Name Direct Indirect % 
Own % Others %

Khaw Khoon Tee 31,404,478 9.91 2,757,998 (i) 0.87 131,652,059 (ii) 41.54

Khaw Seang Chuan 47,489,085 14.98 2,644,998 (i) 0.83 131,652,059 (ii) 41.54

Khaw Choon Hoong 3,929,499 1.24 - - 131,652,059 (ii) 41.54

Khaw Choon Choon 1,853,199 0.58 100,000(i) 0.03 - -

Mary Geraldine Phipps 55,999 0.02 - - - -

Chan Wah Chong - - - - - -

Law Cheng Lock - - - - - -

Note: -

(i) Shares held in the name of the spouse and/or children (who themselves are not Directors of the Company) and are 
regarded as interest of the Director in accordance with Section 197(1)(a) of the Act

(ii) Deemed interested by virtue of his/her shareholding in Khoon Tee & Family Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 8(4) of the Act 

DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE OF SHAREHOLDINGS

No. of Holders Size of Holdings Total Holdings %

106 less than 100 shares 4,095 0.00

667 100 - 1,000 shares 286,639 0.09

1,061 1,001 - 10,000 shares 5,262,665 1.66

563 10,001 - 100,000 shares 18,094,271 5.71

93 100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares 82,766,707 26.11

3 5% and above of issued shares 210,545,622 66.43

2,493 TOTAL 316,959,999 100.00
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SHAREHOLDINGS 
STATISTIC (CONT’D)
As at 4 April 2022

LIST OF THIRTY (30) LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

NO. NAMES NO. OF SHARES %

1. KHOON TEE & FAMILY SDN. BHD. 131,652,059 41.54

2. KHAW SEANG CHUAN 47,489,085 14.98

3. KHAW KHOON TEE 21,164,145 6.68

4. CHEW SHEAU CHING 12,486,240 3.94

5. KHAW KHOON TEE 10,240,333 3.23

6. DB (MALAYSIA) NOMINEE (TEMPATAN) SENDIRIAN BERHAD DEUTSCHE TRUSTEES 
MALAYSIA BERHAD FOR EASTSPRING INVESTMENTSSMALL-CAP FUND

10,004,200 3.16

7. LIM KUAN GIN 5,500,000 1.74

8. CITIGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD.
KUMPULAN WANG PERSARAAN (DIPERBADANKAN) (AHAM EQUITY FUND) 

4,221,880 1.33

9. KHAW CHOON HOONG 3,929,499 1.24

10. LAU SU LIN 3,372,319 1.06

11. CHUAH CHIN KOK 3,223,399 1.02

12. CHUAH TEE LIN 2,528,198 0.80

13. CITIGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD. 
KUMPULAN WANG PERSARAAN (DIPERBADANKAN) 
(ESPG IV SC E)

2,185,200 0.69

14. KHAW CHOON CHOON 1,853,199 0.58

15. YEOH SEW JIN 1,409,740 0.44

16. CITIGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD.
EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND BOARD

1,379,620 0.44

17. KHAW SEANG GHEE 1,378,999 0.44

18. KHAW SEANG SENG 1,378,999 0.44

19. ONG SAW KEOK 1,312,519 0.41

20. CHAN KENG CHUNG 1,295,000 0.41

21. HSBC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD.
HSBC (M) TRUSTEE BHD. FOR RHB PRIVATE FUND – SERIES 3

1,204,440 0.38

22. CGS-CIMB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD. 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAN SIEW ENG @ TAN AING (MY0225)

1,000,000 0.32

23. CIMB GROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN. BHD. 
CIMB COMMERCE TRUSTEE BERHAD FOR MAYBANK MALAYSIA SMALLCAP FUND

1,000,000 0.32

24. LAU SU LIN 975,140 0.31

25. TAN KIM LENG @ TAN KHENG LEANG 943,040 0.30

26. CHUAH HOO JIN 922,220 0.29

27. JAPACK’S, INC. 840,000 0.27

28. MASUDA TOSHIO 840,000 0.27

29. CHUAH HOO JIN 794,800 0.25

30. CHUAH HOO JIN 727,840 0.23

TOTAL : 277,252,113 87.47
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LIST OF 
PROPERTIES
Held by the Group

Location
Description/
Existing use Tenure

Age of 
building

Land area/ 
Built up area

(Sq. ft)

Carrying 
value

RM’000
As at 

31-Dec-21

Year 
Acquired /

Revaluation

P.T. 1, Lot 57A,
Lorong Perusahaan 5,
Kawasan Perusahaan 
Kulim, 09000 
Kulim, Kedah/
Lot Nos. 
1339 & 1340 held
under GRN Nos. 
51494 & 51495 
respectively,
Section 38, 
both of Bandar 
Kulim, Daerah Kulim,
Kedah Darul Aman.

A three-storey office 
block annexed 
with a single-storey 
detached 
factory (Plant 1), 
two single-storey-
detached factories 
(Plant 2 & Plant 3), 
a canteen, a guard 
house and other 
buildings and 
ancillary structures/
office, production 
and warehouse for 
industrial use

98 years lease
expiring on 

30 Jun 2090

5 - 27
years

471,082/
387,320

 31,473 1992 & 1994/
2006 & 2016

H.S.(M) No. 11813,
P.T. 81, Kawasan 
Perusahaan
Kulim, Bandar Kulim,
Daerah Kulim, 
Kedah Darul Aman

Vacant Industrial 
Land

98 years lease
commencing 

from 13 
December
1989 and 

expiring on 12 
December

2087

Not 
Applicable

165,528/
Not 

applicable

 1,855 2007 /-

PM 788 Lot No. 4820 
Section 38 
(previously HSM 
14113, Lot No. 
PT 341) Kawasan
Perusahaan Kulim, 
Bandar Kulim, Daerah 
Kulim, Kedah 
Darul Aman

Vacant Industrial 
Land

98 years lease
commencing 
from 15 May 

1989 and 
expiring on

14 May 2087

Not 
applicable

77,156 /
Not 

applicable

 877 2008 / -

PM 787 Lot No. 4819 
Section 38 (previously 
HSM 14112,
Lot No. PT 340) 
Kawasan Perusahaan 
Kulim, Bandar
Kulim, Daerah Kulim,
Kedah Darul Aman

Vacant Industrial 
Land

98 years lease
commencing 
from 15 May 

1989 and 
expiring on

14 May 2087

Not 
applicable

76,025 /
Not 

applicable

 861* 2009 / -

Lot No. 7372, Seksyen 
38 HS(M) 15987, 
Tempat Paya Besar
Bandar Kulim, 
Daerah Kulim Kedah

Vacant 
Residential Land

Freehold 
land

Not 
applicable

4,973 /
Not 

applicable

 168 2018 / -

* Leasehold land is classified as asset held for sales
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 17th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company will be conducted on a fully 
virtual manner via live streaming and online meeting platform at https://web.vote2u.my (Domain Registration with MYNIC 
D6A471702) on Friday, 10 June 2022 at 11.00 a.m. for the following purposes:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:-

1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 and Reports of 
the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To re-elect the following Directors who retire pursuant to Article 88 of the Company’s Constitution:
(a) Madam Khaw Choon Hoong 
(b) Madam Mary Geraldine Phipps  

(Resolution 1)

(Resolution 2)

3. To approve the Directors’ Fees of up to RM200,000 for the financial year ending 31 December 2022. (Resolution 3)

4 To approve the payment of benefits payable to the Non-Executive Directors up to an amount of 
RM25,000, from 11 June 2022 until the next AGM of the Company.

(Resolution 4)

5. To re-appoint Messrs KPMG PLT as Auditors of the Company for the financial year ending 31 
December 2022 and to authorize the Board of Directors to determine their remuneration.

(Resolution 5)

SPECIAL BUSINESS:-

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without any modifications, as Ordinary Resolutions 
of the Company:-

6. AUTHORITY TO ISSUE SHARES 
“THAT, subject always to the Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”), the provisions of the Constitution 
of the Company and approval of any relevant governmental and/or regulatory authorities, where 
such approval is required, the Directors be and are hereby empowered pursuant to Section 75 
and 76 of the Act, to issue and allot shares in the capital of the Company, at any time upon such 
terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion deem 
fit, provided that the aggregate number of the shares issued pursuant to this resolution does not 
exceed ten (10) per centum of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being and the 
Directors be and are also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing of and quotation for the 
additional shares so issued on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and that such 
authority shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company.” (Resolution 6)

7. PROPOSED SHAREHOLDERS’ MANDATE FOR RECURRENT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
OF A REVENUE OR TRADING NATURE 
“THAT subject always to the provisions of the Act, the Constitution of the Company  and Bursa 
Securities’ Main Market Listing Requirements or other regulatory authorities, approval be and is 
hereby given to the Company and/or its subsidiaries to enter into the category of recurrent related 
party transactions of a revenue or trading nature as set out in Paragraph 2.3 of the Circular to 
Shareholders dated 28 April 2022 with the specific related parties mentioned therein (“the 
Mandate”), which are necessary for SLP Group’s day-to-day operations on an arm’s length basis and 
on normal commercial terms and on terms which are not more favourable to the related parties than 
those generally available to the public and are not detrimental to the minority shareholders of the 
Company.

AND THAT such approval conferred by the shareholders’ mandate shall continue to be in force until:-

(a) the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company following this AGM, at which the Mandate 
was passed, at which time it will lapse, unless by a resolution passed at that meeting whereby 
the authority is renewed;

(b) the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company is required to be held 
pursuant to Section 340(2) of the Act (but shall not extend to such extension as may be allowed 
pursuant to Section 340(4) of the Act); or 

(c) revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in general meeting,

whichever is the earlier.
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:- (CONT’D)

7. PROPOSED SHAREHOLDERS’ MANDATE FOR RECURRENT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
OF A REVENUE OR TRADING NATURE (CONT’D)

AND FURTHER THAT the Directors of the Company and/or any of them be and are/is hereby 
authorised to complete and do all such acts and things including executing such documents as may 
be considered necessary or expedient to give effect to the RRPT contemplated and/or authorized 
by this resolution.” (Resolution 7)

8. CONTINUING IN OFFICE AS INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
“Subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolution 2, to retain the Madam Mary Geraldine Phipps, who 
has served for more than nine (9) years as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company, 
pursuant to Practice 5.3 of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“the Code”).” (Resolution 8)

9. CONTINUING IN OFFICE AS INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
“To retain the Mr. Chan Wah Chong, who has served for more than nine (9) years as Independent 
Non-Executive Director of the Company, pursuant to Practice 5.3 of the Code.” (Resolution 9)

10. To transact any other ordinary business for which due notice has been given in accordance with the 
Constitution of the Company and the Act.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that for purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend this 17th AGM, the 
Company shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd, to issue a General Meeting Record of Depositors as at 2 
June 2022. Only a depositor whose name appears on the Record of Depositors as at 2 June 2022 shall be entitled to the said 
meeting or appoint proxies to attend and/or vote on his/her behalf.

By Order of the Board 

Ch’ng Lay Hoon 
(SSM PC No.: 201908000494)
(MAICSA 0818580)
Company Secretary

Penang
28 April 2022

NOTES:

Appointment of Proxy

A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at this Meeting may appoint more than one (1) Proxy, who need not be a 
member, to attend, speak and vote in his stead.  Where a member appoints more than one (1) Proxy the appointment shall 
be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his holdings to be represented by each proxy.

If the appointer is a corporation, the Proxy Form must be executed under its Common Seal or under the hand of its officer or 
attorney duly authorised. 

Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorized nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central 
Depositories) Act 1991 which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account 
(“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorized nominee may appoint in respect 
of each omnibus account it holds.

To be valid, the duly completed Proxy Form must be deposited at the Company’s registered office at Suite 12A, Level 12, 
Menara Northam, No. 55, Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah, 10050 Georgetown Penang, not less than forty-eight (48) hours before 
the time stipulated for holding the meeting or adjournment thereof.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING (CONT’D)
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NOTES: (CONT’D)

Appointment of Proxy (Cont’d)

Should you desire your Proxy to vote on the Resolutions set out in the Notice of Meeting, please indicate with an “X” in the 
appropriate space. If no specific direction as to voting is given, the Proxy will vote or abstain at his discretion.
 
Explanatory Notes On Special Business

Resolution 6

The proposed resolution is in relation to authority to allot shares pursuant to Section 75 and 76 of the Act, and if passed, will 
give a renewed mandate to the Directors of the Company, from the date of above AGM, authority to issue and allot shares 
in the Company up to and not exceeding in total ten per centum (10%) of the issued share capital of the Company for the 
time being, for such purposes as the Directors consider would be in the interest of the Company (“General Mandate”). This 
General Mandate, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting of the Company, will expire at the conclusion of the next 
AGM of the Company or the period within which the next AGM of the Company is required by law to be held whichever is 
the earlier.

Should the need arise to issue new shares the General Mandate would avoid any delay and costs in convening a general 
meeting of the Company to specifically approve such issue of share. If there should be a decision to issue new shares after 
the General Mandate is obtained, the Company would make an announcement in respect of the purpose and utilization of 
the proceeds arising from such issue. 

Resolution 7
The proposed resolution, if passed, will enable SLP’s Group to enter into recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or 
trading nature with related parties in accordance with paragraph 10.09 of Bursa Securities’ Main Market Listing Requirements. 
The mandate, unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, will expire at the next AGM of the Company.

Detailed information of the Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate is set out in the Circular to Shareholders dated 28 April 2022. 

Resolution 8 & 9

The Board of Directors via the Nominating Committee assessed the independence of Madam Mary Geraldine Phipps and Mr. 
Chan Wah Chong, who have served on the Board as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company for a cumulative 
of more than nine (9) years and the Board has recommended that the approval of the shareholders be sought to re-appoint 
Madam Mary Geraldine Phipps and Mr. Chan Wah Chong, based on the following justifications:-

(a)  They have met the criteria on the independence guidelines set out in Chapter 1 of the Main Market Listing Requirements 
of Bursa Securities and therefore able to give independent opinion to the Board;

(b) Being directors for more than nine (9) years has enabled them to contribute positively during deliberations/discussions at 
meetings as they are familiar with the operations of the Company and possess tremendous knowledge of the Company’s 
operations;

(c) They have the caliber, qualifications, experiences and personal qualities to challenge management in an effective and 
constructive manner; and

(d) They have contributed sufficient time and exercised due care during their tenure as Independent Non-Executive 
Directors and carried out their fiduciary duties in the interest of the Company and minority shareholders.

STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
[Pursuant to Paragraph 8.27(2) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities Malaysia Berhad]

1)  Save for re-election of the retiring Directors, there were no directors standing for election at the 17th AGM.
2)  The proposed Ordinary Resolution 6 for the general mandate for issue of securities is a renewal mandate. As at the 

date of this Notice, no new shares in the Company were issued pursuant to the mandate granted to the Directors of the 
Company at last AGM held on 24 June 2021.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING (CONT’D)
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CDS ACCOUNT NO. 
NO. OF SHARES HELD

Proxy Form

I/We, 
Full name of a member in BLOCK LETTERS as per Identity Card(“MYKAD”)/Passport/Certificate of Incorporation)

MYKAD/PassportNo./CompanyNo. of

(Address in full, telephone no. & email address)

telephone no. being a member of SLP RESOURCES BERHAD (“the Company”)

hereby appoint
(Full name of proxy in BLOCK LETTERS as per MYKAD/Passport)

MYKAD/PassportNo. of

(Address in full, telephone no. & email address)

And/or failing him
(Full name of proxy in BLOCK LETTERS as per MYKAD/Passport)

MYKAD/PassportNo. of

(Address in full, telephone no. & email address)

or failing the abovenamed proxies, the Chairman of the Meeting, as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 
Seventeenth Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be conducted as a fully virtual manner via live streaming and online 
meeting platform at https://web.vote2u.my (Domain Registration with MYNIC D6A471702) on Friday, 10 June 2022 at 11.00 
a.m. and at any adjournment thereof. My/our proxy/proxies is to be vote as indicated below:

Resolution For Against
1. To re-elect Ms. Khaw Choon Hoong as Director 

2. To re-elect Madam Mary Geraldine Phipps as Director 

3. To approve payment of Directors’ fees for year ending 31 December 2022

4. To approve payment of benefits payable to Non-Executive Directors

5. To re-appoint Auditors 

6. To empower Directors to issue and allot shares pursuant to Section 75 & 76 of the Companies Act 
2016

7. Shareholders’ Mandate on Recurrent Related Party Transactions

8. Continuing in Office as Independent Non-Executive Director for Madam Mary Geraldine Phipps 

9. Continuing in Office as Independent Non-Executive Director for Mr. Chan Wah Chong

(Please indicate with “X” in the spaces on how you wish your votes to be cast for or against the resolutions. In the absence of 
specific directions, your proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his discretion.)

Dated this day of 2022

Signature(s)/Common Seal of Member(s)

NOTES:
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint more than one (1) proxy, who need not be a member, to attend and vote in his stead.

Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his holdings to be represented by 
each proxy.

2. If the appointer is a corporation, the form of proxy must be executed under its Common Seal or under the hand of its officer or attorney duly authorised. 
3. Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorized nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991 which holds 

ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“Omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which 
the exempt authorized nominee may appoint in respect of each Omnibus Account it holds.

4. To be valid, the duly completed form of proxy must be deposited at the Company’s registered office at Suite 12A, Level 12, Menara Northam, No. 55, Jalan 
Sultan Ahmad Shah, 10050 Georgetown Penang, not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time stipulated for holding the meeting or adjournment 
thereof.

5. For the purpose of determining a member who shall be entitled to attend this 17th AGM, the Company shall be requesting Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn 
Bhd, to issue a General Meeting Record of Depositors as at 2 June 2022. Only a depositor whose name appears on the Record of Depositors as at 2 June 
2022 shall be entitled to attend the said meeting or appoint proxies to attend and/or vote on his/her behalf. 

6. Members’/proxies’ login to the virtual meeting will commence at 10.30 a.m. on the day of the meeting and shall remain open until the conclusion of the AGM 
or such time as may be determined by the Chairman of the meeting.

The proportions of my/our holding to be represented by my/
our proxies are as follows: -

No. of Shares Percentage
First Proxy
Second Proxy
Total 100%
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 
STOCK CODE : 7248 
COMPANY NAME : SLP Resources Berhad 
FINANCIAL YEAR : December 31, 2021 

 
 
OUTLINE: 
 
SECTION A – DISCLOSURE ON MALAYSIAN CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
Disclosures in this section are pursuant to Paragraph 15.25 of Bursa Malaysia Listing 
Requirements. 
 
SECTION B – DISCLOSURES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES PERSUANT 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES ISSUED BY BANK NEGARA MALAYSIA 
Disclosures in this section are pursuant to Appendix 4 (Corporate Governance Disclosures) 
of the Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by Bank Negara Malaysia. This section is 
only applicable for financial institutions or any other institutions that are listed on the Exchange 
that are required to comply with the above Guidelines. 
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SECTION A – DISCLOSURE ON MALAYSIAN CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Disclosures in this section are pursuant to Paragraph 15.25 of Bursa Malaysia Listing 
Requirements. 
 
Intended Outcome 
Every company is headed by a board, which assumes responsibility for the company’s 
leadership and is collectively responsible for meeting the objectives and goals of the company. 
 
Practice 1.1 
The board should set the company’s strategic aims, ensure that the necessary resources are 
in place for the company to meet its objectives and review management performance. The 
board should set the company’s values and standards, and ensure that its obligations to its 
shareholders and other stakeholders are understood and met. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Board of Directors (“Board”) recognises that Corporate Governance 
is critical to the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries (the 
"Group"). The Board is unwavering in its commitment to implementing 
the appropriate policies to guarantee that the principles of good 
governance are followed in all of the company's corporate and business 
activities. 
 
The Board is ultimately accountable and responsible for the Group's 
performance and affairs, as well as for overseeing the Group's 
corporate governance framework. All Board members are required to 
conduct themselves professionally, following the basic values of 
integrity while keeping their fiduciary responsibilities in mind. 
 
The Board delegated certain of its obligations to the Board Committees 
to assist in the fulfilment of its stewardship responsibility. This Board 
Committee will follow the Terms of Reference ("TOR") set forth in their 
separate Committee Charters, which can be found on the Company's 
website at www.sinliplas.com.my. The Chairman of the respective 
Board Committees reports to the Board on major issues discussed at 
the respective Board Committee meetings and, where appropriate, 
makes recommendations to the Board for final approval. 
 
The Board Committees include: 
(a) the Audit and Risk Management Committee (“ARMC”); 
(b) Nomination Committee (“NC”); and 
(c) Remuneration Committee (“RC”). 
 
The ARMC assists in providing oversight on the Company’s financial 
reporting, disclosure, regulatory compliance and monitoring of internal 
control processes and risk management within the Company. The 
ARMC reviews the quarterly financial results, unaudited and audited 
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financial statements, internal and external audit reports, risk profile as 
well as related party transactions. 
 
The NC oversees matters relating to the nomination of new Directors, 
annually reviews the required mix of skills, experience and other 
requisite qualities of Directors as well as the assessment of the 
effectiveness of the Board as a whole, its Committees and the 
contribution of each individual Director. 
 
The RC is primarily responsible for examining and making 
recommendation to the Board as to the remuneration packages for 
Directors and Senior Management, which reflects the performances of 
these personnel. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Every company is headed by a board, which assumes responsibility for the company’s 
leadership and is collectively responsible for meeting the objectives and goals of the company. 
 
Practice 1.2 
A Chairman of the board who is responsible for instilling good corporate governance practices, 
leadership and effectiveness of the board is appointed. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: We recognise that appointing a capable chairman to lead the Board of 
Directors (“Board”) is critical for establishing a good governance culture 
and developing trust which complements the board structure and 
formal governance legislation in terms of embedding high governance 
standards. 
 
Our Board is chaired by Khaw Khoon Tee, an Executive Chairman. Mr. 
Khaw is the Company's founder, with over 50 years of experience in the 
polymer industry. As the Board Chairman, Mr. Khaw is responsible for: 
• providing leadership for the Board so that the Board can perform 

its responsibilities effectively; 
• setting the board agenda and ensuring that Board members receive 

complete and accurate information in a timely manner; 
• leading Board meetings and discussions; 
• encouraging active participation and allowing dissenting views to 

be freely expressed; 
• managing the interface between Board and Management; 
• ensuring appropriate steps are taken to provide effective 

communication with stakeholders and that their views are 
communicated to the Board as a whole; and 

• leading the Board in establishing and monitoring good corporate 
governance practices in the company. 

 
Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Every company is headed by a board, which assumes responsibility for the company’s 
leadership and is collectively responsible for meeting the objectives and goals of the company. 
 
Practice 1.3 
The positions of Chairman and CEO are held by different individuals. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: We acknowledge the need for separation between Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer (“CEO”) (in our case, the Group Managing Director) to 
alleviate conflicts, as CEO is primarily responsible for spearheading the 
business and day-to-day management of the company, whereas the 
Chairman is primarily responsible for oversight over management. 
 
The positions of Chairman and CEO are held by separate individuals, i.e. 
Khaw Khoon Tee (Executive Chairman) and Khaw Seang Chuan (Group 
Managing Director) respectively. 
 
The Executive Chairman (“EC”) and the Group Managing Director 
(“GMD”)’s roles and responsibilities are defined and separated (Item 6 
of the Board Charter), where the EC is primarily responsible for the 
orderly conduct and effective function of the Board, including ensuring 
that all Directors receive sufficient information on financial and non-
financial matters to enable them to participate actively in Board 
deliberations and decisions, and the GMD is responsible for the day-to-
day management of the business as well as implementation of the 
Board’s policies and decisions. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Every company is headed by a board, which assumes responsibility for the company’s 
leadership and is collectively responsible for meeting the objectives and goals of the company. 
 
Practice 1.4 
The Chairman of the board should not be a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination 
Committee or Remuneration Committee 
 

Note: If the board Chairman is not a member of any of these specified committees, but the board 
allows the Chairman to participate in any or all of these committees’ meetings, by way of invitation, 
then the status of this practice should be a ‘Departure’. 
Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: Khaw Khoon Tee, the Executive Chairman (“EC”) of the Board of 
Directors (“Board”) is not a member in any Board Committees, i.e. Audit 
and Risk Management Committee, Nomination Committee and 
Remuneration Committee, as the EC and Board understands and 
advocate check and balance as well as objective review by the Board on 
deliberations emanating from the Board Committees. 
 
Further to the above, to promote effectiveness of the Board 
Committees in carrying out its respective duties and responsibilities 
with highest level of objectivity, all Board Committees comprises of and 
are chaired solely by Independent Non-Executive Directors. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Every company is headed by a board, which assumes responsibility for the company’s 
leadership and is collectively responsible for meeting the objectives and goals of the company. 
 
Practice 1.5 
The board is supported by a suitably qualified and competent Company Secretary to provide 
sound governance advice, ensure adherence to rules and procedures, and advocate adoption 
of corporate governance best practices. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: We recognise that the responsibility of Company Secretaries has 
evolved from advising on administrative matters to advising Board of 
Directors (“Boards”) on governance matters, Board policies and 
procedures as well as pertinent regulatory requirements. As a result, it 
is pivotal that the Board is supported by suitably qualified and 
competent Company Secretary. The Board as a whole, is responsible 
and has the authority to appoint and remove the Company Secretary. 
Criteria considered include amongst others, performance, competency, 
and capability of the Company Secretary. 
 
Ch’ng Lay Hoon (MAICSA 0818580) has been appointed as the Company 
Secretary since 25 August 2004, prior to our listing on the Second Board 
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa”) in year 2008. She has the 
requisite credentials and is qualified to act as Company Secretary under 
Section 235(1) and (2) of the Companies Act 2016, and periodically 
undertakes continuous professional development to upskill and keep 
abreast of new developments. 
 
The key responsibilities of the Company Secretary include: 
• Manages all Board and committee meeting logistics, attends and 

records minutes of all Board and committee meetings and 
facilitates Board communications; 

• Advises the Board on its roles and responsibilities; 
• Facilitates the orientation of new directors and assists in director 

training and development; 
• Advises the Board on corporate disclosures and compliance with 

Group and securities regulations and listing requirements; 
• Manages processes pertaining to the shareholders’ meetings; 
• Monitors corporate governance developments and assists the 

Board in applying governance practices to meet the Board’s needs 
and stakeholders’ expectations; and 

• Serves as a focal point for stakeholders’ communication and 
engagement on corporate governance issues. 

 
Explanation for 
departure 

:  
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Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Every company is headed by a board, which assumes responsibility for the company’s 
leadership and is collectively responsible for meeting the objectives and goals of the company. 
 
Practice 1.6 
Directors receive meeting materials, which are complete and accurate within a reasonable 
period prior to the meeting. Upon conclusion of the meeting, the minutes are circulated in a 
timely manner. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: We recognise that Directors rely on Management for the information 
necessary to carry out their oversight duties, and owing to the oversight 
nature of their roles, in particular Non-Executive Directors, will 
inherently lack in-depth knowledge on the operations in comparison to 
the Management team. Hence, it is important that sound and sufficient 
information flow are provided timely in order to facilitate robust and 
effective deliberations. 
 
Similarly, information flow from Board of Directors (“Board”) to 
Management (including proceedings and decisions of the Board) is 
critical for Management’s actions, including execution of the 
Company’s strategic plan and many other critical processes. Hence, 
upon conclusion of Board and Board Committee meetings, all Directors 
should ensure that the minutes of meetings accurately reflect the 
deliberations and decisions of the Board or Board Committees and shall 
be circulated timely. 
 
To facilitate adequate preparation for meetings, our Management 
provides the Board and Board Committees members with Board Papers 
and agenda items at least seven (7) business days prior to the meetings, 
barring any unforeseen circumstances. The Board papers are prepared 
in a form, timeframe and quality that enables the Board and Board 
Committees to effectively discharge their duties. Furthermore, 
Directors are also provided with the authority to request for additional 
information they consider necessary to support informed decision 
making. 
 
During Board and Board Committees’ meetings, the Company Secretary 
will minute discussions, comments, deliberations (including dissenting 
views) and decisions made, including whether any Director abstained 
from voting or deliberating on a particular matter. Upon conclusion of 
the meetings, the minutes are circulated to the respective Directors in 
a timely manner, for confirmation on the accuracy of the meeting 
minutes documentation. 
 
The minutes of the Board and Board Committees’ meetings are retained 
at the registered office and are available for inspection by any Director 
during office hours. 
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Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
There is demarcation of responsibilities between the board, board committees and 
management.  
 
There is clarity in the authority of the board, its committees and individual directors. 
 
Practice 2.1 
The board has a board charter which is periodically reviewed and published on the company’s 
website. The board charter clearly identifies–  

▪ the respective roles and responsibilities of the board, board committees, individual 
directors and management; and 

▪ issues and decisions reserved for the board. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Board of Directors (“Board”) recognises the importance of clarifying 
its responsibilities as well as that of the Board Committees, individual 
Directors and Management by establishing and defining clear 
boundaries, to minimise blurring of lines between the roles of the Board 
and Management which also clearly delineates points of accountability. 
The boundaries set shall be formally documented into a Board Charter 
document, which acts as a policy statement that outlines the Board's 
governance structure, power, and terms of reference, as well as those 
of its committees and Management. This document serves as the 
primary reference and literature that guides the governance and 
conduct of the Board. 
 
The Board has established a Board Charter which among others, outline 
the following: 
• composition and board balance; 
• duties and responsibilities of the Board, Board Committees, 

Chairman and Managing Director, Executive Directors, and 
Independent Directors; 

• access to information and independent advice; 
• duty to disclose interests; 
• Company Secretary; 
• dealings in securities; 
• orientation and continuing education; 
• Board assessment; and 
• Schedule of matters reserved for the Board. 
 
The Board Charter is reviewed on a periodic basis and may be amended 
by the Board from time to time to ensure it reflects and adapt to 
changing circumstances. 
 
The Board understands that the Board Charter can serve as an avenue 
to communicate the company’s approach to governance, allowing 
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stakeholders to understand the practices put in place by the Directors 
in discharging their responsibilities towards the company and its 
stakeholders, hence it is published on our corporate website at 
www.sinliplas.com.my and is accessible at all times to all our 
stakeholders. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
The board is committed to promoting good business conduct and maintaining a healthy 
corporate culture that engenders integrity, transparency and fairness.  
 
The board, management, employees and other stakeholders are clear on what is considered 
acceptable behaviour and practice in the company. 
 
Practice 3.1 
The board establishes a Code of Conduct and Ethics for the company, and together with 
management implements its policies and procedures, which include managing conflicts of 
interest, preventing the abuse of power, corruption, insider trading and money laundering.  
 
The Code of Conduct and Ethics is published on the company’s website. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: Ethical business practice is considered a key cornerstone of our 
business. The Board of Directors (“Board”) recognises that a company’s 
culture is largely shaped by the company’s leadership, and hence it is 
pivotal that ethical principles and values are formalised and 
communicated through the Code of Conduct and Ethic for all Directors 
and employees, to provide a strong “tone from the top” in shaping the 
attitudes and behaviours within the company. 
 
Our Group Code of Conduct and Ethic was first established on 28 April 
2014, based on principles of integrity, responsibility, trust, discipline, 
and diligence. The Code of Conduct and Ethic covers the following 
topics: 
• corporate governance; 
• relationship with shareholders, employees, creditors and 

customers; 
• social responsibilities and the environment; 
• core areas of conduct; 
• insider trading; 
• money laundering; and 
• violation of the code. 
 
The Code of Conduct and Ethic is reviewed periodically to ensure 
relevancy and is accessible via our corporate website at 
www.sinliplas.com.my. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  
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Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
The board is committed to promoting good business conduct and maintaining a healthy 
corporate culture that engenders integrity, transparency and fairness.  
 
The board, management, employees and other stakeholders are clear on what is considered 
acceptable behaviour and practice in the company. 
 
Practice 3.2 
The board establishes, reviews and together with management implements policies and 
procedures on whistleblowing. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: We recognise the importance of having a channel for stakeholders 
(including internal and external parties) to report genuine concerns 
about wrongdoings, including a legal obligation being breached 
(including negligence, criminal activity, breach of contract, and breach 
of law), a miscarriage of justice, a threat to health and safety or the 
environment, or a cover-up of any of these in the workplace, to enable 
allegations to be thoroughly investigated and to carry out necessary 
actions, where appropriate. This is to reduce the risk of falling into a 
vicious cycle where Management and the Board of Directors (“Board”) 
are unaware of problems and misconduct remains pervasive or 
unaddressed in the absence of a well-designed whistleblowing 
framework for stakeholders to raise concerns about illegal or unethical 
activity that they are aware of through their dealings. 
 
We have formalised a Group Whistleblowing Policy on 24 April 2014, 
with the following objectives: 
• encourage whistle blower to feel confident in raising serious 

genuine concerns and to question and act on those concerns; 
• provide ways to raise those concerns and get feedback on action 

taken; and 
• re-assure whistle blower that if they raise concerns in good faith, 

believing them to be true, they will be protected from possible 
reprisals or victimisation. 

 
The principles underpinning our Whistleblowing Policy include: 
• all concerns raised will be treated fairly and properly; 
• the Group will not tolerate harassment or victimisation of anyone 

raising a genuine concern; 
• the Group will ensure no whistle blower will be at risk of suffering 

some form of reprisal as a result of raising a concern even if he is 
mistaken. The Group, however, does not extend this assurance to 
someone who maliciously raises a matter he knows is untrue or is 
acting for personal gain; and 
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• the submission of a false or frivolous report may have 
consequences for whistle blower and he may be liable for damages 
towards anyone who suffered from such false report. 

 
This Whistleblowing Policy provides amongst others, the policies and 
procedures for whistleblowing, including personnel whom these 
whistleblowings are addressed to (i.e. immediate superior, 
Management and Independent Non-Executive Director) and the 
reporting form. 
 
This Whistleblowing Policy is published on our corporate website at 
www.sinliplas.com.my. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
The company addresses sustainability risks and opportunities in an integrated and strategic 
manner to support its long-term strategy and success. 
 
Practice 4.1 
The board together with management takes responsibility for the governance of sustainability 
in the company including setting the company’s sustainability strategies, priorities and targets. 
 
The board takes into account sustainability considerations when exercising its duties including 
among others the development and implementation of company strategies, business plans, 
major plans of action and risk management. 
 
Strategic management of material sustainability matters should be driven by senior 
management. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: Sustainability is commonly defined as “Development that meets the 
needs of the present without compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs”. To be able to sustain our 
business in the long run, we understand that our business needs to be 
carried out in a sustainable and responsible manner, i.e. limiting 
damage of our business in relation to the economic, environment and 
social front. To achieve this objective, both the Board of Directors 
(“Board”) and Management plays a quintessential leading role in setting 
the company’s sustainability strategies, priorities and targets. 
Specifically, the Board shall provide robust oversight whilst the Senior 
Management is responsible to drive the strategic management of a 
company’s material sustainability matters. 
 
We have established and assigned sustainability related responsibilities 
across the company (i.e. governance structure), where the Board is 
supported by the Audit and Risk Management Committee, which in 
turns is supported by the Risk Management and Sustainability Working 
Committee and also by the Head of Departments/ Business Unit. 
 
Sustainability considerations is integrated into the strategic direction of 
the Group, where the Management is tasked to implement these 
sustainability strategies and initiatives set. 
 
Further details on the sustainability governance structure and the roles 
and responsibilities of each governing functions are available in the 
Sustainability Statement of the Annual Report. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  
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Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
The company addresses sustainability risks and opportunities in an integrated and strategic 
manner to support its long-term strategy and success. 
 
Practice 4.2 
The board ensures that the company’s sustainability strategies, priorities and targets as well 
as performance against these targets are communicated to its internal and external 
stakeholders. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: We understand that in order to obtain a more holistic view on 
sustainability risks and opportunities of the Company, it is critical to 
consider these sustainability matters (i.e. economic, environment and 
social - “EES”) from both internal and external perspectives. Hence, in 
identifying EES matters that are material to us, we have performed 
stakeholder engagement, to identify key stakeholders to the company, 
and through engagement with these key stakeholders and assessment 
performed by the Company, identify EES matters that are material (i.e. 
materiality assessment process). 
 
Upon identifying the Material Sustainability Matters (“MSM”), we 
identify strategies and targets relevant to these MSM. These strategies 
and targets form the benchmark where our business operations and 
management of the MSM are based on. 
 
The Board of Directors (“Board”) recognise the importance of not only 
practicing sustainable practices in its day-to-day operations, but also 
the need to communicate these strategies, priorities, targets as well as 
performance against these targets internally and to external 
stakeholders. Internally, we have various reports to track the 
performance of the MSM. The above is disclosed to the public through 
our Sustainability Report which forms part of our Annual Report. 
 
In preparing the Sustainability Report, we have observed Paragraph 29, 
Part A of Appendix 9C and Practice Note 9 of the Main Market Listing 
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa”) and 
considered the Sustainability Reporting Guide 2nd Edition and its 
accompanying Toolkits published by Bursa. 
 
Further details on the strategies, priorities and targets as well as 
performance against these targets are available in the Sustainability 
Statement of the Annual Report. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  
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Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   

 



 
 

21 
 

Intended Outcome 
The company addresses sustainability risks and opportunities in an integrated and strategic 
manner to support its long-term strategy and success. 
 
Practice 4.3 
The board takes appropriate action to ensure they stay abreast with and understand the 
sustainability issues relevant to the company and its business, including climate-related risks 
and opportunities. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Board of Directors (“Board”) is ultimately responsible for 
sustainability practices and performances. The Board oversees 
sustainability matters by ensuring sustainability is integrated into the 
strategic direction of the Group and driving the Group’s sustainability 
practices. 
 
In order to discharge its oversight role effectively, we acknowledge the 
importance for Board members possessing sufficient understanding 
and knowledge of sustainability issues that are relevant to the company 
and its business, including climate-related risks and opportunities. 
 
The Board has during the year, attended several Environmental, Social 
and Governance (“ESG”) related training to stay abreast with 
development in the fields of sustainability and how it will potentially 
impact the Group. 
 
Further to the above, the criteria for Board evaluation has been revised 
to include ESG aspect, and will be used in the upcoming Board 
evaluation (for the financial year 2022) by the Nomination Committee. 
 
Refer to the CG Overview Statement in the Annual Report 2021 for the 
details of training attended by the Directors during the year. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
The company addresses sustainability risks and opportunities in an integrated and strategic 
manner to support its long-term strategy and success. 
 
Practice 4.4 
Performance evaluations of the board and senior management include a review of the 
performance of the board and senior management in addressing the company’s material 
sustainability risks and opportunities. 
 

Application : Departure 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

:  

Explanation for 
departure 

: Sustainability performances at current does not form part of the 
performance evaluation of the Board and Senior Management. 
 
The Board of Directors (“Board”) understands the concept of “if you 
can’t measure it, you can’t manage it”. Hence, targets in relation to 
Material Sustainability Matters were set, where performances 
thereafter are measured against the targets. 
 
Furthermore, the Board understands that sustainability performance of 
the Company shall be tied to performance evaluation of the Board and 
Senior Management, to promote accountability and a more objective 
evaluation of the Company’s performance as a whole. 
 
Performance evaluation of the Board shall be evaluated against issues 
that may require intervention by the Board as the oversight committee 
whereas performance evaluation of the Senior Management shall be 
based on the measurement and reporting of the sustainability key 
performance indicators. 
 
The Board together with the Senior Management is currently 
undertaking a study on the integration of sustainability performances 
as part of the performance evaluation of both the Board and Senior 
Management. 
 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure : Please explain the measure(s) the company has taken or intend to take 
to adopt the practice. 

Timeframe : Choose an item.  
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Intended Outcome 
The company addresses sustainability risks and opportunities in an integrated and strategic 
manner to support its long-term strategy and success. 
 
Practice 4.5- Step Up 
The board identifies a designated person within management, to provide dedicated focus to 
manage sustainability strategically, including the integration of sustainability considerations in 
the operations of the company. 
 

Note: The explanation on adoption of this practice should include a brief description of the 
responsibilities of the designated person and actions or measures undertaken pursuant to the role in 
the financial year. 
Application : Not Adopted 

Explanation on 
adoption of the 
practice 

:  
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Intended Outcome 
Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into account 
diverse perspectives and insights. 
 
Practice 5.1 
The Nomination Committee should ensure that the composition of the board is refreshed 
periodically. The tenure of each director should be reviewed by the Nomination Committee 
and annual re-election of a director should be contingent on satisfactory evaluation of the 
director’s performance and contribution to the board. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: To ensure the company’s leadership is equipped with the right skills and 
experience to steer it through contemporary challenges and 
opportunities, towards its long-term strategy and goals, the Board of 
Directors (“Board”) understands that periodic refreshment of the Board 
is critical, considering amongst others, new skills and fresh 
perspectives, capable of questioning the status quo, etc. 
 
One of the key functions of the Nomination Committee is to ensure 
effective functioning of the Board and Board Committees, hence in the 
appointment of new Directors and during annual assessment of the 
Board, Board Committee and individual Directors, the Nomination 
Committee will consider various key criteria, including skills, 
knowledge, experience, diversity, time commitment, character, and 
integrity. 
 
Based on the assessment carried out on the Board, Board Committees 
and individual Directors for the financial year ended 31 December 2021, 
the Nomination Committee is satisfied with the performances of the 
Board, all the Board Committees and all the Directors. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into account 
diverse perspectives and insights. 
 
Practice 5.2 
At least half of the board comprises independent directors. For Large Companies, the board 
comprises a majority independent directors. 
 

Application : Departure 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

:  

Explanation for 
departure 

: The Board of Directors (“Board”) consists of seven (7) Directors, four (4) 
of which are Executive Directors and the remaining three (3) being 
Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INED”) as follows: 
 

No. Directorship Name 

1 Executive Chairman • Khaw Khoon Tee 

2 Group Managing Director • Khaw Seang Chuan 

3 Executive Director • Khaw Choon Hoong 
• Khaw Choon Choon 

4 Senior Independent Non-Executive 
Director 

• Mary Geraldine Phipps 

5 Independent Non-Executive Director • Chan Wah Chong 
• Law Cheng Lock 

 
Despite departing from this Practice, our Board composition complies 
with Paragraph 15.02(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of 
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad that requires at least two (2) Directors 
or one-third (1/3) of the Board, whichever is higher, to be INED. 
 
The Board understands the benefits of INED bringing objectivity to the 
oversight function of the Board, where these Directors are able to 
debate with and challenge the Senior Management team in a relatively 
more unbiased manner compared to Executive Directors who play a key 
role in running the business. 
 
Nevertheless, the Board believes that having regard to the current 
INEDs’ knowledge, experiences, and competencies, they are able to 
bring objectivity and independent judgement to the Board. 
 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 
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Measure : Please explain the measure(s) the company has taken or intend to take 
to adopt the practice. 

Timeframe : Choose an item.  
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Intended Outcome 
Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into account 
diverse perspectives and insights. 
 
Practice 5.3 
The tenure of an independent director does not exceed a cumulative term limit of nine years. 
Upon completion of the nine years, an independent director may continue to serve on the 
board as a non-independent director.  
 
If the board intends to retain an independent director beyond nine years, it should provide 
justification and seek annual shareholders’ approval through a two-tier voting process. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Board of Directors (“Board”) acknowledges the importance of 
Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INED”) to the Board, where 
they bring objectivity to the oversight function of the Board. To ensure 
effectiveness of the INED, it is vital that INED are both independence in 
mind and independence in appearance, hence, we have limited the 
tenure of an INED to not exceeding a cumulative term of nine (9) years.  
 
In spite of the above, the Board also recognises the value its INED 
brings, despite serving for a period of more than nine (9) years. In order 
to provide a balance between values of the INED against perceived non-
independence due to the tenure served, we have implemented the 
practice where the Company would like to retain an INED beyond nine 
(9) years, it should be subjected to the following: 
• annual assessment by the Nomination Committee, regarding the 

independence and contributions; and 
• annual shareholders’ approval in a general meeting through a two-

tier voting process, where the Board provides strong justification on 
the recommendation. 

 
We have in the latest Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) on 24 June 2021 
(16th AGM), carried out two-tier voting for two (2) out of the three (3) 
INED, having served our Board beyond nine (9) years. Both the said INED 
were successfully reappointed to the Board. 
 
In the upcoming AGM (17th AGM), only two (2) out of the three (3) INED 
will have served our Board beyond 9 years. The two-tier voting process 
will be practiced should we wish to retain these two (2) INED. The INED 
that exceeded the nine (9) years tenure are: 
 

No. Independent Directors Date of appointment 

1 Mary Geraldine Phipps 26 October 2007 

2 Chan Wah Chong 1 July 2009 
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Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into account 
diverse perspectives and insights. 
 
Practice 5.4 - Step Up 
The board has a policy which limits the tenure of its independent directors to nine years without 
further extension. 
 

Note: To qualify for adoption of this Step Up practice, a listed issuer must have a formal policy which 
limits the tenure of an independent director to nine years without further extension i.e. shareholders’ 
approval to retain the director as an independent director beyond nine years. 
Application : Not Adopted 

Explanation on 
adoption of the 
practice 

:  
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Intended Outcome 
Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into account 
diverse perspectives and insights. 
 
Practice 5.5 
Appointment of board and senior management are based on objective criteria, merit and with 
due regard for diversity in skills, experience, age, cultural background and gender. 
 
Directors appointed should be able to devote the required time to serve the board effectively. 
The board should consider the existing board positions held by a director, including on boards 
of non-listed companies. Any appointment that may cast doubt on the integrity and governance 
of the company should be avoided. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Board of Directors (“Board”) recognises that appointing the right 
person to the leadership team with the right skills, experience, and 
credibility is critical. Furthermore, to avoid “groupthink”, it is important 
that the Board and Senior Management has diversity in the form of 
skills, experience, age, cultural background and gender. Apart from 
competency and capability, personal qualities (such as honesty, 
integrity, diligence, independence of mind and fairness) and time-
commitment of a Director and Senior Management are equally 
important. 
 
The appointment of new Directors and Senior Management, the re- 
election of Directors, and re-appointment of Non-Executive Directors 
falls within the ambit of the Nomination Committee. The Board 
recognises a diverse Board in the Company and/ or the Group could 
offer greater depth and breadth compared to non‐diverse Board whilst 
the diversity at Senior Management will lead to better decision making. 
Hence, the Nomination Committee will consider in its evaluation, 
amongst others, the balance of skills, knowledge, experience and 
diversity. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into account 
diverse perspectives and insights. 
 
Practice 5.6 
In identifying candidates for appointment of directors, the board does not solely rely on 
recommendations from existing board members, management or major shareholders. The 
board utilises independent sources to identify suitably qualified candidates. 
 
If the selection of candidates was based on recommendations made by existing directors, 
management or major shareholders, the Nominating Committee should explain why these 
source(s) suffice and other sources were not used. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: We recognise the need of avoiding the effect of "informal networks" on 
Board of Directors (“Board”) appointments, where the Directors elected 
are likely to have a sense of loyalty to the controlling shareholders or 
the Directors who have nominated them. Hence to recruit the most 
suitable candidates to form a high-functioning and effective Board, it is 
imperative that a formal and transparent procedure should be 
established for sourcing and appointing new Directors to the Board. 
 
The Nomination Committee is tasked to assist the Board in the process 
of evaluating new candidates for the appointment to the Board. The 
Nomination Committee will consider candidates proposed by internal 
parties, including the Managing Director, Senior Executives, Directors 
and Major Shareholder. 
 
In spite of the above, the Nomination Committee has the authority to 
utilise independent sources such as the directors' register, industry and 
professional associations, open advertisements, and independent 
search firms to source for potential candidates. 
 
During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, there were no new 
Directors being appointed to the Board. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into account 
diverse perspectives and insights. 
 
Practice 5.7 
The board should ensure shareholders have the information they require to make an informed 
decision on the appointment and reappointment of a director. This includes details of any 
interest, position or relationship that might influence, or reasonably be perceived to influence, 
in a material respect their capacity to bring an independent judgement to bear on issues before 
the board and to act in the best interests of the listed company as a whole. The board should 
also provide a statement as to whether it supports the appointment or reappointment of the 
candidate and the reasons why. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: In order to enable shareholders to make an informed decision on the 
appointment and reappointment of a Director, we understand that 
sufficiency in information and whether the Board supports the 
appointment or reappointment of a candidate and the reason thereof 
is vital and shall be disclosed. 
 
The Company has not appointed any new Directors in the financial year 
ended 31 December 2021. Nevertheless, we have during the 16th 
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), reappointed Mary Geraldine Phipps 
and Chan Wah Chong as Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INED”) 
through a two-tier voting system, as both have served the Board as 
INED for more than nine (9) years. The profiles of these INED were 
disclosed in the Annual Report for the financial year ending 31 
December 2020, whilst the justifications for the reappointment and 
statement as to whether the Board supports the reappointment were 
disclosed in the Notice of the 16th AGM. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into account 
diverse perspectives and insights. 
 
Practice 5.8 
The Nominating Committee is chaired by an Independent Director or the Senior Independent 
Director. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Nomination Committee (“NC”) is a key gatekeeper in the process of 
recruiting Directors, evaluating their performance and driving the 
continuous performance of the Board of Directors (“Board”). The Board 
acknowledges the benefits of having an Independent Non-Executive 
Director (“INED”) as the Chairman of the NC to ensure objectivity and 
independent judgement during deliberations. 
 
The NC is chaired by Law Cheng Lock, an INED, and comprised 
exclusively of INED. We have a Senior INED in Mary Geraldine Phipps, 
who served as the NC Chairman until her redesignation on 7 May 2021. 
She is currently the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management 
Committee. 
 
The composition of the NC are as follows: 
 

No. Name of Directors Position Directorship 

1 Law Cheng Lock Chairman Independent Non-
Executive Director 

2 Chan Wah Chong Committee 
Member 

Independent Non-
Executive Director 

3 Mary Geraldine 
Phipps 

Senior Independent Non-
Executive Director 

 
The NC as a whole, is responsible for: 
• new appointments of Directors and Senior Management; 
• re-election, re-appointment, re-designation and resignation/ 

termination of Directors; 
• succession planning for the Board and Senior Management; 
• annual performance assessment of the Board, Board Committees 

and Individual Directors; 
• induction training and training needs analysis for Directors; and 
• size of Board and Independent Directors.  
 
The Chairman of the NC shall specifically: 
• lead the succession planning and appointment of Board members, 

including the future Chairman and Chief Executive Officer; and 
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• lead the annual review of board effectiveness, ensuring that the 
performance of each individual director is independently assessed. 

 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into account 
diverse perspectives and insights. 
 
Practice 5.9 
The board comprises at least 30% women directors. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Board of Directors (“Board”) understands and appreciates the value 
of gender diversity and contributions by women in the roles as Directors 
and Senior Management of the Company. 
 
This is evident by gender diversity of the Board and Senior Management 
as follows: 
 

Board of Directors Number Percentage (%) 

Male 4 57 

Female 3 43 

 
Senior Management(1) Number Percentage (%) 

Male 3 50 

Female 3 50 
Note(1): Senior Management includes Executive Directors 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Board decisions are made objectively in the best interests of the company taking into account 
diverse perspectives and insights. 
 
Practice 5.10 
The board discloses in its annual report the company’s policy on gender diversity for the board 
and senior management.  
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Board acknowledges that the expectations on gender diversity have 
escalated due to emerging trends in governance and diversity, changing 
business and social landscape as well as the push from various 
stakeholders, including the government. 
 
Our Company is focused in providing fair and equitable opportunities, 
inclusivity and developing diversity without discrimination. The Board 
has established a Diversity Policy for the Group, which covers diversity 
in the following: 
• gender; 
• age; 
• skill and experience; and 
• ethnicity. 
 
Apart from the diversity principles above, the Board and Senior 
Management (including eligibility of candidates) are also assessed 
based on their competence, character, time commitment, and integrity. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Stakeholders are able to form an opinion on the overall effectiveness of the board and 
individual directors. 
 
Practice 6.1 
The board should undertake a formal and objective annual evaluation to determine the 
effectiveness of the board, its committees and each individual director. The board should 
disclose how the assessment was carried out its outcome, actions taken and how it has or will 
influence board composition. 
 
For Large Companies, the board engages an independent expert at least every three years, 
to facilitate objective and candid board evaluation. 
 

Note: For a Large Company to qualify for adoption of this practice, it must undertake annual board 
evaluation and engage an independent expert at least every three years to facilitate the evaluation. 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Board of Directors (“Board”) understands the need for annual 
evaluation to evaluate and self-examine the Board, its Committees and 
individual Directors on leadership, culture, delegation of duties, 
teamwork, decision making, etc., to measure and improve 
performances, where required, to enable the Board to operate 
efficiently and effectively. 
 
The duties and responsibilities for annual performance assessment of 
the Board, Board Committees, and Individual Directors falls to the 
Nomination Committee (“NC”).  
 
This assessment covers the following: 
• the required mix of skills and experience of the Board, including the 

core competencies which Non-Executive Directors should bring to 
the Board; 

• the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the Committees of the 
Board and the contribution of each individual Director including his 
time commitment, character, experience and integrity vide a formal 
and objective assessment. All assessments and evaluations carried 
out by the Committee in the discharge of all its functions shall be 
properly documented; 

• the character, experience, integrity and competence of Directors, 
chief executive and chief financial officer and to ensure they have 
time to discharge their respective roles; 

• the term of office and performance of the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee and each of its members to determine 
whether they have carried out their duties in accordance with their 
Terms of Reference; and 

• the independence of Independent Directors. 
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Assessment of the Board, Board Committees and Individual Directors 
through self and peer evaluation method were performed in February 
2022, where the overall result of the assessment is “satisfactory”. 
 
Although independent expert was not engaged to facilitate objective 
and candid board evaluation as the Company does not fall under the 
definition of a “large company”, the NC is authorised under its Terms of 
Reference to engage a professional, experienced and independent 
party (when necessary) to facilitate the Board evaluation. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
The level and composition of remuneration of directors and senior management take into 
account the company’s desire to attract and retain the right talent in the board and senior 
management to drive the company’s long-term objectives.  
 
Remuneration policies and decisions are made through a transparent and independent 
process. 
 
Practice 7.1 
The board has remuneration policies and procedures to determine the remuneration of 
directors and senior management, which takes into account the demands, complexities and 
performance of the company as well as skills and experience required. The remuneration 
policies and practices should appropriately reflect the different roles and responsibilities of 
non-executive directors, executive directors and senior management. The policies and 
procedures are periodically reviewed and made available on the company’s website. 
 

Application : Departure 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

:  

Explanation for 
departure 

: The Group have a remuneration policies and procedures to determine 
the remuneration of its Directors. However, it was not made available 
on the corporate website as the Board of Directors (“Board”) is of the 
opinion that such policies and procedures are not necessarily for public 
consumption. 
 
The Company recognises that the need for fair and transparent 
remuneration policy and procedures is now more important than ever, 
recognising that the current business environment is becoming more 
complex as a result of rising stakeholder expectations, globalisation, 
technological advancements, and business model innovation, all of 
which necessitate remuneration packages to be aligned with the 
company's long-term business sustainability. 
 
The Board is assisted by the Remuneration Committee, tasked to 
perform the following: 
• determine and recommend to the Board the remuneration policy 

and procedures for Directors, including the fee structure and level 
of remuneration for Executive Directors of the Board; 

• review the remuneration policy and procedures for Directors on 
annual basis; 

• assist the Board in developing and administrating a fair and 
transparent procedure for setting policy on remuneration of 
Directors; 

• review and recommend to the Board on the remuneration of the 
Non-Executive Directors; 
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• review and recommend to the Board on the total individual 
remuneration package for Executive; and 

• review and recommend to the Board and subsequently to the 
shareholder’s approval at a general Meeting, the fees of the 
Directors and any benefits payable to the Directors. 

 
The remuneration packages for the Executive Chairman, Managing 
Director, and other Executive Directors are linked to the company’s and 
individual’s performances. Individual achievement against targets set at 
the start of each year is measured against the Company's key 
performance indicators ("KPI"). The Executive Directors review the 
Senior Management who reports directly to them on an annual basis 
based on annual measurements and targets. 
 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure : Please explain the measure(s) the company has taken or intend to take 
to adopt the practice. 

Timeframe : Choose an item.  
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Intended Outcome 
The level and composition of remuneration of directors and senior management take into 
account the company’s desire to attract and retain the right talent in the board and senior 
management to drive the company’s long-term objectives.  
 
Remuneration policies and decisions are made through a transparent and independent 
process. 
 
Practice 7.2 
The board has a Remuneration Committee to implement its policies and procedures on 
remuneration including reviewing and recommending matters relating to the remuneration of 
board and senior management.  
 
The Committee has written Terms of Reference which deals with its authority and duties and 
these Terms are disclosed on the company’s website. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Board of Directors (“Board”) recognises the importance and 
benefits of having a Remuneration Committee (“RC”), to set a clear and 
objective remuneration policies and procedures, and to exercise 
objectivity in determining remuneration for the Board and the Senior 
Management. 
 
To supervise remuneration-related matters, the Board has established 
a RC, comprises solely of Independent Non-Executive Directors. The 
composition of the RC are as follows: 
 

No. Name of Directors Position Directorship 

1 Chan Wah Chong Chairman Independent Non-Executive 
Director 

2 Law Cheng Lock Committee 
Member 

Independent Non-Executive 
Director 

3 Mary Geraldine 
Phipps 

Senior Independent Non-
Executive Director 

 
The RC is guided by a formalised Terms of Reference, which is made 
available on our corporate website at www.sinliplas.com.my. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 
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Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Stakeholders are able to assess whether the remuneration of directors and senior 
management is commensurate with their individual performance, taking into consideration the 
company’s performance. 
 
Practice 8.1 
There is detailed disclosure on named basis for the remuneration of individual directors. The 
remuneration breakdown of individual directors includes fees, salary, bonus, benefits in-kind 
and other emoluments. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: We understand that Directors’ remuneration has often attracted public 
attention. Shareholders of the company would like to understand the 
reasonableness of the Directors’ remuneration as to safeguard their 
investments. 
 
The remuneration paid to Directors of the Group and the Company for 
the financial year ended 31 December 2021 are as follows: 
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No Name Directorate 

Company (‘000) Group (‘000) 

Fe
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1 Khaw Khoon Tee Executive 
Director - 5 - - - - 5 43 5 360 22 - 17 447 

2 Khaw Seang Chuan Executive 
Director - - - - - - - - - 360 21 - 49 430 

3 Khaw Choon Hoong Executive 
Director - - - - - - - - - 300 13 - 41 354 

4 Khaw Choon Choon Executive 
Director - - - - - - - - - 276 19 - 38 333 

5 Mary Geraldine 
Phipps 

Independent 
Director 40 5 - - - - 45 40 5 - - - - 45 

6 Law Cheng Lock Independent 
Director 32 5 - - - - 37 32 5 - - - - 37 

7 Chan Wah Chong Independent 
Director 32 5 - - - - 37 32 5 - - - - 37 

8 
Leow Chan Khiang 
(resigned effective 1 
March 2021) 

Independent 
Director 5 1 - - - - 6 5 1 - - - - 6 

9 Input info here Choose an item. Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

10 Input info here Choose an item. Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

11 Input info here Choose an item. Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

12 Input info here Choose an item. Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

13 Input info here Choose an item. Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

14 Input info here Choose an item. Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

15 Input info here Choose an item. Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 

Input 
info here 
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Intended Outcome 
Stakeholders are able to assess whether the remuneration of directors and senior 
management is commensurate with their individual performance, taking into consideration the 
company’s performance. 
 
Practice 8.2 
The board discloses on a named basis the top five senior management’s remuneration 
component including salary, bonus, benefits in-kind and other emoluments in bands of 
RM50,000. 
 

Application : Departure 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

:  

Explanation for 
departure 

: The detailed remuneration on a named basis of the Company’s top four 
(4) Senior Management who are also Executive Directors have been 
disclosed in Practice 8.1 above. 
 
In view of the competitive nature of the human resource market and 
sensitivity of such information, the Board considers the disclosure of 
such information to be detrimental to the Company and the individual. 
 
However, the Board of Directors (“Board”) understands that 
shareholders should also be allowed to determine if the Senior 
Management team is being appropriately compensated, hence, have 
disclosed the aggregated remuneration paid to the Senior Management 
team in the range of RM50,000 as follows on an unnamed basis: 
 

Range of remuneration (RM) Number of Senior Management 
Executive 

150,001 to 200,000 1 

250,001 to 300,000 1 

300,001 to 350,000 1 

350,001 to 400,000 1 

400,001 to 450,000 2 

 
Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure : Please explain the measure(s) the company has taken or intend to take 
to adopt the practice. 

Timeframe : Choose an item.  
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No Name Position 

Company  

Salary Allowance Bonus Benefits Other emoluments Total 

1 
Input info here Input info here 

Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. 

2 
Input info here Input info here 

Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. 

3 Input info here Input info here 
Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. 

4 Input info here Input info here 
Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. 

5 Input info here Input info here Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. 
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Intended Outcome 
Stakeholders are able to assess whether the remuneration of directors and senior 
management is commensurate with their individual performance, taking into consideration the 
company’s performance. 
 
Practice 8.3 - Step Up 
Companies are encouraged to fully disclose the detailed remuneration of each member of 
senior management on a named basis. 
 

Application : Not Adopted 

Explanation on 
adoption of the 
practice 

:  
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No Name Position 

Company (‘000) 
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1 Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here 

2 Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here 

3 Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here 

4 Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here 

5 Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here Input info here 
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Intended Outcome 
There is an effective and independent Audit Committee.  
 
The board is able to objectively review the Audit Committee’s findings and recommendations. 
The company’s financial statement is a reliable source of information. 
 
Practice 9.1 
The Chairman of the Audit Committee is not the Chairman of the board. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Company recognises the need for objectivity is particularly 
imperative for the Chairman of the Audit Committee, as the committee 
has a specific role in providing objective oversight in the areas of 
financial reporting, related party transactions and conflicts of interest, 
internal control environment, internal audit and external audit 
processes. The Chairman is expected to demonstrate courage to deal 
with tough issues and support other members to do the same, 
especially in probing management on areas where subjectivity is 
inherent. 
 
In addition to being independent, it is important for the Chairman of 
the Audit Committee to be distinct from the Chairman of the Board of 
Directors (“Board”). Having these positions assumed by the same 
person may impair objectivity of the Board’s review of the Audit 
Committee’s findings and recommendations. 
 
The Company has an Audit and Risk Management Committee (“ARMC”) 
consists entirely of Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INED”) and 
chaired by the and the Senior INED as follows: 
 

No. Name of Directors Position Directorship 

1 Mary Geraldine 
Phipps 

Chairman Senior Independent Non-
Executive Director 

2 Chan Wah Chong Committee 
Member 

Independent Non-Executive 
Director 

3 Law Cheng Lock 

 
The Chairman of the ARMC, Mary Geraldine Phipps, is not the Chairman 
of the Board (i.e. Khaw Khoon Tee). 
 
The ARMC is guided by the Terms of Reference (“TOR”) which clearly 
defines amongst others, the composition, functions, rights, etc. The 
ARMC’s TOR is made available on our corporate website at 
www.sinliplas.com.my. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  
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Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
There is an effective and independent Audit Committee.  
 
The board is able to objectively review the Audit Committee’s findings and recommendations. 
The company’s financial statement is a reliable source of information. 
 
Practice 9.2 
The Audit Committee has a policy that requires a former partner of the external audit firm of 
the listed company to observe a cooling-off period of at least three years before being 
appointed as a member of the Audit Committee. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Company recognises that the audit's independence may be 
jeopardised if a former partner of the external audit firm (including 
those providing advisory services, tax consulting, and other similar 
services) is in a position to exert significant influence over the audit and 
preparation of the Company's financial statements. Hence, requiring a 
three-year cooling-off period. 
 
We have revised the Audit and Risk Management Committee 
(“ARMC”)’s Terms of Reference to formalise a policy that requires a 
former partner of the external audit firm of the listed company to 
observe a cooling-off period of at least three (3) years before being 
appointed as a member of the ARMC. 
 
Our ARMC consists of three (3) Independent Non-Executive Directors as 
follows, none of which are former partner of the external audit firm 
being appointed to the ARMC within the past three (3) years: 
 

No. Name of Directors Position Directorship 

1 Mary Geraldine 
Phipps 

Chairman Senior Independent Non-
Executive Director 

2 Chan Wah Chong Committee 
Member 

Independent Non-Executive 
Director 

3 Law Cheng Lock 

 
Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  
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Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
There is an effective and independent Audit Committee.  
 
The board is able to objectively review the Audit Committee’s findings and recommendations. 
The company’s financial statement is a reliable source of information. 
 
Practice 9.3 
The Audit Committee has policies and procedures to assess the suitability, objectivity and 
independence of the external auditor to safeguard the quality and reliability of audited financial 
statements. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: Financial statements are integral to investors and other stakeholders to 
make informed decision-making, hence safeguarding the integrity and 
credibility of the financial statements is important. The performance of 
audit on the financial statements shall be performed by a competent 
third party, and it is the role of the Audit Committee to ensure the 
suitability, objectivity and independence of this external party (i.e. 
external auditor) in order to safeguard the quality and reliability of the 
company’s financial statements. 
 
The policies and procedures to assess the suitability, objectivity and 
independence of the external auditor forms part of the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee (“ARMC”)’s Terms of Reference (“TOR”), 
which is made available on our corporate website at 
www.sinliplas.com.my. 
 
The ARMC has assess the suitability, objectivity and independence of 
the existing external auditor (i.e. KPMG PLT) (including considering 
information disclosed in the Annual Transparency Report) and will 
recommend to the shareholders in the upcoming Annual General 
Meeting (17th) for re-appointment. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
There is an effective and independent Audit Committee.  
 
The board is able to objectively review the Audit Committee’s findings and recommendations. 
The company’s financial statement is a reliable source of information. 
 
Practice 9.4 - Step Up 
The Audit Committee should comprise solely of Independent Directors. 
 

Application : Adopted 

Explanation on 
adoption of the 
practice 

: The Board of Directors (“Board”) recognises that a wholly independent 
Audit Committee would strengthen the Company’s corporate 
governance practices and processes, and are more likely to lead to 
objective support and protect its external auditors’ independence, 
especially during a dispute with Management. 
 
Hence, the Board reflected this into the composition of the Audit and 
Risk Management Committee (“ARMC”), where the ARMC is chaired by 
the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director (“INED”) and comprise 
solely of INED as follows: 
 

No. Name of Directors Position Directorship 

1 Mary Geraldine 
Phipps 

Chairman Senior Independent Non-
Executive Director 

2 Chan Wah Chong Committee 
Member 

Independent Non-Executive 
Director 

3 Law Cheng Lock 
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Intended Outcome 
There is an effective and independent Audit Committee.  
 
The board is able to objectively review the Audit Committee’s findings and recommendations. 
The company’s financial statement is a reliable source of information. 
 
Practice 9.5 
Collectively, the Audit Committee should possess a wide range of necessary skills to 
discharge its duties. All members should be financially literate, competent and are able to 
understand matters under the purview of the Audit Committee including the financial reporting 
process. 
 
All members of the Audit Committee should undertake continuous professional development 
to keep themselves abreast of relevant developments in accounting and auditing standards, 
practices and rules. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Board of Directors (“Board”) acknowledge that the core functions 
of the Audit Committees are mainly global authoritative governance 
documents, expressed in terms of “evaluation”, “assessment” or 
“review”. The undertaking of such responsibilities would necessitate 
Audit Committee members to be financially literate in order to critically 
and objectively apply a probing view on pertinent matters, particularly 
in areas which involve a high degree of judgment. 
 
The qualification and experience of the individual Audit and Risk 
Management Committee (“ARMC”) members are as follows: 
 

ARMC 
members 
name 

Qualification Background (highlights) 

Mary 
Geraldine 
Phipps 

• Chartered Accountant 
registered with the 
Malaysian Institute of 
Accountants 

• Certified Public 
Accountant under the 
Malaysian Institute of 
Certified Public 
Accountants 

• Member of the Malaysian 
Institute of Accountants 
(MIA) 

• Fellow of the Chartered 
Tax Institute of Malaysia 
(CTIM) 

• Director of KPMG Tax 
Services Sdn Bhd 

• Made a Partner of 
KPMG in 1982, 
specialising in 
taxation 

• Appointed as 
Managing Partner of 
KPMG Penang in 1990 

Chan Wah 
Chong 

• Certified Public 
Accountant 

• Joined Ernst & Young 
in 1984 for 6 years 
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• Corporate Finance 
Manager of a local 
pharmaceutical 
manufacturing 
company 

• Finance Director of a 
start-up medical 
trading company 

• Presently runs his 
own corporate 
advisory company 

Law Cheng 
Lock 

• LLB (Hons) London CLP • Called to the 
Malaysian Bar in 1996 

• Chambered under the 
legal firm of Messrs 
Cheong Wai Meng & 
Van Buerle in 
Butterworth 

• Completed 
chambering under the 
tutelage of Louis 
Edward Van Buerle 

• Currently practicing in 
a legal firm in Kulim, 
Kedah, as a senior 
lawyer 

• Legal advisor to 
several charitable 
organisation and 
societies 

 
Two (2) of the three (3) members of the ARMC, namely Mary Geraldine 
Phipps and Chan Wah Chong are members of professional accountancy 
bodies, which is in accordance with Paragraph 15.09(1)(c) of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad’s Main Market Listing Requirements. 
 
Although not all members of the ARMC are trained in accountancy or 
finance, they are financially literate, able to understand matters under 
the purview of the ARMC and possess the necessary skills to discharge 
their duties effectively. 
 
The Board through the Nomination Committee (“NC”) has reviewed the 
performance of the term of office, competency and performance of the 
ARMC and its members. Based on the outcome of the assessment, the 
Board and the NC is satisfied with the ARMC’s. 
 
During the course of the year, all existing Directors including the 
members of the ARMC attended related training programmes to keep 
abreast with latest developments. 
 
Refer to the CG Overview Statement in the Annual Report 2021 for the 
details of training attended by the Directors during the year. 
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Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Companies make informed decisions about the level of risk they want to take and implement 
necessary controls to pursue their objectives.  
 
The board is provided with reasonable assurance that adverse impact arising from a 
foreseeable future event or situation on the company’s objectives is mitigated and managed. 
 
Practice 10.1 
The board should establish an effective risk management and internal control framework. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Company recognises that every path taken by the Board of 
Directors (“Board”) and Management in pursuit of a business goal or 
plan has its risks. Dealing with risk in these choices is an aspect of 
decision-making, from day-to-day operational decisions to fundamental 
trade-offs in the boardroom. 
 
Risk management and internal controls are the foundation methods 
and frameworks for managing, monitoring, and mitigating risks in order 
to maximise the possibility of achieving set objectives and goals. 
Controls, according to that definition, are the actions performed by 
Management to plan, organise, and direct the execution of sufficient 
measures to provide reasonable assurance that objectives and goals will 
be met. 
 
The Company has adopted Enterprise Risk Management ("ERM") 
systems to identify, assess, monitor, report, and mitigate risks affecting 
the Company's business and supporting activities, with the help of an 
independent professional accounting and consulting firm. 
 
The Group’s internal audit function has been outsourced to an 
independent professional service firm to provide an independent 
assurance to the Board on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Group’s system of internal control. 
 
Further details on risk management and internal control are available 
on the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control of the 
Annual Report. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  
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Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Companies make informed decisions about the level of risk they want to take and implement 
necessary controls to pursue their objectives.  
 
The board is provided with reasonable assurance that adverse impact arising from a 
foreseeable future event or situation on the company’s objectives is mitigated and managed. 
 
Practice 10.2 
The board should disclose the features of its risk management and internal control framework, 
and the adequacy and effectiveness of this framework. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Board of Directors (“Board”) understand that an adequate and 
effective internal control and risk management framework provides 
companies with a structured approach to implement, monitor, review 
and improve internal control and risk management in tandem with the 
changing business circumstances. 
 
The main components of the Company’s risk management and internal 
control framework are detailed in the Statement on Risk Management 
and Internal Control of the Annual Report. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Companies make informed decisions about the level of risk they want to take and implement 
necessary controls to pursue their objectives.  
 
The board is provided with reasonable assurance that adverse impact arising from a 
foreseeable future event or situation on the company’s objectives is mitigated and managed. 
 
Practice 10.3 - Step Up 
The board establishes a Risk Management Committee, which comprises a majority of 
independent directors, to oversee the company’s risk management framework and policies. 
 

Application : Adopted 

Explanation on 
adoption of the 
practice 

: The Company acknowledge that a key driver for the establishment of a 
dedicated Board Risk Management Committee is the need for 
comprehensive views as opposed to silo perspectives. Without a 
dedicated Board Risk Management Committee, it may give rise to 
omission of critical risks that are unattended due to absence of 
committee overseeing. 
 
We have established a Risk Management Committee, which is 
combined with the Audit Committee to form the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee (“ARMC”). This committee is chaired by the 
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director (“INED”) and comprise 
solely of INED as follows: 
 

No. Name of Directors Position Directorship 

1 Mary Geraldine 
Phipps 

Chairman Senior Independent Non-
Executive Director 

2 Chan Wah Chong Committee 
Member 

Independent Non-Executive 
Director 

3 Law Cheng Lock 
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Intended Outcome 
Companies have an effective governance, risk management and internal control framework 
and stakeholders are able to assess the effectiveness of such a framework. 
 
Practice 11.1 
The Audit Committee should ensure that the internal audit function is effective and able to 
function independently. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Board of Directors recognise the importance of the internal audit 
function, serving as a sounding board on deficiencies in risk 
management, internal control and governance processes, and provides 
advice on the remedial measures to be meted out by the company. 
 
In order for the internal audit function to provide objective assurance 
on the quality of a company’s risk management, internal control and 
governance processes, it is imperative to ensure that this function is 
well-equipped to deliver the depth and quality of the work that is 
expected of it. 
 
The Company’s internal audit function is outsourced to Messrs. JWC 
Consulting Sdn Bhd, an independent professional accounting and 
consulting firm. The firm provides reasonable assurance regarding the 
effectiveness, adequacy, and integrity of the Company's internal control 
systems. 
 
The internal auditors have full and direct access to the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee (“ARMC”), and the ARMC receives reports on 
all internal audits conducted, including significant results and 
recommendations for improvement. The ARMC, through its internal 
auditors, monitors action plans and the status thereof on a regular 
basis. 
 
ARMC is tasked to evaluation the internal auditors, as outlined in its 
Terms of Reference as follows: 
• review the adequacy of the scope, competency, functions, 

resources and budget of the internal audit function, and that it has 
the necessary authority to carry out its work including direct and 
unrestricted access to information, records, physical properties and 
personnel; 

• review the internal audit programme and results of the internal 
audit process and where necessary, ensure that appropriate action 
is taken on the recommendations of the internal audit function; 

• review the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function 
and make recommendations necessary for the improvement of the 
internal audit function; 

• review any appraisal or assessment of the performance of the 
internal audit function; 
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• approve any appointments or removal of the internal auditor; 
• approve the remuneration of the internal auditor;  
• ensure the internal audit function is independent of the activities it 

audits and the head of internal audit reports functionally to the 
ARMC directly and review their performance on an annual basis. 
The head of internal audit should have relevant qualifications and 
be responsible for providing assurance to the ARMC that the 
internal controls are operating effectively. The head of internal 
audit will be responsible for the regular review and/or appraisal of 
the effectiveness of the risk management, internal control, and 
governance processes within the Company; and 

• take cognisance of resignations of internal audit staff members (for 
in-house internal audit function) or the internal audit service 
provider and provide the resigning staff member or the internal 
audit service provider an opportunity to submit his reasons for 
resigning. 

 
The ARMC has during the financial year, reviewed and assessed the 
performance of its outsourced internal auditors and is satisfied with its 
performance. 
 
The activities that the ARMC performed for the financial year 2021 in 
relation to Internal Audit function is included in the ARMC Report of the 
Annual Report. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Companies have an effective governance, risk management and internal control framework 
and stakeholders are able to assess the effectiveness of such a framework. 
 
Practice 11.2 
The board should disclose–  

▪ whether internal audit personnel are free from any relationships or conflicts of interest, 
which could impair their objectivity and independence;  

▪ the number of resources in the internal audit department;  
▪ name and qualification of the person responsible for internal audit; and  
▪ whether the internal audit function is carried out in accordance with a recognised 

framework. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Company has outsourced its internal audit function to a 
professional service firm, namely Messrs JWC Consulting Sdn Bhd 
(“JWC”), who is a member of the Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia. 
JWC is primarily responsible to independently assess and report to the 
Board of Directors, through the ARMC, the adequacy and integrity of 
the Group’s risk management and internal control system. 
 
Joyce Wong, the Director-In-Charge of our Company’s internal audit, is 
a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and a Certified 
Practising Accountant in Australia. She is supported by three (3) internal 
audit staff for the internal audit for the financial year 2021. 
 
JWC adopts a risk-based approach in developing the internal audit plan, 
which addresses the core business processes of the Group based on 
their risk profile. Scheduled internal audits are carried out by the 
internal auditors based on the internal audit plan presented to and 
approved by the ARMC. The internal audit work is guided by the 
International Professional Practices Framework promulgated by the 
Institute of Internal Auditors Inc., a globally recognised professional 
body for internal auditors. 
 
JWC has declared that it has maintained professional independence 
throughout its work. For this reason, the internal audit function, 
including all of its staff, is not involved in performing routine non-
auditing works or have direct responsibility over any activities, 
functions or tasks they are reviewing. 
 
Further details on the Internal Audit function are available in the ARMC 
Report and Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control of the 
Annual Report. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  
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Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   

 
  



 
 

67 
 

Intended Outcome 
There is continuous communication between the company and stakeholders to facilitate 
mutual understanding of each other’s objectives and expectations.  
 
Stakeholders are able to make informed decisions with respect to the business of the 
company, its policies on governance, the environment and social responsibility. 
 
Practice 12.1 
The board ensures there is effective, transparent and regular communication with its 
stakeholders. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Board of Directors (“Board”) understands the need of maintaining 
an open line of communication between the Board, shareholders, and 
the general public. 
 
The primary methods of communicating information on the Company's 
commercial activities and financial performance are annual reports, 
press releases, quarterly results, and any announcements on material 
corporate exercises, which can be accessed at any time. 
 
Our Group Managing Director is the designated spokesperson for all 
matters relating to the Company and dedicated personnel are tasked to 
prepare and verify material information guided by the Company’s 
Corporate Disclosure Policy for timely disclosure upon approval by the 
Board. 
 
The Company maintains a website at www.sinliplas.com.my for 
shareholders and the public to access information on, amongst others, 
the Group’s background and products, financial performance and 
corporate information. 
 
Shareholders can at any time seek clarification or raise queries via 
emails or telecommunication of the Company. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
There is continuous communication between the company and stakeholders to facilitate 
mutual understanding of each other’s objectives and expectations.  
 
Stakeholders are able to make informed decisions with respect to the business of the 
company, its policies on governance, the environment and social responsibility. 
 
Practice 12.2 
Large companies are encouraged to adopt integrated reporting based on a globally 
recognised framework. 
 

Application : Not applicable – Not a Large Company 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

:  

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Shareholders are able to participate, engage the board and senior management effectively 
and make informed voting decisions at General Meetings. 
 
Practice 13.1 
Notice for an Annual General Meeting should be given to the shareholders at least 28 days 
prior to the meeting. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Company acknowledges that notices of Annual General Meeting 
(“AGM”) shall be despatched to shareholders at least 28 days before 
the AGM to provide shareholders sufficient time to read and 
understand the Annual Report, resolutions to be tabled and make the 
required attendance and voting arrangements. 
 
The notice of our latest AGM (16th) held on 11 June 2021 (subsequently 
postponed to 24 June 2021) was circulated on 27 April 2021, 45 days 
before the event. 
 
This is also in accordance with Paragraph 7.15 of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad’s Main Market Listing Requirements, which requires 
notices of AGM to be served at least 21 days before the meeting. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Shareholders are able to participate, engage the board and senior management effectively 
and make informed voting decisions at General Meetings. 
 
Practice 13.2 
All directors attend General Meetings. The Chair of the Audit, Nominating, Risk Management 
and other committees provide meaningful response to questions addressed to them. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: We acknowledge that the participation of all Board of Directors 
(“Board”) members in general meetings will serve to distribute the 
responsibility of engaging with shareholders, to all Directors of the 
Company and not just the Chairman of the meeting. This would enable 
the Board to communicate with shareholders in a more holistic manner. 
In a similar vein, it also provides Shareholders with an opportunity to 
seek pertinent clarifications from Directors who are acting as 
custodians of their investments. Shareholders could perceive that a 
Director is not committed in performing his or her responsibilities to the 
company if the said Directors is not in attendance during general 
meetings. 
 
The 16th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) which was held on a fully 
virtual basis on 24 June 2021 and was attended virtually by all the 
Directors, and the Company Secretary. 
 
Shareholders were provided with the opportunity to submit questions 
prior to and during the AGM. All the questions ask by the Shareholders 
were attended to accordingly. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Shareholders are able to participate, engage the board and senior management effectively 
and make informed voting decisions at General Meetings. 
 
Practice 13.3 
Listed companies should leverage technology to facilitate– 

• voting including voting in absentia; and 
• remote shareholders’ participation at general meetings. 

 
Listed companies should also take the necessary steps to ensure good cyber hygiene 
practices are in place including data privacy and security to prevent cyber threats. 
 

Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: Traditionally, voting during general meetings has been carried out 
either by a show of hands, which represents “one person, one vote” or 
by poll, which is reflective of an individual or entity’s shareholding of 
the company (“one share, one vote”). In order to cast a vote, 
Shareholders have to be present at the meeting venue, but may often 
faced with challenges such as the location of the meeting. 
 
To encourage participation of Shareholders and also in light of the 
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic, we have leverage on 
technology to facilitate voting and remote Shareholder’s participation. 
 
Our latest AGM (16th) was carried out remotely, where Shareholders 
participated, spoke (in the form of real time submission of typed texts) 
and voted remotely using the Remote Participation and Voting (“RPV”) 
facility provided by AGRITEUM Share Registration Services Sdn. Bhd. 
 
Prior to engaging AGRITEUM for the RPV facility, we have considered 
cyber hygiene practices including data privacy and security to prevent 
cyber threats of the RPV facility. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Shareholders are able to participate, engage the board and senior management effectively 
and make informed voting decisions at General Meetings. 
 
Practice 13.4 
The Chairman of the board should ensure that general meetings support meaningful 
engagement between the board, senior management and shareholders. The engagement 
should be interactive and include robust discussion on among others the company’s financial 
and non-financial performance as well as the company’s long-term strategies. Shareholders 
should also be provided with sufficient opportunity to pose questions during the general 
meeting and all the questions should receive a meaningful response. 
 

Note: The explanation of adoption of this practice should include a discussion on measures 
undertaken to ensure the general meeting is interactive, shareholders are provided with sufficient 
opportunity to pose questions and the questions are responded to. 
Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Board of Directors (“Board”) acknowledges that the Annual General 
Meeting (“AGM”) is the principal forum for communication and 
interaction with Shareholders. At each meeting, the Board reports on 
the Company's development and performance since the previous AGM. 
 
For the latest AGM (16th) held on 24 June 2021, Shareholders were 
provided with the opportunity to submit questions prior to and during 
the AGM. The questions raised were mainly answered by the Group 
Managing Director supported by the Senior Management (apart from 
questions raised directly to individual Director), and any unanswered 
questions (e.g. due to time constraint) will be answered through email 
subsequent to the meeting. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  

Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Shareholders are able to participate, engage the board and senior management effectively 
and make informed voting decisions at General Meetings. 
 
Practice 13.5 
The board must ensure that the conduct of a virtual general meeting (fully virtual or hybrid) 
support meaningful engagement between the board, senior management and shareholders. 
This includes having in place the required infrastructure and tools to support among others, a 
smooth broadcast of the general meeting and interactive participation by shareholders. 
Questions posed by shareholders should be made visible to all meeting participants during 
the meeting itself. 
 

Note: The explanation of adoption of this practice should include a discussion on measures 
undertaken to ensure the general meeting is interactive, shareholders are provided with sufficient 
opportunity to pose questions and the questions are responded to. Further, a listed issuer should also 
provide brief reasons on the choice of the meeting platform. 
Application : Applied 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

: The Board of Directors (“Board”) recognises the importance of 
providing the opportunity for shareholders to have real-time 
interactions with the Board and Senior Management in real time, 
including responses to any questions or comments that they may have. 
When a company conducts the general meeting virtually, the 
experience of meeting will depend on smooth broadcast of the 
meeting. 
 
Prior to appointing AGRITEUM Share Registration Services Sdn. Bhd. for 
the Remote Participation and Voting (“RPV”) facility, we have 
considered and tested the infrastructure in place and experience of the 
meeting. 
 
For the latest AGM (16th) held on 24 June 2021, Shareholders were 
provided with the opportunity to submit questions prior to and during 
the AGM. The questions raised were answered by the Group Managing 
Director supported by the Senior Management (apart from questions 
raised directly to individual Director), and any unanswered questions 
(e.g. due to time constraint) will be answered through email subsequent 
to the meeting. 
 

Explanation for 
departure 

:  

 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure :  
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Timeframe :   
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Intended Outcome 
Shareholders are able to participate, engage the board and senior management effectively 
and make informed voting decisions at General Meetings. 
 
Practice 13.6 
Minutes of the general meeting should be circulated to shareholders no later than 30 business 
days after the general meeting. 
 

Note: The publication of Key Matters Discussed is not a substitute for the circulation of minutes of 
general meeting. 

Application : Departure 

Explanation on 
application of the 
practice 

:  

Explanation for 
departure 

: The minutes of the 16th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the 
Company was published on our corporate website at 
www.sinliplas.com.my, more than 30 business days after the AGM. 
 
The Company recognises the need to publish as soon as practicable, a 
complete and comprehensive recording (in the form of meeting 
minutes) of the general meeting detailing proceedings and issues or 
concerns raised by Shareholders, and the responses by the company, as 
to many Shareholders, the general meeting is the only opportunity to 
directly pose questions and comments to the company’s Board of 
Directors (“Board”) and Management. 
 
Hence, we will publish the minutes of the upcoming AGM (17th) on our 
corporate website on or before 30 business days after the meeting. 
 

Large companies are required to complete the columns below. Non-large companies are encouraged 
to complete the columns below. 

Measure : Please explain the measure(s) the company has taken or intend to take 
to adopt the practice. 

Timeframe : Choose an item.  
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SECTION B – DISCLOSURES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES PERSUANT 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES ISSUED BY BANK NEGARA MALAYSIA 

Disclosures in this section are pursuant to Appendix 4 (Corporate Governance Disclosures) 
of the Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by Bank Negara Malaysia. This section is 
only applicable for financial institutions or any other institutions that are listed on the Exchange 
that are required to comply with the above Guidelines. 
 

Click or tap here to enter text. 
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